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Notice of the 
TWENTY-SEVEnTH Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Seventh Annual General Meeting (“27th AGM”) of Amtel Holdings 
Berhad (“AMTEL” or “Company”) will be conducted on a virtual basis at the broadcast venue at AMTEL Office, 
Board Room, Level 3, Wisma Amtel, No. 12, Jalan Pensyarah U1/28, Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park, 40150 Shah 
Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 23 May 2024 at 11:00 a.m. for the purpose of transacting the following 
businesses:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 
30 November 2023 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon.   

 (Please refer to 
Explanatory Note 1 on 

Ordinary Business)

2.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM330,000 for the 
financial year ending 30 November 2024.

(Ordinary Resolution 1)

3.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ benefits and other claimable benefits 
incurred from 24 May 2024 until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”).

(Ordinary Resolution 2)

4.	 To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation in accordance with 
Clause 165 of the Company’s Constitution and being eligible, have offered 
themselves for re-election:

	
i) 	 Koid Siang Loong; and
ii)	 Lim Hun Teik.

(Ordinary Resolution 3)
(Ordinary Resolution 4)

5.	 To re-elect Ang Mei Ping who retires in accordance with Clause 156 of the 
Company’s Constitution and being eligible, has offered herself for re-election.

(Ordinary Resolution 5)

6.	 To re-appoint HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT as External Auditors of the Company until 
the conclusion of the Company’s next AGM and to authorise the Directors to 
fix their remuneration. 

(Ordinary Resolution 6)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without 
any modifications: 

7.	 Authority to Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 
of the Companies Act 2016 and waiver of pre-emptive rights

	 “THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution 
of the Company, and the approvals from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) and any other relevant governmental and/or regulatory 
authorities, where such approval is necessary, the Directors be and are hereby 
authorised pursuant to the Act, to issue and allot shares in the Company, at 
any time, at such price, to such persons and upon such terms and conditions 
and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem 
fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to 
this resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number of 
issued shares of the Company for the time being;

	 THAT pursuant to Section 85 of the Act to be read together with Clause 31 of 
the Constitution of the Company, approval be and is hereby given to waive 
the statutory pre-emptive rights of the shareholders of the Company to be 
offered new shares of the Company ranking equally to the existing issued 
shares arising from any issuance of new shares in the Company pursuant to 
Sections 75 and 76 of the Act;

(Ordinary Resolution 7)
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[continued]

	 THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the 
listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Securities;

	 AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of 
the next AGM of the Company.”

8.	 Proposed renewal of authority for share buy-back
 

	 “THAT subject to the Act, the provisions of the Constitution of the Company, 
Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and any other relevant 
governmental and/or regulatory authorities, the Company be and is hereby 
authorised, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to purchase such amount 
of ordinary shares in the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”) as may be 
determined by the Directors from time to time through Bursa Securities upon 
such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in 
the interest of the Company provided that the aggregate number of shares 
purchased pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten per centum 
(10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the point 
of purchase and that an amount not exceeding the Company’s retained 
profits at the time of the purchase(s) will be allocated by the Company for 
the Proposed Share Buy-Back;

	 THAT the authority conferred by this resolution will be effective immediately 
and shall continue in force until:

(a)	 the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the general 
meeting at which such resolution was passed at which time it shall lapse 
unless by ordinary resolution passed at that meeting, the authority is 
renewed, either conditionally or subject to conditions; or

(b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company 
after that date is required by law to be held; or

(c)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by shareholders in a 
general meeting,

whichever occurs first;

	 AND THAT authority be and is hereby given unconditionally and generally to 
the Directors to take all such steps as are necessary or expedient (including 
without limitation, the opening and maintaining of central depository 
account(s) under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, and 
the entering into all other agreements, arrangements and guarantees with 
any party or parties) to implement, finalise and give full effect to the aforesaid 
purchase with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations 
and/or amendments (if any) as may be imposed by the relevant authorities 
and with the fullest power to do all such acts and things thereafter (including 
without limitation, the cancellation or retention as treasury shares of all or any 
part of the repurchased shares or distribute the treasury shares as dividends 
to the shareholders and/or resell on Bursa Securities and/or transfer the shares 
or any of the shares as purchase consideration and/or cancel all or part of 
them) in accordance with the Act, the provisions of the Constitution of the 
Company and the requirements and/or guidelines of Bursa Securities and all 
other relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities and to do all such 
things as the said Directors may deem fit and expedient in the best interest of 
the Company.”

(Ordinary Resolution 8)
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9.	 Proposed new shareholders’ mandate for recurrent related party transactions 
of a revenue or trading nature (“Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate”)  
 

	 “THAT subject always to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Securities, approval be and is hereby given to the Company and/or its 
subsidiary companies (“the Group”) to enter into and give effect to the 
category of the recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading 
nature with the related party as set out in Part A, Section 2.4 of the Circular/
Statement to Shareholders dated 29 March 2024, provided that such 
arrangements and/or transactions are:   

(i)	 recurrent transactions of a revenue or trading nature;  
(ii)	 necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations;  
(iii)	 carried out in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial 

terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those 
generally available to the public; and

(iv)	 not detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company;

	 AND THAT such authority shall commence upon the passing of this resolution 
and shall continue to be in force until:  

(a)	 the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following this AGM at 
which the Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate was passed, at which 
time it will lapse, unless by ordinary resolution passed at the next AGM 
of the Company, the authority is renewed; 

(b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company 
after that date it is required to be held pursuant to Section 340(2) of the 
Act (but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant 
to Section 340(4) of the Act); or  

(c)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a 
general meeting; 

whichever is the earlier;   

	 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby empowered 
and authorised to complete and to do all such acts and things as they may 
consider expedient or necessary or in the best interest of the Company to 
give effect to the Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate.”

(Ordinary Resolution 9)

10.	 Proposed amendments to the Constitution of the Company 
 

	 “THAT approval be and is hereby given for the Company to enhance the 
interpretations under Clause 1 and to amend the existing Clause 251 of the 
Company’s Constitution in the form and manner as set out in Appendix I of 
the Annual Report 2023; 

	 AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to assent to any 
modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required by any 
relevant authorities and to do all acts and take all such steps as may be 
considered necessary to give effect to the foregoing.” 

(Special Resolution) 

11.	 To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.

NOTICE OF THE 
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
[continued]
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By Order of the Board
CHIN MUN YEE (SSM PC No. 201908002785) (MAICSA 7019243)
HOH YIT FOONG (SSM PC No. 201908000074) (LS0000018)
Company Secretaries

Selangor Darul Ehsan
29 March 2024

Notes:

1.	 A member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at this Meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to participate and vote in his/her stead. Where a 
member appoints more than one (1) proxy to attend, participate, speak and 
vote at the same AGM of the Company, the appointments shall be invalid 
unless the proportion of the shareholdings to be represented by each proxy 
is specified. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. 
A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting of the Company shall 
have the same rights as the member to attend, participate, speak and vote 
at the Meeting.

2.	 The broadcast venue, which is the main venue of the AGM of the Company 
is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Act which 
requires the Chairman of the Meeting to be present at the main venue of the 
AGM of the Company. Members, proxies and/or corporate representatives 
will not be allowed to be physically present at the broadcast venue on the 
day of the Meeting.

	 As guided by the Securities Commission Malaysia’s Guidance Note and 
Frequently Asked Questions on the Conduct of General Meetings for Listed 
Issuers and its subsequent amendments, the right to speak is not limited to 
verbal communication only but includes other modes of expression. Therefore, 
all members, proxies and/or corporate representatives shall communicate 
with the main venue of the AGM of the Company via real-time submission 
of typed texts through a text box within Securities Services e-Portal’s platform 
during the live streaming of the AGM of the Company as the primary mode 
of communication. In the event of any technical glitch in this primary mode 
of communication, members, proxies and/or corporate representatives may 
email their questions to eservices@sshsb.com.my during the AGM of the 
Company. The questions and/or remarks submitted by the members, proxies 
and/or corporate representatives will be broadcasted and responded to 
by the Chairman, Board of Directors and/or Management during the AGM 
of the Company. In the event of any unattended questions and/or remarks 
submitted, the Company will respond to the said unattended questions and/
or remarks after the AGM of the Company via email.

3.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the 
Record of Depositors on 16 May 2024 shall be entitled to participate and vote 
at this Meeting.

4.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which 
holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one 
(1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number 
of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of 
each omnibus account it holds.

NOTICE OF THE 
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

[continued]
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5.	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the 
member or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the member is a 
corporation, shall either be executed under the corporation’s common seal 
or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. The instrument 
appointing a proxy must be deposited at the office of SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 
at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, 
Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or submit 
the Proxy Form electronically via Securities Services e-Portal at https://sshsb.
net.my/ not later than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding 
the AGM of the Company or any adjournment thereof. The lodging of the 
Proxy Form does not preclude any shareholder from participating and voting 
remotely at the AGM of the Company should any shareholder subsequently 
wish to do so, provided a Notice of Termination of Authority to act as Proxy is 
given to the Company and deposited at the office of SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 
at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, 
Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan not less than 
twenty-four (24) hours before the time stipulated for holding the AGM of the 
Company or any adjournment thereof. All resolutions set out in this notice of 
meeting are to be voted by poll.

6.	 Should you wish to personally participate in the Meeting remotely, please 
register electronically via the Securities Services e-Portal at https://www.
sshsb.net.my/ by the registration cut-off date and time. 

	 Please refer to the Administrative Guide for the 27th AGM for further details. 
The Administrative Guide for the 27th AGM is available for download at 
https://amtel.com.my/annual-report or download from the announcement 
on the 27th AGM from the website of Bursa Securities.

Explanatory Notes on Ordinary Business:

1.	 This Agenda item no. 1 is meant for discussion only, as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Act does not 
require the formal approval of the shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 
ended 30 November 2023. Hence, this Agenda item is not put forward for voting.

2.	 Ordinary Resolution 1

	 The Ordinary Resolution 1 is proposed to obtain approval in advance of their entitlement and that the 
existing Directors may be paid in the course of the financial year.

3.	 Ordinary Resolution 2

	 The Directors’ benefits comprise the allowances and other emoluments payable to the Directors, details of 
which are as follows:

a)	 Meeting attendance allowances (per day) (for Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors) is 
RM400.00

b) 	 Other benefits (for Non-Executive Directors only)
•	 Other claimable benefits

	 If the proposed Ordinary Resolution 2 is passed by the shareholders at the 27th AGM of the Company, 
payment of benefits incurred by the Directors from 24 May 2024 until the Company’s next AGM will be paid 
by the Company, as and when incurred.

NOTICE OF THE 
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
[continued]



ANNUAL REPORT 
2023AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD

07

Explanatory Notes on Ordinary Business: (cont’d)

4.	 Ordinary Resolution 3 and Ordinary Resolution 4 

	 Pursuant to Clause 165 of the Company’s Constitution, at least one-third (1/3rd) of the Directors will retire 
from office unless elected or re-elected at the AGM. All Directors shall submit themselves for re-election 
at least once in every three (3) years. The Directors retiring will be those longest in office since their last 
election. If Directors were elected on the same day, the Directors to retire will either be as agreed between 
those Directors or by lot. If the total number of the Directors is not three (3) or a multiple of it, the number 
nearest to one-third (1/3rd) will retire. 

	 For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Director to stand for re-election at the 27th AGM of the 
Company, the Board of Directors through its Nomination Committee undertakes a formal evaluation to 
determine the eligibility of each retiring Director in line with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, 
which includes the following: 

(i)	 Performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole and individual Directors; and
(ii)	 Fit and proper assessment. 

	 Based on the results of the abovementioned evaluations, the Board of Directors considered the 
performance of Koid Siang Loong and Lim Hun Teik to be effective. They were able to meet the Board of 
Directors’ expectations in terms of probity, personal integrity and reputation, competency and capability, 
financial integrity and time commitment vide a declaration form based on the Fit and Proper Policy. They 
had abstained from deliberations and decisions on their eligibility to stand for re-election at the meetings 
of the Board of Directors. 

5.	 Ordinary Resolution 5 

	 Pursuant to Clause 156 of the Company’s Constitution, the Board of Directors can appoint a person as an 
additional Director or as a replacement for another Director. A Director appointed in this way automatically 
retires at the first AGM after their appointment in accordance with Clause 165 unless elected or re-elected 
at that AGM but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who are retire by rotation at 
that meeting.

	 For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Director to stand for re-election at the 27th AGM of the 
Company, the Board of Directors through its Nomination Committee undertakes a formal evaluation to 
determine the eligibility of the retiring Director in line with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, 
which includes the following: 

(i)	 Performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole, Board Committees and individual 
Directors; 

(ii)	 Independence of the Independent Non-Executive Director; and
(iii)	 Fit and proper assessment. 

	 Based on the results of the abovementioned evaluations, the Board of Directors considered the 
performance of Ang Mei Ping to be effective. She was able to meet the Board of Directors’ expectations 
in terms of probity, personal integrity and reputation, competency and capability, financial integrity and 
time commitment vide a declaration form based on the Fit and Proper Policy. She had abstained from 
deliberations and decisions on her eligibility to stand for re-election at the meetings of the Board of Directors 
and Nomination Committee. 

NOTICE OF THE 
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

[continued]
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Explanatory Notes on Special Business:

1.	 Ordinary Resolution 7 – Authority to Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the 
Act and waiver of pre-emptive rights 

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7 is a renewal of the general mandate for issuance of shares granted to 
the Directors at the last AGM of the Company (“Previous Mandate”). This resolution, if passed, will empower 
the Directors, from the date of the 27th AGM of the Company until the next AGM of the Company, to 
allot and issue new shares of the Company up to an amount not exceeding ten per centum (10%) of the 
total number of issued shares of the Company at any time to such persons and for such purposes as the 
Directors consider would be in the best interests of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at 
a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM of the Company.

	 The purpose of this general mandate is to eliminate the need to seek shareholders’ approval to convene 
general meeting(s) from time to time as and when the Company issues new shares for future business 
opportunities and thereby reducing administrative time and costs associated. The Directors would utilise 
the proceeds raised from this mandate for possible fundraising exercises including but not limited to further 
placement of shares, for the purpose of working capital, funding current and/or future investment project(s), 
repayment of borrowings and/or acquisition or such other applications they may in their absolute discretion 
deem fit.

	 As at the date of this notice of meeting, no new shares were issued pursuant to the Previous Mandate 
granted to the Directors which will lapse at the conclusion of this 27th AGM of the Company. 

2.	 Ordinary Resolution 8 – Proposed renewal of authority for share buy-back

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s 
shares of up to a maximum of ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company 
by utilising the funds allocated out of the retained profits of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or 
varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.

	 Further information on the proposed renewal of authority for share buy-back is set out in Part B of the 
Circular/Statement to Shareholders dated 29 March 2024.

3.	 Ordinary Resolution 9 – Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will give mandate to the Group to enter into recurrent 
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature with the related party, details of which are set out 
in Part A of the Circular/Statement to Shareholders dated 29 March 2024.

4. 	 Special Resolution – Proposed amendments to the Constitution of the Company

	 The Company intends to update the Company’s Constitution for the purpose of empowering the Board of 
Directors to declare a final dividend to the shareholders without the need to convene a general meeting 
to seek the shareholders’ approval under Clause 251 as well as to add in the respective registration number 
and to enhance and/or revise the interpretations under Clause 1 accordingly to align with the disclosure 
in the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities.

Statement Accompanying Notice of AGM 
(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities)

(i)	 Details of an individual who is standing for election as Director
-	 No individual is seeking election as a Director at the 27th AGM of the Company.

(ii)	 Authority for Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Act.
-	 Please refer to item (1) of the Explanatory Notes of Special Business.

NOTICE OF THE 
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
[continued]
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Proposed amendments to our Constitution

Our Constitution shall be amended as follows: 

(i) 	 That the following interpretations be enhanced and/or revised and to be read as follows:

Words	 Meanings

Company	 Amtel Holdings Berhad (Registration No. 199601037096 (409449-A)).

market day	 A day on which Bursa Securities is open for trading in securities, which may include 
	 a Surprise Holiday.

ordinary business	 All the following business (if it takes place at an Annual General Meeting):
	 •	 laying of audited financial statements and the reports of the directors and the
 		  Auditor;
	 •	 the fixing of the fees and benefits of existing directors;
	 •	 the election of directors in place of those retiring;
	 •	 the appointment and the fixing of the fees and benefits of directors; and
	 •	 the appointment of the Auditor.

Surprise Holiday	 A day that is declared as a public holiday in the Federal Territory of Kuala Lumpur 
	 that has not been gazetted as a public holiday at the beginning of the calendar 
	 year.

	
(ii) 	 That the existing Clause 251 be deleted in its entirety and substituted with the following new Clause 251 to 

be read as follows:

	 Final dividends 

251.	 If the Board consider that the profits of the Company justify such payments, they can pay final dividends 
on any class of shares of any amounts, on any dates and for any periods which they decide.

	

Appendix I 
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 3, Wisma Amtel 
No. 12, Jalan Pensyarah U1/28
Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel	 :	 (603) 5567 3500
Fax	 :	 (603) 5567 3555

SHARE REGISTRAR

Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd 
Level 7, Menara Milenium
Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara
Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur 
Tel	 :	 (603) 2084 9000
Fax	 :	 (603) 2094 9940 

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad  
Stock Name	 :	 Amtel
Stock Code	 :	 7031

WEBSITE

www.amtel.com.my

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ir. Chew Yook Boo (Chairman) 
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin 
Ms. Ang Mei Ping 

NOMINATION COMMITTEE 

Ir. Chew Yook Boo (Chairman) 
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin 
Ms. Ang Mei Ping 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Ir. Chew Yook Boo (Chairman) 
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin 
Ms. Ang Mei Ping 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Ms. Chin Mun Yee (MAICSA 7019243)
SSM Practicing Certificate No.: 201908002785
Ms. Hoh Yit Foong (LS0000018)
SSM Practicing Certificate No.: 201908000074

AUDITORS 

HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT
(LLP 0021174-LCA & AF0276)
A-23-1, Level 23, Hampshire Place Office
157 Hampshire, No. 1 Jalan Mayang Sari
Off Jalan Tun Razak
50450 Kuala Lumpur
Tel	 :	 (603) 7890 5588

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Dato’ Koid Hun Kian
Executive Director

Ir. Chew Yook Boo
Independent Non-Executive Director

corporate 
information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Koid Siang Loong 
Group Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Lim Hun Teik 
Executive Director 

Ms. Ang Mei Ping
Independent Non-Executive Director
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corporate 
STRUCTURE

AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD 
Registration No. 199601037096 (409449-A)

Information & 
Communication Technology OthersTelecommunications,

Infrastructure & Services

100%

100%

100%

100%

35%

100%

60%

100%

30%

100%
Metrarama 

Sdn. Bhd. 
199801018282 (474411-K)

WAMM 
Bersekutu 
Sdn. Bhd.

198501005419 (137860-P)

Amtel 
Communications 

Sdn. Bhd.  
199301019957 (274695-V)

Amtel Digital 
Sdn. Bhd.  

202301021779 (1515702-D)

Amtel Resources 
Sdn. Bhd. 

198101007219 (73335-P)

Amtel Cellular 
Sdn. Bhd. 

199301023413 (278151-D)

Amnavi 
Sdn. Bhd. 

 200601031705 (751464-V)

Amtel  
Intelligence 

Sdn. Bhd.
202001001413 (1357732-U)

AIT Tech 
Sdn. Bhd.

 202301051638 (1545552-W)

Milan Utama 
Sdn. Bhd. 

 200501025101 (707234-W)
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YTM. TUNKU DATO’ SERI KAMEL BIN TUNKU RIJALUDIN 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

PROFILE OF
DIRECTORS

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin, a Malaysian aged 70, male, is a Non-Independent Non-
Executive Chairman of Amtel Holdings Berhad (“AMTEL” or “Company”). He was appointed as Independent 
Non-Executive Chairman of AMTEL on 27 July 2005. He was first appointed as Independent Non-Executive 
Director to the Board on 31 July 1997. He is a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee.

He graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree and a Master degree in Business Administration 
from University of Tennessee, Knoxville, United States of America in 1977 and 1980 respectively.

He began his career in Sycip Gorres and Velayors Kassim Chan Sdn. Bhd., a management consultancy firm, 
as a management consultant in 1981. In 1983, he joined Kedah Cement Sdn. Bhd., a company involved in the 
manufacturing and sale of cement, clinker and related products, as the International Sales Manager. In 1989, 
he joined Asli Jardine Insurance Brokers Sdn. Bhd., an insurance broking company, as the Principal Officer and 
Director. In 1990, he joined Dagang Net Technologies Sdn. Bhd., an information technology company. 

Currently, he is a director of Dwitasik Sdn. Bhd., an oil palm plantation company and he is also the Chairman of 
QC Protection & Investigation Services Sdn. Bhd. which is involved in the security services industry. He also sits on 
the Board of other private limited companies. 

He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of AMTEL, nor has he any 
conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of any offences other than traffic offences within 
the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

KOID SIANG LOONG
Group Chief Executive Officer

Koid Siang Loong, a Malaysian, aged 35, male, was first appointed to the Board on 19 May 2021 as an Executive 
Director. Subsequently, he was promoted as Group Chief Executive Officer of AMTEL on 1 May 2023. 
 
He graduated with a Master of Engineering in Electrical and Electronic Engineering from Imperial College 
London, UK in 2011. 

He first joined AMCSB in October 2014 as a Corporate Manager and subsequently promoted to Assistant 
General Manager in 2016 and took over the role of Chief Operations Officer of AMTEL in 2018 before appointed 
as director of AMTEL in 2021. His responsibilities in the Company includes overseeing the Group’s operations 
and ensuring the effective implementation of the Group’s business strategy, plan and policies. Prior to joining 
AMCSB, he worked in London for Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) as a Business Analyst. He was also the co-founder 
of Belongingsfinder.org, a community-based lost and found portal being used to reconnect people with their 
lost cherished belongings, which won the Social Enterprise award during a Startup Weekend challenge held in 
Cambridge, United Kingdom in 2011.

He is a substantial shareholder of AMTEL and the son of Dato’ Koid Hun Kian, the director and a major shareholder 
of AMTEL. He is also a director and shareholder of Simfoni Kilat Sdn. Bhd., which is also a substantial shareholder 
of AMTEL. Save as disclosed above, he does not have any family relationship with any other directors and/
or major shareholders of AMTEL, nor has he any conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of 
any offences other than traffic offences within the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public 
sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year. 
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PROFILE OF 
DIRECTORS 

[continued]

DATO’ KOID HUN KIAN  
Executive Director

Dato’ Koid Hun Kian, a Malaysian aged 67, male, was the Chief Executive Officer of AMTEL and subsequently 
redesignated as Executive Director on 1 May 2023. He was first appointed to the Board on 31 July 1997.

He is a qualified accountant by profession, having admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (United Kingdom) since 1985 and he is a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He has 
wide experience in audit, telecommunications, manufacturing, trading and Information and Communications 
Technology (ICT) industries. Prior to joining AMTEL, he was attached to various public accounting firms and 
a company involved in investment holding, management services, manufacturing and the trading of 
telecommunications equipment.

He is a major shareholder of AMTEL and Simfoni Kilat Sdn. Bhd., which is also a substantial shareholder of AMTEL. He 
is also the father of Mr. Koid Siang Loong, who is the Group Chief Executive Officer and a substantial shareholder 
of AMTEL. Save as disclosed above, he does not have any family relationship with any other directors and/
or major shareholders of AMTEL, nor has he any conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of 
any offences other than traffic offences within the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public 
sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

LIM HUN TEIK
Executive Director

Lim Hun Teik, a Malaysian, aged 55, male, is an Executive Director of AMTEL. He was appointed to the Board on 
7 September 2020. 

He graduated with a Master Degree in Supply Chain Management from Midwest Missouri University in 2008. 
He first joined the Group as a Senior Business Development Manager of Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd. (“AMCSB”) in 
September 2005 and subsequently, promoted to Assistant General Manager in 2009. Afterwards, he took over 
the role of Chief Executive Officer in AMCSB before appointed as director of AMTEL in 2020. His responsibilities 
in the company includes overseeing company’s daily operations, liaising with business partners and customers, 
providing and implementing company’s guidelines, operating policies and procedures to ensure adherence to 
standards and best practices in the company. He has more than thirty years (30) years of working experience 
in quality engineering, project management and business development. Prior to joining AMCSB, he worked for 
Soarway Enterprise Co., Ltd as a Business Manager. 

He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of AMTEL, nor has he any 
conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of any offences other than traffic offences within 
the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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IR. CHEW YOOK BOO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ir. Chew Yook Boo, a Malaysian aged 67, male, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of AMTEL. He was 
appointed to the Board on 8 February 2017. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee 
and Remuneration Committee.

He graduated from University of East Asia and University of Malaya with a Master degree in Business Administration 
and Bachelor degree (Honours) in Engineering respectively. He also holds a diploma in Accounting and Finance.  

He has more than thirty (30) years of working experience in civil engineering and the operation and maintenance 
of sewerage works/ treatment plants including budgeting and planning. He started his career with Majlis 
Perbandaran Sungai Petani as a Civil Engineer from 1981 to 1996. In 1997, he joined Operasi Tembaga Sdn. Bhd. 
as a Managing Director in charge of land reclamation for development in Langkawi. Subsequently, he joined 
Indah Water Konsortium Sdn. Bhd. from 1998 to 2012 as a Unit Manager.
 
He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of AMTEL, nor has he any 
conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of any offences other than traffic offences within 
the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

ANG MEI PING
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ang Mei Ping, a Malaysian aged 35, female, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of AMTEL. She was 
appointed to the Board on 24 May 2023. She is a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee.

She graduated with a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Economics from London School of Economics 
and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW). 

She started her career with KPMG London and her professional experience includes working with UK AIM-listed 
clients, multinational clients based in Berlin and Abu Dhabi, large conglomerates and companies in diversified 
sectors. She also worked in Deal Advisory (Merger & Acquisition), managing merger and acquisitions deals in the 
United Kingdom. Upon returning to Malaysia, she continued to develop her career as a professional accountant 
in public practice such as taxation, corporate finance & advisory in a broad spectrum of industries. She is a 
member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) and currently serves as a committee member of the 
Public Practice Committee of MIA and is also a committee member of the Digital Technology Implementation 
Committee of MIA.

She does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of AMTEL, nor has she any 
conflict of interest with AMTEL. She has not been convicted of any offences other than traffic offences within 
the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

PROFILE OF 
DIRECTORS 
[continued]
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CHIN WOU CHAU
Director, Amtel Resources Sdn. Bhd. (“ARSB”)

Chin Wou Chau, a Malaysian aged 73, male, was appointed as a Director of ARSB on 11 February 1999.  

He graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering from Heriot-Watt 
University, Edinburgh in 1977.

He joined ARSB in April 1983 as a project engineer before assuming his current position as Chief Executive Officer 
of ARSB. He is responsible for the company’s daily operations including sales, technical support and general 
administration of the company.  In addition, he also liaises with the business partners and customers of the 
company. He has more than thirty-five (35) years of working experience in engineering industry. Prior to joining 
ARSB, he was a Senior System Engineer for T-Cas Inc. 

He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of AMTEL, nor has he any 
conflict of interest with AMTEL. He has not been convicted of any offences other than traffic offences within 
the past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year.

PROFILE OF
Key Senior Management
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GROUP
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Summary of past five years

FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED 30 november 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RM ‘000 RM ‘000 RM ‘000 RM ‘000 RM ‘000

Revenue 71,669 60,500 54,728 56,041 63,170

Profit Before Tax 7,097 3,410 5,288 5,583 6,296

Profit For The Financial Year 5,619 2,090 3,558 4,061 4,828

Total Assets 89,266 82,520 86,213 81,779 65,498

Total Borrowings 1,079 752 2,237 629 503

Shareholders’ Equity 71,692 66,291 65,493 61,933 50,024

Net Assets 71,692 66,291 65,493 61,933 50,024

Basic Earnings Per Share (Sen) 5.91 2.15 3.84 # 4.88 # 5.94 #

Net Assets Per Share (Sen) 75.23 69.38 67.14 63.49 51.28

#	  Retrospectively adjusted following the completion of bonus issue of shares on 24 February 2021. 		
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Chairman’s StatemenT &
Management Discussion & Analysis

“ Dear esteemed shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (“the 
Board”), it is a great pleasure to present to you the Annual 
Report of Amtel Holdings Berhad (“AMTEL/the Company”) and 
its subsidiaries (“AMTEL Group/the Group”) for the financial 
year ended 30 November 2023 (FYE 2023).  ”

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS OVERVIEW

Amist the evolving economic landscape of Malaysia 
in 2023, Amtel stays resilient and continues to perform 
and maintain its production across all business 
activities. We continue to focus on our core businesses 
in Information & Communication Technology (“ICT”) 
and Telecommunications, Infrastructure & Services 
(“TIS”) and to a lesser extent investment holding and 
property investment. 
 
In 2023, Malaysia’s automotive total industry volume 
(“TIV”) hit a new all-time high of 799,731 units, surpassing 
previous year 2022 record of 721,177 units. It was also 
the second consecutive year the TIV exceeded the 
700,000 units’ mark. Malaysian Automotive Association 
(“MAA”) attributed the higher annual TIV in 2023 to 
successful tax-free car bookings, strong domestic 
demand, launches of new models and improved 
industry supply chain conditions. Our ICT segment was 
well positioned to capitalise on this opportunity. We 
worked diligently and ramped up our manufacturing 
capability to support our automaker customer’s higher 
demand. 

For the TIS segment, despite facing higher operating 
costs and other hurdles, our sales have seen a 
remarkable surge compared to the previous year. 

As such, we are delighted to share with you Amtel 
Group’s outstanding performance in FYE 2023 as 
reflected with remarkable growth in sales and 
profitability. This achievement proves that our Group’s 
prudent strategy, decisive action and execution is 
sound.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

Review of Financial Performance

Our Group revenue of RM71.67 million in FYE 2023 was 
up 18.5% as compared to RM60.50 million in financial 
year 2022 (“FYE 2022”). Group profit after tax shot up 
to RM5.62 million from RM2.09 million posted in FYE 
2022. FYE 2023 recorded the strongest performance 
in recent years, marking a significant milestone in our 
journey of success. 

As of FYE 2023, shareholders’ fund improved to RM71.69 
million or 8.1% higher than RM66.29 million in FYE 2022. 
Our Group’s total assets stood at RM89.27 million as 
compared to last financial year’s RM82.52 million. 
Group net assets value per share went up by 8.4% to 
75.23 sen from 69.38 sen as of FYE 2022.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Information & Communication Technology Segment 
(“ICT”) 

ICT segment contributed substantially to our Group 
during the financial year under review, and enabled 
Amtel Group to break through the RM5.0 million profit 
after tax mark. 

This segment continued to be the main driver for 
our Group’s business with sales accounted for 
approximately 82.6% (FYE 2022: 86.4%) of Amtel 
Group’s total revenue.

Segment revenue of RM59.23 million in FYE 2023 was 
13.3% higher as compared to RM52.29 million posted in 
the last financial year. The higher revenue was backed 
by the strong growth in sales of our automotive 
and telematics products and related services. In 
connection therewith, ICT segment profit after tax 
soared to RM5.37 million as compared to RM3.38 
million in FYE 2022.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

Telecommunications, Infrastructure and Services Segment (“TIS”) 

This segment which provides fibre optic cables installation and associated civil works reported an uptick in 
overall performance in FYE 2023, mainly attributed to higher sales and better margin from the ongoing projects 
works. 

Segment revenue of RM12.26 million achieved in FYE 2023 was 52.8% higher than last financial year’s RM8.02 
million. Despite the provision of RM230,000 for the one-off impairment loss on trade receivables, the segment 
still managed to turn around to register profit after tax of RM0.54 million as opposed to loss after tax of RM0.39 
million in FYE 2022. 

Others Segment 

The business activities in Others segment comprise investment holding, provision of intra-group management 
services and leasing of properties. The segment loss arose as the income from rental and management fees was 
not sufficient to compensate the corresponding operating and corporate expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Reserves 
 
Our Group continues to manage our financial resources prudently and maintain an optimal capital structure 
with a healthy level of cash reserve. We ensure that our Group will be able to meet its financial obligation while 
maximising the return to stakeholders via operational efficiency and improved productivity.

As of FYE 2023, our Group is in a strong net cash position with cash reserve totaling RM34.05 million (2022: RM21.71 
million), comprising mainly cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and fixed income fund. Our current assets 
of RM55.74 million (2022: RM49.46 million) outstripped current liabilities of RM17.38 million (2022: RM16.03 million). 
The positive net current assets indicate our strong ability to meet financial obligations (bank overdrafts and 
finance lease facilities) as and when they fall due, fund our Group’s working capital requirements and to take 
on new business endeavors when such opportunities arise.  

CORPORATE EXERCISES 
 
Revitalisation of Leadership

Amtel is cognisant of the challenges it faces both internally and externally and has undergone rebranding and 
restructuring exercises to build a stronger foundation and sustainable future going forward. 

During the financial year, the Board was reorganized. A new female member with expertise and proficiency in 
finance, accounting, taxation and capital markets was brought in to replace the one who retired. 

Dato’ Koid Hun Kian who once held the position as the Group’s Managing Director (subsequently redesignated 
as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)) since the listing of the Company in 1997, has been redesignated as Executive 
Director and his son Koid Siang Loong took over the helm as our Group’s CEO. We trust that our young caliber 
leaders will infuse new energy and momentum in shaping our Group’s exciting and promising future. 

Equity and Capital Structure

As a recapitulation, the Company had on 25 April 2023 and 2 June 2023 repurchased 50,000 and 802,900 
respectively of its shares in the open market at an average price of RM0.65 per share. The total consideration 
paid for the repurchased shares was RM552,685 and they were financed entirely by our Group’s internally 
generated funds.

During the financial year, a total of 597,750 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of 597,750 
warrants at the exercise price of RM0.65 per share. The shares were listed and quoted on the Bursa Securities on 
17 January 2023, 17 March 2023, 25 April 2023 and 28 April 2023 respectively. As a result, the number of issued 
and paid-up shares has increased from 97,553,682 to 98,151,432. 

Chairman’s StatemenT & 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
[continued]
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RISKS MANAGEMENT 
 
Our Group’s ICT and TIS segments are exposed to the general risks inherent to the information technology and 
telecommunication infrastructure industries. These business risks and challenges may impact our operations, 
performance and financial conditions. We set out below the known key risks prevalent to our Group’s business 
and our strategies to mitigate these risks. 

Technological Changes and Innovation

Our Group’s ICT products and services operate within a landscape characterized by rapid technological 
advancements, presenting both opportunities and challenges. We recognize the complexity and uncertainty 
inherent in this environment, which may result in design, operational, and marketing hurdles that could potentially 
hinder the development and commercialization of our new offerings.

In response to these dynamic conditions, we maintain a steadfast commitment to innovation and technical 
proficiency. This involves significant investment in our products, services, and research and development efforts. 
By continuously enhancing our business functions and engineering capabilities, we strive to adapt to the evolving 
needs of our customers, particularly in the mobility sector. Additionally, we prioritize open and transparent 
communication with our customers to gain valuable insights into their expectations and requirements.

To further mitigate the associated risks, we employ strategies aimed at sustaining our competitive advantage. 
Central to this approach is the ongoing refinement and enhancement of the quality and reliability of our 
products and services. We leverage new innovations, such as Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (ADAS) and 
Artificial Intelligence (AI) features, as well as offerings in the electric vehicle (EV) domain, to ensure that our 
portfolio remains at the forefront of technological advancement.

Market and Competition  
 
Our ICT products and related services continue to face challenges from existing competitors and new entrants 
in this fast-growing market. Our ability to compete and succeed depends on many factors such as, amongst 
others, our pricing policy, quality, innovations, reliability, on time delivery of our products and customer services. To 
manage these risks, we continue to strengthen our core value and competency, leveraging on our competitive 
advantages such as strong business relationship with our customers and business partners to enable us to meet 
their expectations and eventually grow our business locally and regionally.  

In the same way, the market risk linked to our TIS segment continues to be the low pricing strategies adopted by 
our competitors, alluding to the need to reduce margins to secure new projects. We continue to adopt business 
strategies and preventive measures that will improve operation efficiency, excellent services, close monitoring 
of construction work progress by our experienced team, cost containment measures, re-visiting project costing 
and re-assessment of contract terms with our suppliers and sub-contractors to ensure we remain competitive. 
 
Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuation and Material Costs 
 
Our performance is affected by fluctuation in foreign exchange rates as our ICT business purchases and 
imports raw materials, components and services primarily in USD and Renminbi. Hence, any fluctuation of these 
currencies will affect the Group’s operating margins, the extent of which will depend on the effectiveness of our 
hedging strategies. 

To mitigate these risks, we monitor closely the movements in the currencies and assess regularly the need to 
utilise financial instruments to minimize any potential negative impact that may arise, taking into account the 
transaction costs and exposure period. We maintain credit facilities on foreign exchange forward contracts and 
foreign currencies accounts with a few bankers to hedge against the fluctuation in exchange rates and to pay 
for our overseas purchases. 

As a tier-1 supplier to local automotive companies, we constantly review our procurement process for better 
bargaining power in terms of pricing and delivery schedule. We work closely with our key overseas suppliers, 
re-visit their pricing structure and payment terms and negotiate with suppliers for key costs components, raw 
materials and outsource service providers expenses. In light of this, we also continually seek alternative sources 
for such components or compatible materials of similar quality and standards locally and overseas.  

Chairman’s StatemenT & 
Management Discussion & Analysis 

[continued]
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DIVIDEND  
 
We do not adopt any formal dividend policy. Distribution of dividends will depend among others, on factors 
such as our Group’s working capital requirement, financial performance, future expansion and general financial 
condition. The Board does not propose payment of any dividend for FYE 2023. 
 

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS 

Amidst the many challenges and uncertainties that may persist, we believe that our strong foundation built over 
the years has put us in a good position to navigate through the evolving market dynamics, enabling us to seize 
emerging opportunities and confront obstacles with confidence.

For 2024, MAA released a cautious stance on auto sector, with the sales and production of new vehicles to 
undergo a minor squeeze on the back of an uncertain global economy and slowdown in consumer spending. 
The high-value goods tax, increase in service tax rate for some services and high cost of living are some of the 
factors that will influence consumers to exercise more prudent spending habits. 

Nevertheless, we expect the release of our ICT products and services for several new vehicle models will 
contribute positively to our Group’s sales and performance in the coming financial year. Our horizontal growth 
strategy, focusing on entering new markets via online and aftermarket channels, has demonstrated some 
success. We remain committed to nurturing this strategy for sustained growth.

We have also been proactively seeking new business opportunities that align with Amtel’s objectives to 
bring innovative and high-quality products and services to our customers. While we continue to invest in the 
research and development of new and innovative software and system, we are thrilled to unveil our latest 
groundbreaking one-of-a-kind product – LOKATAG Pro, the first and only Connected Toll Reader and Dashcam 
in collaboration with Zurich Insurance on 23rd January 2024 at a media launch and signing ceremony event, 
where we aim to significantly elevate every Malaysians’ driving experience, making commutes easier, safer, 
and more connected than ever before.

LOKATAG Pro is not just a traditional hardware; it’s the cornerstone of an Internet-of-Things (IoT) within your car 
ecosystem. It symbolises our brand - LOKATAG’s vision and core values as we usher in a new era of automotive 
accessories, where safety, innovation and connectivity converge seamlessly into one intelligent platform known 
as “LOKA Ecosystem”. 

At the same time, the opportunities in the electric vehicle (“EV”) industry are plentiful as it is considerably nascent 
at this stage. Our endeavor in EV industry is further bolstered by our government’s introduction of several schemes 
under Budget 2024 to boost the EV industry by providing support to charging infrastructure and encouraging 
public adoption of the technology to expand the EV ecosystem. Budget 2024 will see the investments of over 
RM170 million by various companies in the local EV industry, which among others include the installation of 
180 charging stations by TNB, Gentari and Tesla Malaysia, the acquisition of 150 electric buses by Prasarana 
Malaysia Bhd and the use of electric vehicles as official cars with Putrajaya paving the way to be “Malaysia’s 
low-carbon city”. Riding on this wave, we expect our Green Technology division to gain more momentum in the 
coming years as we continue to roll out more EV-related products and services. 

Our business strategies also cover overseas expansion to broaden our network and market penetration, 
especially the ASEAN region where we are actively in discussions with our overseas partners on certain projects 

For our TIS segment, Budget 2024 allocated RM4.7 billion to revive the LRT3 projects and its support system, 
which is good news to the construction industry and our TIS business. As we persist in implementing prudent 
cost management and enhancing efficiencies across our ongoing projects, we are actively engaging in new 
tenders for fiberization projects of telecommunication towers and data center networks. Furthermore, we are 
exploring opportunities to expand our TIS business into service-related areas, aiming to establish a stable and 
recurring income stream for our Group.

Chairman’s StatemenT & 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (CONT’D)

In summary, traditional businesses that fail to embrace digital advancement and technology will likely face 
continued challenges and eventual obsolescence. Conversely, existing businesses that are quick to adapt to 
these changes are poised for success. The recent milestone launches of our latest groundbreaking one-of-
a-kind product – LOKATAG Pro marks the beginning of our Group exciting foray into providing Smart Mobility 
Services in the region, catering for the growing need for efficient and sustainable mobility solutions. Anticipating 
further progress, we expect the Group to ascend to greater heights in the forthcoming financial year.
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the regulatory authorities for their support through the years, as we navigate through the good and challenging 
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and steadfast support which are instrumental to our growth and future expansion.  
 
To our fellow Board members, thank you for your expertise and guidance in shaping Amtel Group’s direction, 
ensuring sound governance and paving the way for a sustainable future.

Last but not least, our heartfelt thanks to the management and all the employees of Amtel Group who have 
worked hard and tenaciously in delivering yet another year of eminent performance. As the Group continues 
to strive for excellence, we look forward to the fresh perspective and new insights that the younger stewards of 
the organization will bring to Amtel Group. We are confident that our Amtel family will continue to inspire one 
another and work together as a dedicated team in achieving our goals and steer the Group to greater heights.

TUNKU DATO’ SERI KAMEL                                                                     	 KOID SIANG LOONG 
Chairman                                                                                            	 Group Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) acknowledges the importance of establishing and 
maintaining good corporate governance within the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and is committed 
to ensuring that the highest possible standards of corporate governance are practiced throughout the Group as 
a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’ values and financial 
performance of the Group. This Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CG Statement”) sets out the 
extent to which the Group has applied the practices encapsulated in the principles of the Malaysian Code on 
Corporate Governance (“MCCG”). 

The Board is pleased to present the following CG Statement that describes the extent to how the Group has 
applied and complied with the three (3) principles that are set out in the MCCG throughout the financial year 
under review:-

(a)	 Principle A: Board leadership and effectiveness;
(b)	 Principle B: Effective audit and risk management; and
(c)	 Principle C: Integrity in corporate reporting and meaningful relationship with stakeholders.

This CG Statement is prepared in compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and to provide an overview of the extent of compliance with the 
three (3) principles as set out in the MCCG. 

This CG Statement should also be read together with the Corporate Governance Report 2023 of the Company 
which is available on the Company’s corporate website at www.amtel.com.my.

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

I.	 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

	 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

	 The Board has the ultimate responsibility to set strategic direction and policy in relation to the business and 
affairs of the Company and the Group for the benefit of the shareholders and other stakeholders of the 
Company. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the performance of the Group.

	 The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations of the Group to Management under 
the leadership of the Group Chief Executive Officer (“Group CEO”), to deliver the strategic direction and 
goals determined by the Board. Management may delegate aspects of their authority and powers but 
remain accountable to the Board for the Group’s performance and is required to report regularly to the 
Board on the progress being made by the Group’s key business units and operations. A key function of the 
Board is to monitor the performance of Management. 

	 The Board assumes, amongst others, the following roles and responsibilities:-

(i)	 Review, challenge and decide on Management’s proposals for the Company and the Group, which 
includes corporate strategy and business plans and monitor the implementation by Management;

(ii)	 Review and adopt corporate objectives of the Company and the Group which include performance 
targets and long-term and medium-term goals;

(iii)	 Oversee the resources and operational conducts of the Company and the Group’s businesses, to 
evaluate and assess Management’s performance to determine whether the businesses are being 
properly managed;

(iv)	 Decide on the steps that are necessary to protect the Company’s financial position and the ability to 
meet its debts and other obligations when they fall due, and ensure that such steps are taken;

(v)	 Identify and understand the principal risks of the business of the Company and the Group and 
recognise that business decisions involve the taking of appropriate risks;

(vi)	 Set the risk appetite within which the Board expects Management to operate and ensure that there 
is an appropriate Risk Management Framework to identify, analyse, evaluate, manage and monitor 
significant financial and non-financial risks;
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

I.	 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (CONT’D)

	 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(vii)	 Ensure that Senior Management has the necessary skills and experience and that there are measures 
in place to provide for the orderly succession of Senior Management;

(viii)	 Ensure that the Company adopts an effective communication strategy to enable effective 
communication with shareholders and other stakeholders;

(ix)	 Review the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control systems and ensure that there is 
a sound framework for internal controls and risk management that complies with applicable laws, 
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines;

(x)	 Promote good corporate governance culture within the Company which reinforces ethical, prudent 
and professional behaviour; 

(xi)	 Delegate certain responsibilities to the various Board Committees with clearly defined Terms of 
Reference to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities;

(xii)	 Ensure that the strategic plan of the Company supports long-term value creation and includes 
strategies on economic, environmental and social considerations underpinning sustainability; and

(xiii)	 Ensure the integrity of the Company’s financial and non-financial reporting.

	 Board Committees
	
	 I	n order to ensure the effective discharge of the Board’s fiduciary duties and responsibilities effectively, the 

Board delegates specific responsibilities to the Board Committees established by the Board. Each Board 
Committee is governed by its own Terms of Reference which sets out its functions and duties, composition, 
rights and meeting procedures.

	 The Board may from time to time establish Board Committees as it considers appropriate to assist in carrying 
out its duties and responsibilities. The Board has established the following Board Committees which operate 
under the clearly defined Terms of Reference:-

•	 Audit Committee
•	 Remuneration Committee
•	 Nomination Committee

	 The Board may also delegate specific functions to ad hoc committees, a Director, an employee or other 
persons as and when required. The Board Committees are authorised by the Board to deal with and to 
deliberate on matters delegated to them within their Terms of Reference. The Chairman of the respective 
Board Committees reports and updates the Board on significant issues and concerns discussed and where 
appropriate, make the necessary recommendations to the Board. The minutes of the respective Board 
Committees will be included in the Board papers for the Board’s notation.

	 The Chairman and Group CEO

	 There is a clear division of the roles and responsibilities between the Company’s Chairman and Group CEO. 
The Board is led by YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin, the Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Chairman and the executive management is led by Mr. Koid Siang Loong, the Group CEO. 

	 The positions of the Chairman and the Group CEO are held by different individuals to promote accountability 
and facilitate the division of responsibilities between them to preserve a balance of control, power and 
authority.  

	 The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Group CEO are clearly defined in the Board Charter.

	 Chairman Sits in Board Committees

	 The Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Company is also a member of the Remuneration 
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

I.	 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (CONT’D)

	 Company Secretaries

	 The Board is supported by experienced and competent Company Secretaries in discharging its duties 
and responsibilities. The Company Secretaries attend and ensure that all Board and Board Committees 
meetings are properly convened and all deliberations and decisions are properly minuted and kept. The 
Board appoints the Company Secretaries who play advisory roles as a central source of information and 
advice the Board and Board Committees on issues relating to compliance with laws, rules, procedures and 
regulations affecting the Company and advocates the adoption of corporate governance best practices. 
The specific responsibilities of the Company Secretaries include the following:-

(i)	 ensure compliance with listing requirements and related statutory obligations;
(ii)	 attend Board, Board Committees and general meetings, and ensure the proper recording of minutes;
(iii)	 ensure proper upkeep of statutory registers and records;
(iv)	 assist in preparation for and conduct of meetings; and
(v)	 continuously update the Board on changes to MMLR of Bursa Securities, and other related legislation 

and regulations.

	 The appointment and removal of the Company Secretaries is a matter for the Board to decide as a whole.

	 Both Company Secretaries have the requisite credentials and are qualified to act as Company Secretaries 
pursuant to Section 235(2) of the Companies Act 2016.

	 Supply and Access to Information
	
	 The Board shall be supplied with appropriate and timely information to enable the Board to discharge 

its duties. The Board papers will be distributed to all Directors prior to the Board meetings and sufficient 
time is given to enable Directors to evaluate the matters to be discussed in order to discharge their duties 
effectively and efficiently.

	 The Directors are free to seek any further explanation and information they consider necessary to 
facilitate informed decision-making. Board reports and meeting papers are prepared and presented by 
Management in a concise format that provides adequate facts and analysis pertinent to each proposal 
or matter that arises.

	 Senior Management may be invited to attend Board meetings, when necessary, to furnish explanations 
and comments on the relevant agenda item(s) tabled at the Board meetings or to provide clarifications 
on issues that may be raised by the Board or any Director.

	 All Directors, whether as a full Board or in their individual capacity have unrestricted access to the 
information, advice and services of the Company Secretaries and the Senior Management team in the 
Group in carrying out their duties.

	 Where necessary the Directors may obtain independent professional advice in furtherance of their 
duties, at the Company’s expense if circumstances necessitate it. Prior to incurring such professional fees, 
the Director shall refer to the Chairman and/or the Group CEO on the scopes, natures and fees of the 
professional advice to be sought.

	 Board Charter

	 The Board has adopted a Board Charter to provide a clear statement on the roles and responsibilities of the 
Board and those delegated to Management and to outline the core principles of corporate governance to 
which the Group subscribes and serves as a source of reference and primary induction literature providing 
insights to Board members and Senior Management.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

I.	 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (CONT’D)

	 Board Charter (Cont’d)

	 In addition, it will guide the Board in the assessment of its own performance and that of its Directors. The 
Board Charter is available for reference on the Company’s corporate website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 The Board Charter would be reviewed periodically and may be amended by the Board from time to 
time to ensure its relevance in assisting the Board to discharge its duties with the changes in the laws and 
regulations and to remain consistent with the Board’s objectives and responsibilities.

	 Code of Conduct and Ethics

	 The Directors are expected to conduct themselves with the highest ethical standards. All Directors and 
employees are expected to behave ethically and professionally at all times and thereby protect and 
promote the reputation and performance of the Company. In relation to this, the Board has established 
and adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors, as well as a Code of Conduct and Ethics for 
employees of the Group. 

	 Both documents are available for viewing on the Company’s corporate website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 Whistleblowing Policy 

	 In order to strengthen corporate governance practices across the Group, a Whistleblowing Policy was 
established to provide employees with an accessible avenue to report matters of serious concern and/or 
improper conduct that may affect the professional and compliant operation of the Group’s businesses. 
The Whistleblowing Policy sets out and identifies the appropriate communication and feedback channels 
that facilitate whistle-blowing.

	 The said document is available on the Company’s website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy 

	 The Board had established and approved the Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy to set out the Group’s 
responsibilities to comply with laws against bribery and corruption and to provide information and guidance 
to those working for the Group on how to recognise and deal with corruption and bribery issues.

	 The said document is available on the Company’s website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 Directors’ Fit and Proper Policy

	 The Board had on 28 June 2022 approved and adopted the Directors’ Fit and Proper Policy which outlined 
the fit and proper criteria for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors on the Board of the 
Company and the Group. 

	 The said document is available on the Company’s website at www.amtel.com.my.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

I.	 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (CONT’D)

	 Sustainability Risks and Opportunities 

	 The Board plays a key role in supporting sustainability initiatives. The Group CEO and Management team 
are responsible for identifying and managing Economic, Environmental and Social (“EES”) risks and 
opportunities, as well as measuring the Group’s sustainability performance. 

	 In order to strengthen the Group’s sustainability commitment, a high-level committee namely, the 
Sustainability Management Committee (“SMC”) has been established comprising predominantly personnel 
from the Senior Management to look into the various aspects of fulfilling the Group’s obligation and 
commitment, and to ensure an effective approach in the adoption and implementation of sustainability 
policy and practices. 

	 To effectively discharge its responsibilities, the SMC is supported by a subcommittee i.e., the Sustainability 
Working Group (“SWG”) represented by various personnel such as Heads of Department, Operations 
Managers and Accounts Executives from the various departments. The SWG manages and monitors the 
implementation and performance of EES initiatives and then reports to the SMC. The SWG is further divided 
into different sub-groups based on their area of focus.

	 The Company’s sustainability strategies, priorities and targets as well as performance against these targets 
are not communicated to its internal and external stakeholders. 

	 Nevertheless, the Board together with Management are working to set the Company’s sustainability 
strategies, priorities and targets as well as performance against these targets and shall communicate the 
same to its internal and external stakeholders upon finalisation. 

	 The Board is cognisant that Directors are expected to have a strong understanding and be able to engage 
in rigorous discourse with Management in addressing sustainability-related risks.

	 The Board would undertake the relevant training to stay abreast with and understand the sustainability 
issues relevant to the Company and its businesses, including climate-related risks and opportunities.

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION

	 Board Composition and Balance

		 The Board consists of qualified individuals with diverse professional backgrounds and specialisations with a 
vast range of experience in the field of trading and marketing, corporate affairs, finance and management 
to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. The composition and size of the 
Board are such that it facilitates the decision-making of the Company.

	 In accordance with the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company must ensure that at least two (2) Directors 
or one-third (1/3rd) of the Board, whichever is the higher, are Independent Non-Executive Directors and 
one (1) Director of the Company is a woman. If the number of Directors is not three (3) or a multiple of three 
(3), then the number nearest to one-third (1/3rd) must be used. In the event of any vacancy in the Board 
resulting in non-compliance with Paragraph 15.02(1) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company shall fill 
the vacancy within three (3) months pursuant to Paragraph 15.02(3) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

	 The Board currently has six (6) members comprising the following:-

•	 One (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman;
•	 Two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors; and
•	 Three (3) Executive Directors. 
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)

	 Board Composition and Balance (Cont’d)

	 An Independent Non-Executive Director was appointed during the financial year under review in place 
of the retiring Director, Mr. Siow Hock Lee with the appointment addressing key diversity criteria such as 
gender, age, ethnicity, skill set and expertise. Ms. Ang Mei Ping joined the Board on 24 May 2023 and on 
the same day, Mr. Siow Hock Lee retired as the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
The appointment of Ms. Ang Mei Ping affirmed that the current Board composition is in accordance with 
the provision of paragraph 15.02(1)(b) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities for a Board to have at least one (1) 
woman Director.

	 Subsequent to the changes in the Board composition, on the same day, Mr. Siow Hock Lee stepped down 
as a chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit Committee and Nomination 
Committee (collectively known as “Board Committees”) while Ms. Ang Mei Ping was appointed as a 
member of the Board Committees. 

	 The Board is mindful that the composition of the Board does not comprise half of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. 

	 The Board believes that the existing Independent Non-Executive Directors are capable of acting as 
vigilant gatekeepers and at the same time acting as a check and balance on the Group’s Management, 
which ultimately aims to safeguard the assets of the Group and protect the interests of the Company and 
shareholders as a whole. Therefore, the lack of at least half of the Independent Non-Executive Directors 
on the Board does not jeopardise the independence of the Board’s deliberations, and all decisions were 
made in the best interest of the Company.

	 Independent Non-Executive Directors

	 The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide independent judgement, experience and objectivity 
without being subordinated to operational considerations. They help to ensure that the interests of all 
shareholders are indeed taken into account by the Board and that the relevant issues are subjected to 
objective and impartial consideration by the Board. 

	 The Board shall assess the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors prior to their 
appointment and annually thereafter or when any new interest or relationship develops in light of interests 
disclosed to the Board. During the financial year under review, the Board, through the Nomination 
Committee, assessed the independence of its Independent Non-Executive Directors based on criteria set 
out in the MMLR of Bursa Securities. As at the time of writing of this CG Statement, none of the Independent 
Non-Executive Directors of the Company had served the Board beyond the cumulative terms of nine (9) 
years.

	 The Company does not have a policy that limits the tenure of its Independent Non-Executive Directors 
to nine (9) years. However, upon completion of the nine (9) years term, the Independent Non-Executive 
Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the Director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent 
Non-Executive Director.

	 In the event that the Director is to remain as an Independent Non-Executive Director after the ninth year, 
the Company shall first justify the Director’s independence and obtain annual shareholders’ approval 
through a two-tier voting process at every Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to retain the 
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company who has served the Board for more than nine (9) 
years.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)

	 Board Diversity

	 The Board recognises that Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the sustainable 
development of the Group and does not discriminate based on ethnicity, age, gender, nationality, political 
affiliation, religious affiliation, marital status, educational background or physical ability. There is no specific 
target in the composition in terms of gender, age or ethnicity of its Board members or members of Senior 
Management.

	 On boardroom diversity, the Board through the Nomination Committee will review the appropriate skills, 
experience and knowledge required of the Board members, in the context of the needs of the Group. 
In addition, the Directors must have the ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company. 
The Board will review its composition and size from time to time to ensure an appropriate balance of skills, 
experience and diversity.

	 The current composition of the Board is diverse in terms of skills and experiences which provides the Board 
with the range of knowledge and expertise essential to govern the Company, including understanding its 
business operations and the challenges it faces. The Group CEO brings an additional perspective to the 
Board through an in-depth understanding and knowledge of the Group’s businesses, which are invaluable 
to the Board.

	 The Board acknowledges the recommendation of the MCCG on gender diversity but believes that the 
overriding factors in the selection of a Director must be based on skill, experience, competency and wealth 
of knowledge while taking into consideration the diversity of the Board. Currently, the Board does not have 
any Gender Diversity Policy and has not set a gender diversity target as of the financial year under review.

	 The Board, with the assistance of the Nomination Committee, will review the Board composition to ensure 
that it includes the necessary mix of relevant skills and experience required to perform its roles.

	 Board Meetings

	 The Board meets quarterly. However, additional meetings are convened as and when required, when 
warranted by situations that require deliberation on urgent proposals or matters that need the immediate 
approval or decision of the Board. Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of Directors’ Circular 
Resolutions.

	 The agenda of the meeting and Board papers will be collated and circulated to the Directors by the 
Company Secretaries prior to the meeting and the Company Secretaries will supervise the filing and 
storage of all Board papers.

	 All proceedings of the Board meetings are recorded by the Company Secretaries, which include matters 
discussed, the Board’s deliberations, suggestions and conclusions reached. The minutes are signed by the 
Chairman as endorsements of records of the meetings.

	 Each Director has devoted his/her time sufficiently to carry out his/her responsibilities. To-date, the Directors 
have complied with MMLR of Bursa Securities of not holding more than five (5) directorships in public listed 
companies. The Board is satisfied that the current number of directorships held by the Board members does 
not impair their ability or judgement in discharging their roles and responsibilities.

	 In addition, the Board is also satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards 
fulfilling their roles and responsibilities as affirmed by the attendance record of the Directors at Board and 
relevant Board Committees meetings.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)

	 Board Meetings (Cont’d)

	 During the financial year under review, five (5) Board meetings were held and the attendance of the 
Directors who held office during the financial year ended 30 November 2023 are set out below:-

Name of Directors Attendance of meeting
YTM. Tunku Dato' Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin 5/5 (100%)
Dato' Koid Hun Kian 5/5 (100%)
Mr. Siow Hock Lee (Retired on 24 May 2023) 3/3 (100%) *
Ir. Chew Yook Boo 5/5 (100%)
Mr. Lim Hun Teik 5/5 (100%)

Mr. Koid Siang Loong 5/5 (100%) 
Ms. Ang Mei Ping (Appointed on 24 May 2023) 2/2 (100%) *

*	 Reflects the number of Board meetings attended during the financial year under review from the 
date of appointment/up to the date of retirement

	 The Directors may be invited to become directors of other companies and the Directors are therefore 
at liberty to accept other board appointments so long as such appointments are not in conflict with the 
businesses of the Group and do not adversely affect the Directors’ performance as members of the Board.

	 In maintaining and monitoring the limitation on directorships as required by the MMLR of Bursa Securities, 
the Directors upon appointment, and from time to time during their tenure, shall notify the Company 
Secretaries of their directorships in other companies for disclosure to the Board at Board meetings.

	 Directors’ Training

	 The Directors are also encouraged to attend training programmes/courses/seminars/forums on a 
continuous basis to keep abreast with current developments in laws, regulations and business practices in 
order to aid the Directors in discharging their duties. They are also kept informed of various development 
programmes by the Company Secretaries regularly.

	 The training needs of the Directors will be reviewed by the Nomination Committee to ensure that they are 
acquainted with the latest developments and changing environment within which the Group operates.

	 All Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme Part I in accordance with the 
MMLR of Bursa Securities. In addition, the Directors after assessing their own training needs had attended 
the following trainings during the financial year under review:-

Name of Director Date Seminar/ Workshop/ 
Training Programme 

  Organizer

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri 
Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin

22 September 2023 Self-Healing Network: The 
Future of Autonomous 
Operations.

Bursa Malaysia Berhad

25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)

	 Directors’ Training (Cont’d)

Name of Director Date Seminar/ Workshop/ 
Training Programme 

  Organizer

Dato’ Koid Hun Kian 22 August 2023 Advocacy Sessions for 
Directors and CEOs 
of Main Market Listed 
Issuers

Bursa Malaysia Berhad

25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd.

Ir. Chew Yook Boo 20 August 2023 Talk Session: Biaxial 
Hollow IBS Precast SLAB 
(Bubble Deck) System

The Institution of 
Engineers Malaysia

22-24 August 2023 Engineering ESG for the 
Nation

Board of Engineers 
Malaysia

3 October 2023 Management of Cyber 
Risk

Bursa Malaysia Berhad

25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd.

Mr. Koid Siang Loong 3 October 2023 Management of Cyber 
Risk 

Bursa Malaysia Berhad

25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd. 

Ms. Ang Mei Ping
(Appointed on 24 May 
2023

26-27 June 2023 Mandatory 
Accreditation 
Programme

Institute of Corporate 
Directors Malaysia

25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd. 

Mr. Lim Hun Teik 25 October 2023 2024 Budget Updates; 
Transfer Pricing Updates; 
and E-Invoicing in 
Malaysia

Moore Advent Tax 
Consultants Sdn. Bhd.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)	
	
	 Nomination Committee

	 The Nomination Committee is primarily empowered by its Terms of Reference to perform the following:-

(i)	 Consider and recommend to the Board candidates for directorship, proposed by the Group CEO or 
any Director or shareholder, or outsourced independent service providers, taking into consideration 
the candidates’ skills, knowledge, experience, age, cultural background and gender;

(ii)	 Oversee the selection and assessment of Directors and ensure that Board composition meets the 
needs of the Company, taking into consideration the Fit and Proper Policy adopted by the Company, 
including the skills, knowledge, expertise and experience, integrity, competencies, commitment, 
contribution and gender;

(iii)	 In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee may use the services of external 
advisors to facilitate the search; 

(iv)	 Review and recommend to the Board the appointment of member(s) and chairman(s) of Board 
Committees; 

(v)	 Assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board and the mix of 
skills, experience and competencies of each individual Director;

(vi)	 Ensure that all Directors undergo appropriate induction programmes and receive appropriate 
trainings;

(vii)	 Assist the Board in the review of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors; 
(viii)	 Recommend to the Board, candidates for the re-election of Directors and retiring Directors who are 

willing to be re-elected under the annual re-election provisions or retirement; and 
(ix)	 Review the terms of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members 

annually to determine whether the Audit Committee and its members have carried out their duties in 
accordance with their Terms of Reference. 

	 The Nomination Committee members shall be appointed by the Board and comprised exclusively of Non-
Executive Directors, a majority of whom must be independent. The Nomination Committee held two (2) 
meetings during the financial year ended 30 November 2023 and the attendance of the members are as 
follows:-

Name of Members Designation
No. of Meeting 

Attended
Ir. Chew Yook Boo Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director 2/2 (100%)
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel 
Bin Tunku Rijaludin

Member/Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Chairman

2/2 (100%)

Mr. Siow Hock Lee
(Ceased office on 24 May 
2023) 

Member/Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1 * (100%)

Ms. Ang Mei Ping 
(Appointed on 24 May 
2023) 

Member/Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1 * (100%)

*	 Reflects the number of Nomination Committee meetings attended during the financial year under 
review from the date of appointment/up to the date of cessation
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)	
	
	 Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

	 The Nomination Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its Terms of Reference during the 
financial year ended 30 November 2023 as follows:-

•	 reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Board Committees;
•	 reviewed and assessed the mix of skills, experiences and competencies of each individual Director;
•	 reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the Audit Committee and each of its members;
•	 reviewed and assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors based on 

criteria set out in MMLR of Bursa Securities;
•	 reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval, the re-election of the Directors at the AGM 

of the Company.

	 Details of the Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee are available for reference on the 
Company’s corporate website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board for the appointment 
of new Director(s). All nominations to the Board and Board Committees shall first be considered by the 
Nomination Committee, taking into consideration inter-alia the current and future needs of the Group and 
the credentials of the potential Director.

	 The procedures for the appointment of new Director(s) comprise among others, the following steps:-

(i)	 Identification of candidate(s);
(ii)	 Assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate(s);
(iii)	 Final deliberation by Nomination Committee; and
(iv)	 Recommendation to the Board.

	 In assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate(s), the Nomination Committee shall take into 
consideration the following criteria:-

(i)	 Size, composition, mix of skills, experience, competencies and other qualities of the existing Board;
(ii)	 The candidate’s skills, knowledge, expertise and experience, competency and capability, fit and 

proper, professionalism, and personal integrity to effectively discharge his/her role as a Director;
(iii)	 Directorships of not more than five (5) public listed companies (as prescribed under Paragraph 15.06 

of the MMLR of Bursa Securities) to ensure the proposed candidate(s) has sufficient time to fulfil his/her 
roles and responsibilities effectively; and

(iv)	 In the case of a candidate for the position of Independent Non-Executive Director, the independence 
as defined in the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

	 At least one-third (1/3rd) of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at each AGM of the Company 
and all Directors shall submit themselves for re-election at least once in every three (3) years and are 
eligible to offer themselves for re-election. If the total number of the Directors is not three (3) or multiple of 
it, the number nearest to, but not less than one-third (1/3rd) will retire. All newly appointed Directors will be 
subject to retirement at the next AGM of the Company and are eligible for re-election.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

II.	 BOARD COMPOSITION (CONT’D)	
	
	 Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

	 For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Directors to stand for re-election at the AGM of the 
Company, the Board through its Nomination Committee undertakes a formal evaluation to determine the 
eligibility of each retiring Director in line with MCCG, which includes the following:

•	 Performance and effectiveness of the Board as a whole and individual Directors; 
•	 Independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors; and
•	 Fit and Proper assessment.

	 The Director(s) who are to retire shall abstain from deliberations and decisions on their own eligibility to 
stand for re-election at the meetings of the Board and Nomination Committee, where relevant. The names 
of the Directors seeking for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company are disclosed in the 
Notice of AGM of this Annual Report.

	 Based on the recent annual assessment and evaluation, the Nomination Committee is satisfied with the 
performance of the Directors who are standing for re-election and has recommended to the Board the 
proposed re-election in accordance with the Constitution of the Company. The Board supported the 
Nomination Committee’s recommendation to re-elect the eligible Directors standing for re-election at the 
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

	 Directors’ Assessment/Board Evaluation

	 The Nomination Committee compiles and conducts on an annual basis the following evaluations:-

•	 The effectiveness of each Director’s ability to contribute to the effectiveness of the Board and the 
relevant Board Committees;

•	 The effectiveness of the Board as a whole; 
•	 The Director’s declaration on Fit and Proper; and
•	 The Audit Committee members’ evaluation.

	 The assessment criteria include the mix of skills, size, current composition, experiences, competencies and 
other qualities required to meet the needs of the Group and to comply with the provisions of the MMLR of 
Bursa Securities.

	 All assessments and evaluations carried out by the Nomination Committee are properly documented. 
The summaries of the assessments prepared by the Company Secretaries are tabled at the Nomination 
Committee meeting for the Nomination Committee’s assessment and evaluation.

	 The conclusion of the Nomination Committee’s assessment will be minuted and the minutes will be included 
in the Board papers for the Board’s notation.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

III.	 REMUNERATION

	 Remuneration Policy

	 The Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing and implementing the Remuneration Policy 
pertaining to the remuneration of Directors, whilst the Board is responsible for approving the Remuneration 
Policy.

	 The remuneration of the Executive Directors is made up of Directors’ fees, meeting attendance allowances, 
salaries, bonuses and benefits-in-kind. The determination of the remuneration is based on the executive 
functions, responsibilities, merits, qualifications, competency and experience, as well as the contributions 
and performance of each Executive Director to the businesses.

	 The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is made up of Directors’ fees, meeting attendance allowances, 
medical expenses and other claimable benefits to carry out their duties as Non-Executive Directors. The 
determination of the remuneration for Non-Executive Directors is based on their experience, qualifications 
and level of responsibilities.

	
	 No Director shall participate or vote on the deliberations and decisions concerning his/her own remuneration.

	 Details of the Remuneration Policy are available for reference on the Company’s corporate website at 
www.amtel.com.my.

	 The Board is of the view that the remuneration package of the Senior Management shall be determined 
based on the criteria set under the Remuneration Policy approved by the Group CEO with the consultation 
of the Human Resources department.

	 Remuneration Committee

	 The Remuneration Committee plays an essential role in overseeing the quality of the remuneration for 
Directors by ensuring the remuneration decisions remunerate the Directors fairly and responsibly, and that 
it reflects the commitment of the Director concerned.

	 The members of the Remuneration Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall comprise a 
majority of Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting during the 
financial year ended 30 November 2023 and the attendance of the members is as follows:-

Name of Members Designation
No. of Meeting 

Attended
Ir. Chew Yook Boo Chairman/ Independent Non-Executive 

Director
1/1 (100%)

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin 
Tunku Rijaludin

Member / Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Chairman

1/1 (100%)

Ms. Ang Mei Ping
(Appointed on 24 May 2023)

Member / Independent Non-Executive 
Director

1/1 (100%)

	 The Remuneration Committee is primarily empowered by its Terms of Reference to perform the following:-

•	 Periodically review the Remuneration Policy for Directors pertaining to the remuneration of Directors; 
•	 To assist the Board in the implementation of the Remuneration Policy for Directors to ensure the 

remuneration packages are determined on the basis of the Directors’ merits, qualifications, 
competency, responsibilities, contributions and experiences, having regard to the Company’s 
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

III.	 REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

	 Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

•	 To review and recommend to the Board the remuneration packages for the Executive Directors, 
Group CEO, and Non-Executive Directors in all its forms, drawing from outside advice if necessary; 
and 

•	 To carry out any other duties and responsibilities as may be delegated or defined by the Board from 
time to time. 

	 The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is available for reference on the Company’s 
corporate website at www.amtel.com.my.

	 The details of the aggregate remuneration of the Directors and Senior Management for the financial year 
ended 30 November 2023 are as follows:-

(a)	  Aggregate Remuneration of Each Director:- 

(i) 	 Received from Amtel Holdings Berhad
 

 	  	 Company   

					     Meeting 	  Statutory 	 Benefits 
		  Fees	 Salaries	 Bonus	 Allowance	Contributions 	 in-kind 	 Total 
	 Name of Directors	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	 RM’000
 
	 Non-Executive Directors 							     
	 YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel
	 Bin Tunku Rijaludin   	 67.6	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 69.6
	  Mr. Siow Hock Lee* 	 27.7	 –	 –	 1.2	 –	 –	 28.9
	  Ir. Chew Yook Boo 	 62.4	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 64.4
	  Ang Mei Ping#	 34.9	 –	 –	 0.8	 –	 –	 35.7

 		  192.6	 –	 –	 6.0	 –	 –	 198.6

	 Executive Directors 							     
	 Dato’ Koid Hun Kian 	 –	 431.0	 60.0	 2.0	 20.4	 19.1	 532.5
	 Mr. Lim Hun Teik  	 –	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 2.0
	 Mr. Koid Siang Loong	 –	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 2.0

		  –	 431.0	 60.0	 6.0	 20.4	 19.1	 536.5

	  Total 	 192.6	 431.0	 60.0	 12.0	 20.4	 19.1	 735.1
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

III.	 REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

	 Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

(a)	  Aggregate Remuneration of Each Director:- 
	

(ii)	 Received on Group Basis 
				  

		  Group 

	  	  	  	  	 Meeting 	  Statutory 	 Benefits 
		  Fees	 Salaries	 Bonus	 Allowance	Contributions 	 in-kind 	 Total 
	 Name of Directors	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	  RM’000 	 RM’000
	
	 Non-Executive Directors 						    
	 YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel
	 Bin Tunku Rijaludin 	 98.8	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 100.8
	 Mr. Siow Hock Lee* 	 51.7	 –	 –	 1.2	 –	 –	 52.9
	 Ir. Chew Yook Boo 	 62.4	 –	 –	 2.0	 –	 –	 64.4
	 Ang Mei Ping#	 34.9	 –	 –	 0.8	 –	 –	 35.7

 		  247.8	 –	 –	 6.0	 –	 –	 253.8

	 Executive Directors 							     
	 Dato’ Koid Hun Kian 	 –	 431.0	 60.0	 2.0	 20.4	 19.1	 532.5
	 Mr. Lim Hun Teik 	 –	 288.5	 26.4	 2.0	 39.0	 8.8	 364.7
	 Mr. Koid Siang Loong	 –	 258.6	 23.8	 2.0	 35.0	 -	 319.4

		  –	 978.1	 110.2	 6.0	 94.4	 27.9	 1,216.6

	  Total 	 247.8	 978.1	 110.2	 12.0	 94.4	 27.9	 1,470.4

*	 Retired on 24 May 2023
#	 Appointed on 24 May 2023 

(b)	 Remuneration of Senior Management 

Remuneration Bands  Senior Personnel 
RM150,001-RM200,000 1
RM300,001-RM350,000 1
RM350,001-RM400,000 1
RM500,001-RM550,000 1

		  				  
	Note: Successive bands of RM50,000 are not shown entirely as they are not represented.

	 Currently, the Company has only four (4) senior personnel. The aggregate remuneration paid to the 
top four (4) senior personnel (including salaries, bonuses, benefits-in-kind and statutory contributions) 
for the financial year under review are provided in bands of RM50,000 based on the number of senior 
personnel in those bands instead of on a named basis due to confidentiality and sensitivity of each 
remuneration package. These senior personnel are the Group CEO, Group Chief Operating Officer 
and CEO of subsidiaries.

  
	 The Board through the Remuneration Committee will ensure that the remuneration of the Senior 

Management is commensurate with their key performance achievements and the performance of 
the Company.
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

I.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Ir. Chew Yook Boo, an Independent Non-Executive Director while 
the Chairman of the Board is YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin, the Non-Independent Non-
Executive Chairman.

	 All members of the Audit Committee have undertaken and will continue to undertake continuous 
professional to keep themselves abreast of the relevant developments in accounting and auditing 
standards, practices and rules.

	 The Audit Committee’s task is to assist the Board in discharging its statutory duties and responsibilities relating 
to risk management and accounting and reporting practices of the Company and oversee compliance 
with the relevant rules and regulations governing listed companies. The Audit Committee is relied upon 
by the Board to amongst others, provide advice in the areas of financial reporting, external audit, internal 
control environment and internal audit process, review of related party transactions as well as conflict of 
interest situations.

	 The Audit Committee has full access to both the Internal and External Auditors who, in turn, have access 
at all times to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition and summary of works of the Audit 
Committee during the financial year ended 30 November 2023 are as disclosed in the Audit Committee 
Report of this Annual Report.

	 None of the Audit Committee members was a former partner of the external audit firm of the Company 
i.e., the former partners of the audit firm and/or affiliate firm (including those providing advisory services, tax 
consulting, etc.). In line with the MCCG, the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee stipulates that a 
former partner of the external audit firm of the Company shall not be appointed as a member of the Audit 
Committee until the lapse of at least three (3) years cooling-off period.

	 The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s corporate website at www.
amtel.com.my.

	 Assessment of Auditors

	 The Board through the Audit Committee has established a formal and transparent relationship with the 
Group’s Auditors, both Internal and External Auditors in seeking their professional advice. From time to time, 
the Auditors highlighted to the Audit Committee and the Board matters that require the Audit Committee’s 
and the Board’s attention.

	 The Audit Committee meets the External Auditors at least once a year without the presence of Management 
and Executive Directors to exchange independent views on matters which require the Audit Committee’s 
attention. The Audit Committee also meets additionally with the External Auditors whenever it deems 
necessary. The services provided by External Auditors include statutory audits and non-audit services. The 
terms of engagement and fees for the External and Internal Auditors are reviewed by the Audit Committee 
and subsequently recommended to the Board for approval.

	 The Audit Committee assesses the effectiveness of the External Auditors as well as the independence 
and objectivity of the External Auditors. In its assessment, the Audit Committee considered several factors, 
which included competency, audit quality and resources of the firm.

	 Written assurance shall be obtained from the External Auditors annually, confirming their independence in 
accordance with the By-laws of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. The External Auditors provide such 
declaration in their annual audit plan presented to the Audit Committee prior to the commencement of 
the audit for a particular financial year.
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

I.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

	 Assessment of Auditors (Cont’d)

	 Based on the results of the assessment for the financial year under review, the Audit Committee is satisfied 
with the quality of services, adequacy of resources provided, independence, objectivity and professionalism 
demonstrated by the External Auditors in carrying out their functions.

	 A summary of works and the roles of the Audit Committee in relation to both Internal and External Auditors 
are described in the Audit Committee Report as set out on pages 50 and 53 of this Annual Report.

II.	 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

	 Risk Management and Internal Control

	 The Board is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal 
control system. Risk management is embedded in the Group’s operations and management systems. The 
Board with the assistance of the outsourced internal audit function has established processes for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks affecting the core businesses of the Group.

	 The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control as set out on pages 54 to 57 of this Annual Report 
provides an overview of the state of risk management activities within the Group.

	 The Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent external firm of consultants. The Audit 
Committee reviews and approves the internal audit plan, which is ascertained based on the key risk areas 
and core business operations of the Group. Further details of the activities of the internal audit function and 
the state of internal controls within the Group are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 52 and 
53 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

Communication with Stakeholders

The Company is committed to establishing a direct line of communication with shareholders and investors through 
timely dissemination of information on the Group’s performance and operations via the distribution of annual 
reports and relevant circulars, the release of quarterly financial results, press releases and announcements.

The AGMs of the Company and any other meetings of the shareholders represent the principal forum for 
dialogue and interaction with all shareholders and investors. The shareholders are given the opportunity and 
time to participate in the open question and answer session with regard to the agenda items of the general 
meeting or other concerns over the Group’s businesses as a whole. The Chairman, Group CEO, other Board 
Committees Chairmen, Senior Management team and External Auditors are available during the general 
meeting to respond to the shareholders’ queries.

In order to maintain a high level of transparency and to effectively address any issues or concerns, the Group has 
a dedicated electronic email, ahb@amtel.com.my, to which stakeholders can direct their queries or concerns.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS (CONT’D)

Conduct of General Meetings

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the AGMs of the Company. The Company despatches its 
notice of AGM to shareholders at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the AGM of the Company, in advance of 
the notice period as required under the Constitution of the Company and MMLR of Bursa Securities. The additional 
time given to the shareholders allows them to make necessary arrangements to attend and participate either 
in person, by a corporate representative, by proxy or by the attorney.

The Company has also removed the limit on the number of proxies to be appointed by an exempt authorised 
nominee with shares in the Company for Omnibus account to allow greater participation of beneficial owners of 
shares at general meetings of the Company. The Constitution of the Company further entitles a member to vote 
in person, by a corporate representative, by proxy or by the attorney. Essentially, a corporate representative, 
proxy or attorney shall be entitled to vote as if they were a member of the Company.

All the Directors, including the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration 
Committee attend the general meetings to allow the shareholders to raise questions and clarify any issues they 
may have relating to each resolution tabled for approval.

Poll Voting

Under Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company ensures that any resolution set out in 
the notice of any general meeting or in any notice of resolution which may properly be moved and is intended 
to be moved at any general meeting is voted by poll.

For this purpose, the share registrar will be appointed as the Poll Administrator and an independent scrutineer 
will be appointed to validate the vote cast at the general meeting. The poll results of the general meeting will 
be announced to Bursa Securities on the same day for the benefit of all shareholders.

Corporate Disclosure Policy and Procedures

The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of transparency, accountability and integrity in 
the disclosure of all material information on the Company to the investing public in an accurate, clear and timely 
manner in accordance with the corporate disclosure requirements as set out in the MMLR of Bursa Securities and 
the guidance as set out in the Corporate Disclosure Guide issued by Bursa Securities.

The Board has ensured that relevant disclosure requirements required by Bursa Securities are complied with. In 
order to augment the process of disclosure, the Company has established its own website at www.amtel.com.
my which allows shareholders and the public access to the Company’s announcements, corporate information, 
financial information, annual reports, corporate governance and such other relevant information.

Compliance Statement

The Board has deliberated and reviewed this CG Statement and is satisfied that during the financial year ended                               
30 November 2023, the Company has complied with the best practices in MCCG on the application of the 
principles and best practices in corporate governance, except for those departures highlighted in the Corporate 
Governance Report 2023. 

This CG Statement was approved by the Board on 4 March 2024.
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SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE

In our organisation, we are strongly guided by our business sustainability initiatives and strategy and endeavour 
to embed these initiatives in all aspects of our business operations for long term success at the same time 
maintaining sound corporate governance.

We remain committed in integrating the highest standards of governance into our sustainability initiatives and in 
the conduct of our day-to-day operations across all the business segments. 

We are involved in Information & Communication Technology (“ICT”), Telecommunications, Infrastructure 
& Services (“TIS”) and Others. This Sustainability Statement (“Statement”) covers the economic, social and 
governance (“ESG”) initiatives and efforts undertaken by Amtel Holdings Berhad (“AMTEL/the Company”) and 
our subsidiaries (“AMTEL Group/the Group”) in the financial year ended 30 November 2023 (“FYE 2023”). All 
other associated companies have not been included as we do not have control over them.

As we progress along the journey of sustainability, we are taking steps to improve our internal capabilities in 
promoting, managing and implementing sustainability practices and report on the progress of our Group’s 
sustainability related activities. 

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK AND GOVERNANCE

Our Board of Directors (“Board”) plays a key role in supporting sustainability initiatives. Our Group Chief Executive 
Officer and management team are responsible for identifying and managing ESG risks and opportunities, as well 
as measuring our Group’s sustainability performance. 

A high-level committee namely Sustainability Management Committee (“SMC”) has been established since we 
embarked into sustainability initiatives to keep our journey on the right track. The SMC comprising predominantly 
personnel from the senior management is responsible to look into the various aspects of fulfilling our Group’s 
obligation and commitment, for setting the overall corporate sustainability strategy and to ensure an effective 
approach in the adoption and implementation of sustainability policy and practices. To effectively discharge its 
responsibilities, the SMC is supported by a sub-committee, i.e. the Sustainability Working Group (SWG) represented 
by various personnel such as Heads of Departments, Operations Managers and Accounts Executives from the 
various departments across all business segments. The SWG is responsible to drive, monitor the implementation 
and report the ESG initiatives to the SMC. The SWG is further divided into different sub-groups based on their area 
of focus. 

The sustainability governance is reviewed and refined as and when necessary for greater effectiveness and 
efficiency.
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SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK AND GOVERNANCE (cont’d)

The sustainability governance is reviewed and refined as and when necessary for greater effectiveness and 
efficiency. 

The chart below shows our Sustainability Framework and Governance structure. The Board plays the role as the 
highest governance body, providing the overall direction of the sustainability initiatives.

SUSTAINABILITY
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

We acknowledge that a synergetic relationship with our various internal and external stakeholders is crucial to 
achieve sustainable growth and continuous success in our Group’s business. 
 
We engages with our principal stakeholder groups regularly through various approaches in their respective 
interest areas and concerns as summarized in the table below.

Stakeholder Topic of Interest Methods of Engagement Frequencies
Investors/
Shareholders

•	 Transparent reporting
•	 Business strategy & 

plans
•	 Corporate governance
•	 Financial performance

•	 Quarterly & other 
announcements

• 	 Annual report
•	 Corporate website, 

AGM & Extraordinary 
General Meeting

• 	 Quarterly
• 	 Annually
• 	 As notified and/or 

announced 

Customers •	 Quality, reliability & 
competitive pricing of 
services & products

•	 Customer satisfaction
•	 Timely delivery
•	 Payment & other terms

•	 Operational meetings 
& feedback sessions

•	 Corporate functions & 
events

•	 Annual customer 
satisfaction survey

•	 Survey for product 
research and 
development

•	 Monthly or 
continuous 
(as and when 
required)
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (cont’d)

We engages with our principal stakeholder groups regularly through various approaches in their respective 
interest areas and concerns as summarized in the table below. (Cont’d)

Stakeholder Topic of Interest Methods of Engagement Frequencies
Employee •	 Compensation & 

benefits
•	 Work-life balance & 

staff interaction
•	 Career growth & 

advancement
•	 Training & 

development 
•	 Occupational health & 

safety 

•	 Internal and external 
training programs 

•	 Project & operational 
meetings

•	 Internal audits
•	 Staff induction & 

performance appraisal
•	 Annual employee’s 

satisfaction survey
•	 Company functions 

& staff engagement 
activities

•	 Monthly, annually 
or continuous 
(as and when 
required)

Regulators, authorities 
& other government 
bodies

•	 Statutory compliance
•	 Corporate governance
•	 Permits & licenses

•	 Announcements/
necessary reporting

•	 Annual payments, 
filings & returns

•	 Correspondences 
via circulars, mails or 
emails

•	 Seminars, dialogues, 
workshops & forums

•	 Appointments 

•	 Annually, 
quarterly, monthly 
or continuous 
(as and when 
required)

Suppliers •	 Product & service 
quality & reliability

•	 Credit and trading 
terms

•	 Reputation-related 
matters

•	 Suppliers performance 
assessment

•	 Appointments – 
vendors selection and 
background search

•	 Corporate functions & 
events

•	 Annually and 
continuous 
(as and when 
required)

Local community •	 Corporate Social 
Responsibilities

•	 Corporate functions & 
events

•	 Annually or 
as and when 
required

SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT
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MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS

Our Group has identified material sustainability matters as those that reflect our organization’s significant ESG 
impacts or matters that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of the stakeholders.

The following are some of the methods used by AMTEL Group to identify Material Sustainable Matters:-

•	 Reference to the Reporting Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia – Appendix A: Selecting your themes and 
indicators;

•	 Reading articles and sustainability reports of other listed companies;
•	 Discussions, meetings and brainstorming sessions with HOD, internal & external auditors and other 

professional consultants, e.g. valuers and architects;
•	 Inputs/specifications from various stakeholders; 
•	 Commentary and inputs from Board members during their review of the sustainability statement; and
•	 Reference to Malaysia’s Budget in key areas related to environmental sustainability and Green Technologies.

We carry out reviews on these matters periodically against the emerging business environment and the changes 
in the global and local trends. Our aim is to ensure that we will improve over the years in addressing these matters. 
Our Group’s Material Sustainability Matters and approaches are discussed in the paragraphs that follows.

OUR IMPACT ON THE ECONOMY

We acknowledge the impact of our business activities and the importance of achieving a practical balance of 
optimal financial performance, responsible stewardship of our environment and the well-being of our community. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ETHICAL PRACTICES

We are committed to uphold the principles of sound governance and ethical business practices that have been 
embedded into our Group’s working culture to ensure accountability, transparency and integrity across our 
operations to maintain our stakeholders’ confidence. Our integrity initiatives are upheld by our Group’s Code 
of Conduct and Ethnics for Directors and Employees, Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption Policy and the Whistle 
Blowing Policy. 

These policies have been made known to our employees via internal circulation, in house awareness trainings 
and electronic version which are available at the Company’s website. In addition, all directors and staff have 
signed the declaration forms to indicate that they undertake to comply with the relevant Anti-Bribery and 
Corruption laws and best practices. 

DIRECT ECONOMIC VALUE

One of AMTEL Group’s financial objectives is to pursue a sustainable business growth and generating long-term 
value for our stakeholders.

We have a viable business that contributes positively in strengthening the Malaysian economy. The economic 
value generated from our operations has been equitably distributed to the stakeholders such as suppliers, 
employees, financial institutions, investors and tax authorities. 

For the past five financial years, our financial performance is summarised as follows:- 

FYE 2023 FYE 2022 FYE 2021 FYE 2020 FYE 2019
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue 71,669 60,500 54,728 56,041 63,170
Profit before tax 7,097 3,410 5,288 5,583 6,296
Tax 1,478 1,320 1,730 1.522 1.468
Profit after tax 5,619 2,090 3,558 4,061 4,828

Details of our business, products and services and economic performance for FYE 2023 are discussed in our 
Management Discussion and Analysis and the financial statements.
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OUR IMPACT ON THE ECONOMY (cont’d)

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Customers is the main pillar of our business ventures and key driver behind our business success. As such, 
engagement with customers is important for us to build a long-term sustainable partnership and business 
relationship. 

AMTEL’s primary focus is to offer innovative yet quality products and services. We ensure that our products and 
services have gone through market feasibility studies and are equipped with sustainable features that take into 
account market demand and relevant regulatory requirements. Therefore, getting customers feedbacks and 
having regular customer interactions via discussions, email communications and factory visits are key elements 
to our business growth. 

Our ICT segment continues to invest in research & development activities to ensure that our products and 
services remain competitive. Some of the activities include:-

•	 Cost-down, improved design by reducing wastage and energy consumption;
•	 Safety improvements by integrating more features into various products;
•	 Automation of services such as data collection, notifications & alerts; and
•	 Compliance to recognised standards & certifications.

PRODUCT CERTIFICATION AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

AMTEL pledges in providing our customers with products and services of the highest quality and reliability. We 
are committed towards continual quality improvement to remain competitive in this emerging industry where 
technological advancement is fast-growing. 

Our subsidiary, Amtel Cellular Sdn Bhd (“AMCSB”), has established a dedicated in-house team which oversees 
our overall quality control and assurance under our Quality Management System. 

In 2011, AMCSB was approved by Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance Limited for the certification of TS16949 
Standard and subsequently upgraded to the certification of IATF 16949:2016 in year 2018 (subsequently renewed 
in 2022).  This certification is testimony to our dedication in terms of quality towards our automotive clients in 
Malaysia and other ASEAN countries.

SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

How effective and efficient our supply chain works affects our operations. We work closely with our principal 
partners, sub-contractors, local and overseas suppliers to ensure that the materials and services procured 
conform with the standards, law and regulations relating to environmental, occupational health, safety and 
labour practices. 

We incorporate ethical practice, environmental and social considerations in developing a transparent and fair 
procurement process with our existing and potential suppliers and vendors. We always give priorities to locally 
sourced supplies in order to help boost the local economy. 

We conduct stringent evaluations of suppliers and sub-contractors prior to engaging their services. Their 
performances are monitored and reviewed regularly to ensure that sustainability is preserved. Our procurement 
and logistic team conduct regular visits and meetings at suppliers’ factories to ensure that their pricing is 
competitive, credit terms are fair and delivery is always on-time. We also constantly interact with our suppliers 
via phone calls, email communications and virtual conference calls to update on delivery schedules, products 
quality, rejections etc.. To minimize any potential disruption in supply chain, we share and exchange regulatory 
updates and latest industry information with our suppliers and business partners on a regular basis.

SUSTAINABILITY
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OUR IMPACT ON THE ECONOMY (cont’d)

GREEN TECHNOLOGY DIVISION

Under the National Sustainability Agenda, the government has been largely supportive in terms of building our 
local Electric Vehicles (“EV”) industry to reduce our country’s carbon footprint.

As our ICT segment primarily serves the local car manufacturers, we have also set up a Green Technology 
division within the Group. This division is responsible for delivering sustainable products and services catering for 
the mobility sector. Starting with our EV charging equipment, we have lined up a few more EV-related products 
and services which we target to gradually introduce to our customers as well. 

While the contribution from this division is still minimal at this moment, we expect our EV-related products and 
services will augur well with our customers’ offerings in coming years.

OUR IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT

We are mindful of our responsibility towards environmental impacts arising from our day-to-day operations. 
Therefore, we create awareness among our employees and encourage them to take a proactive role to 
preserve our environment through the following initiatives and practices:-

•	 Innovative and “Green” Products

	 As a software and Telematics solutions provider, we design our products and services integrating green 
features and innovations. Our Telematics solutions primarily aim to assist our customers in reducing travelling 
times, attaining better fuel efficiency, avoiding traffic congestion, etc., which effectively help in reducing 
carbon footprint.

•	 Energy Conservation

o	 “Green” Renewable Energy

	 AMTEL Group’s operations are all housed under our corporate building named Wisma Amtel. In line 
with our commitment to adopting good ESG principles, Wisma Amtel’s rooftop is installed with Solar 
PV system. It covers an estimated area of 380 square meters and is one of our major investments in 
renewable energy.  This solar system was approved by Tenaga Nasional Berhad on 23 March 2022 
under the Net Energy Metering Scheme and is able to generate a maximum capacity of approximately 
220 kWh per day. 

	 The Solar PV system is fully operational since mid-September 2022. As of FYE 2023, the Solar PV system 
has generated a total of 106,918.54 kWh (2022: 16,391.71 kWh), which translate into an equivalent 
total ssavings close to RM50,000 (2022: RM8,000).

Apart from that, the other energy conservation initiatives our Group practices are as follows:-

o	 Minimise water and energy consumption within our office buildings and during our operation 
processes.

o	 Turn off machines, plant or other electronic and electrical equipment, such as computers, servers, 
electric fans, air-conditioners, lightings, etc. when not in use, including during lunch breaks or recess.

o	 Our building is installed with LED lights and air-conditioner with an inverter.
o	 Encourage our staff to car pool, or take public transport when commuting to office.

SUSTAINABILITY
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OUR IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT (Cont’d)

•	 Recycle and Reduce

o	 Promote paperless office culture through the use of electronic documents in place of hard copy 
documents; mode of communication and correspondences among staff and peers are directed to 
slowly shift to paperless form.

o	 Reuse and recycle office stationeries, wherever permissible. For example, waste paper and paper 
products, soft and hard cover files are reused to reduce wastages and degradation of resources.  

o	 Production waste and leftovers are either recycled or returned to suppliers for proper disposal.

•	 End of Life Sales and IT Products 
 

o	 Obsolete and end of life products (such as wire, PCBA, plastic parts and components etc) and IT 
products (such as CPU, hard disk, laptop, tablet, router, switch etc) are disposed of to an e-waste 
disposal company certified by Department of Environmental (DOE).

OUR IMPACT ON THE SOCIETY 

WORKPLACE

Human resource is one of our Group’s biggest assets. Employees play a vital role and is one of the prioritised 
stakeholders that will have great influence towards our business success and sustainability.

o	 Employment Diversity, Retention and Succession Planning

	 We give equal employment and career growth opportunities to existing and potential employees regardless 
of age, gender, background, religion and ethnicity. However, candidates are hired based on suitability 
and competency and remuneration is based on skill, qualification, experience, job ranking and roles and 
responsibilities. 

	 AMTEL Group’s workforce profile is presented below:
	

Workforce Gender Diversity FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021 FYE 2022 FYE 2023
Male 67% 68% 57% 58% 58%
Female 33% 32% 43% 42% 42%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Age Group FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021 FYE 2022 FYE 2023
Below 30 years old 28% 40% 46% 43% 42%
30 – 50 years old 42% 38% 39% 40% 42%
Above 50 years old 30% 22% 15% 17% 16%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

	 In terms of age, 84% (FY 2022: 83%) of our staff are below 50 years old which constitute an energetic 
workforce supporting our Group’s continued business sustainability. We believe that innovative products 
and quality solutions are developed through interaction amongst employees from diverse knowledge, 
different skill sets and background.

	
	 We have put in place a succession plan to ensure continuity and healthy transition of leadership. As part of 

our Group’s succession planning, our recruitment policy focuses on bringing in young and dynamic talents 
with relevant expertise to carry the business to the next level of growth. In line with this, we offer competitive 
remuneration packages to attract, retain and motivate the right talents within our Group.

SUSTAINABILITY
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OUR IMPACT ON THE SOCIETY (CONT’D)

WORKPLACE (CONT’D)

o	 Occupational Health and Safety

	 AMTEL Group places high emphasis on the health and safety of our employees. It is vital that they stay in tip-
top working condition at all times. We are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment 
for our employees across our entire chain of operations. 

	 The safety measures in place at our 4-storeys building include providing 24 hours security guards, 
surveillance equipment and notices on safety measures at relevant work locations. We also ensure that 
fire extinguishers and lifts are maintained regularly and are in good working condition. We have set up 
our in-house Emergency Response Team which work jointly with BOMBA to conduct fire drill training to our 
employees on a regular basis.

  
	 The ICT segment has set up an internal Environment, Health and Safety (“EHS”) Committee to continuously 

review and make improvements for a cleaner, healthier and safe environment and to ensure compliance 
with all the environmental laws and EHS legislation. EHS Committee has also established a formal Safety 
and Health procedures and policies with the objective to ensure that all the emergency and spill response 
programmes are put in place to prevent and minimise injuries to our staff, visitors and contractors. We 
conduct regular in-house training for our employees on the awareness of safe work practices, especially 
the production/manufacturing teams who are exposed to hazards such as accident from sharp tools and 
moving parts at their work stations. For FYE 2023, we continued to have zero incident of accident at the 
workplace. 

o	 Employees Training and Career Development
	

Age Group FYE 2019 FYE 2020 FYE 2021 FYE 2022 FYE 2023
Below 5 years 61% 68% 79% 78% 76%
5 – 10 years 25% 17% 11% 13% 12%
Above 10 years 14% 15% 10% 9% 12%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

	 Many of our staff have served our Group for a long time. Currently 24% (FY 2022: 21%) of the present staff 
have been with us for more than five years. Some of them started from executive positions and worked their 
way up to become managers and senior management team within our group of companies. 

  
	 AMTEL Group provides regular briefing and on-the-job trainings to new recruits to equip them with the 

relevant skills and knowledge. We promote continuous learning and self- improvement to existing 
employees and develop internal talent. Staff are assigned to attend job related trainings, workshops and 
seminars to keep themselves abreast of the latest development in their respective field of professional and 
to upgrade their skills on a regular basis. Trainings are usually in the form of internal and external trainings.

	 AMTEL Group adopts a merit-based reward system, linking reward to staff contribution and performance. 
We conduct annual performance appraisal to assess employee own performance and to determine the 
appropriate level of reward. The reward may be in the form of bonus, salary revision and/or promotion, 
which quantum and level of promotion will depend on their performance. In this way, AMTEL staff have the 
opportunity to engage directly with the management to understand each other’s requirements, which we 
believe will promote transparency and two-way communication.
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OUR IMPACT ON THE SOCIETY (CONT’D)

WORKPLACE (CONT’D)

o	 Conducive workplace

	 We aim to provide a conducive work environment that promotes harmonious work culture, mutual respect, 
non-discrimination and teamwork as part of our employees’ retention efforts. We believe that motivated 
and dedicated employees are able to contribute at their optimal levels which in turn contribute effectively 
to the Group’s performance. 

	 Our staff holds monthly gatherings to celebrate their colleagues’ birthdays and annual parties during major 
festive celebrations to promote interactions among themselves. 

	 A safe and healthy workplace may avert absenteeism and do good to an employee’s morale. Our premise 
is well fitted with air-conditioners, latest IT equipment within each discussion and meeting rooms, spacious 
pantry and eating areas at each floor. For added security, all staff are provided with their own access card 
which will be used primarily to access the office premise. The employees were able to avail themselves of 
a Surau within the premise for their convenience.  

COMMUNITY

	We engage with local communities through education, charitable donations, sponsorship and support in social 
welfare initiatives. We also encourage our employees to participate in charity programmes on an individual 
capacity.

	We strive to foster a work-life balance work culture for our employees. To this end, we continue to encourage 
and support staff to participate in physical activities and regular sports activities such as badminton, bowling 
and sports tournaments.

	We believe that education is an integral component in empowering the young to become the leaders of 
tomorrow. Our Group offers short term internship programmes to students and job positions to fresh graduates 
from local higher learning institutions and universities majoring in automotive engineering technology, electronic 
engineering (automation and robotic), accounting and finance, surveying science and geomatics for various 
positions in our ICT segment.

CONCLUSION

We acknowledge that there are areas that still need improvement with respect to our sustainability initiatives 
and approaches. We will continue to improve and intensify our sustainability practices by optimising our Group’s 
existing resources.
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ADDITIONAL
COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

(a)	 Utilisation of Proceeds 

	 The Company did not raise any proceeds during the financial year ended 30 November 2023. 

(b)	 Options, Warrants of Convertible Securities Exercised

	 During the financial year ended 30 November 2023, a total of 597,750 Warrants were exercised as follows:-

Date of Conversion No. of Warrants Exercised 
(Units)

Exercised Price Per Unit  
(RM)

17.1.2023 69,000 0.65
17.3.2023 150,000 0.65
25.4.2023 85,000 0.65
28.4.2023 293,750 0.65
Total: 597,750

(c)	 Audit and Non-Audit Fees  
 
	 The fees incurred for services rendered to the Company and its subsidiaries by the Company’s External 

Auditors or a firm affiliated with the External Auditors for the financial year ended 30 November 2023 were 
as follows:- 

 
					     Group	 Company
					     RM’000	 RM’000

	 Audit Fees 				    149	 75
	 Non-Audit Fees 				    5	 5
  

(d)	 Material Contracts Involving Interests of Directors, Chief Executive who is not a Director and/or Major 
Shareholders 

 	  
	 There was no material contract entered into by the Company and/or its subsidiaries involving the interest 

of Directors, chief executive who is not a Director and/or major shareholders that are still subsisting at the 
end of the financial year or since the end of the previous financial year. 

 
(e)	 Recurrent Related Party Transactions  
 
	 The details of the recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries for 

the financial year ended 30 November 2023 are disclosed in the Note 31 to the accompanying Audited 
Financial Statements, which are shown on pages 114 and 115 of this Annual Report. 

(f)	 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

	 The LTIP which comprises the Employees Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) and the Share Grant Plan (“SGP”) 
of up to fifteen per centum (15%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding treasury 
shares of the Company, if any) for the eligible person(s) during the LTIP period, approved by the shareholders 
at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2022 was implemented on 3 
October 2022. The LTIP will continue to be in force for a period of five (5) years until 2 October 2027. During 
the financial year ended 30 November 2023, no options were granted under the ESOS and no shares were 
granted under the SGP.
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The Board of Directors of Amtel Holdings Berhad (“the Board”) is pleased to present the report on the Audit 
Committee for the financial year ended 30 November 2023.

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

The Audit Committee presently comprises the following members: 

Ir. Chew Yook Boo 
Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director 

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin
Member/Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Ms. Ang Mei Ping
Member/Independent Non-Executive Director*
*member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 

The Audit Committee was established on 1 August 1997. The Company has complied with Paragraphs 15.09 and 
15.10 of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), 
which require all the Audit Committee members to be Non-Executive Directors, with a majority of them being 
Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. In addition, one (1) of the members of the Audit Committee is also a member of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in non-compliance with Paragraphs 15.09(1) and 
15.10 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company shall fill the vacancy within three (3) months pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.19 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

The Audit Committee held a total of five (5) meetings during the financial year ended 30 November 2023 and 
the attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

Name	 Attendance of meetings
Ir. Chew Yook Boo 				    5/5
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin				    5/5	
Mr. Siow Hock Lee (Ceased office on 24 May 2023)			   3/3*	
Ms. Ang Mei Ping (Appointed on 24 May 2023)				    2/2*

*	 Reflects the number of Audit Committee meetings attended during the financial year under review from 
the date of appointment/up to the date of cessation				  

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the financial year under review, the Audit Committee carried out its duties and functions in accordance with 
its Terms of Reference. The activities of the Audit Committee include the following: 

(1)	 Financial Reporting

(a)	 Reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results of the Group including draft announcements 
pertaining thereto before recommending the same for the Board of Directors’ (“Board”) approval 
and release to Bursa Securities.

	 The above review was performed to ensure that the Company’s quarterly financial reporting and 
disclosures present a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position and are in compliance with 
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and applicable 
disclosure provisions of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

AUDIT
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(1)	 Financial Reporting (Cont’d)

(b)	 Reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in respect of the financial statements of the 
Company and Group and to ensure they presented a true and fair view of the Company’s financial 
position and performance for the year and compliance with regulatory requirements.

(2)	 Internal Audit

(a)	 Reviewed and discussed with the Internal Auditors on their annual internal audit plan and audit fees 
to ensure adequate scope, competency, resources and comprehensive coverage of the activities 
of the Group.

(b)	 Reviewed and discussed with the Internal Auditors on the audit findings and recommendations of 
the audit findings to strengthen the Group’s internal control system and ensure the risk issues were 
adequately addressed.

(c)	 Evaluated the performance of the internal audit function via a set of questionnaires covering the 
effectiveness, adequacy and suitability of the Internal Auditors.

(3)	 Enterprise Risk Management

(a)  Reviewed the Enterprise Risk Management Report for the year 2022/2023.

(4)	 External Audit

(a)	 Reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors the audit planning memorandum covering the 
audit objectives and plan, audit approach, key audit matters and relevant technical pronouncements 
and accounting standards.

(b)	 Evaluated the performance and assessed the suitability, objectivity and independence of the External 
Auditors during the year via a set of questionnaires covering the calibre of the external audit firm; 
quality of processes/performance; skills and expertise including industrial knowledge; independence 
and objectivity; audit scope and planning; audit fees; and their communications with the Audit 
Committee.

	 The Audit Committee received written assurance from the External Auditors confirming their 
independence in accordance with the By-laws of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

(c)	 Recommended to the Board the re-appointment of External Auditors and their remuneration.

(d)	 Held a private session with the External Auditors without the presence of Executive Directors and 
Management to exchange independent views on matters that require the Audit Committee’s 
attention.

(5)	 Related Party Transactions

(a)	 Reviewed and discussed on a quarterly basis the related party transaction(s) and recurrent related 
party transaction(s) entered into by the Group and any conflicts of interest situation that may arise 
within the Group. 

	 The above is to ensure that the transactions are fair and reasonable to, and are not detriment of, the 
minority shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’d)

(6)	 Other Matters

(a)	 Reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which provided an overview of 
internal controls within the Group prior to the Board’s approval for inclusion in the Annual Report. 

(b)	 Reviewed the Audit Committee Report and recommended the same for the Board’s approval for 
inclusion in the Annual Report.

(c)	 Reviewed the conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 

The internal audit function is set up with the objectives to assist the Board and Audit Committee in providing an 
independent assessment and assurance of the Group’s state of the internal control system. 

The internal audit functions are summarised as follows:

•	 To ensure that the Group has adequately addressed the key components of corporate governance, risk 
management and internal control requirements;

•	 To ensure that the Management of the Group maintains a sound system of internal control to safeguard 
the Group’s assets and the interest of shareholders;

•	 To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and internal control;

•	 To identify principal risks and to ensure the implementation of appropriate internal control and mitigation 
measures;

•	 To perform regular reviews of the operational processes and to provide an independent assurance on the 
adequacy and efficiency of financial and operating controls of the Group;

•	 To ensure the reliability and integrity of the financial and operational information and other management 
data that the reporting system is in place;

•	 To assist the Audit Committee in reviewing the internal audit programmes and results of the internal audit 
process and where necessary, ensure that appropriate actions are taken on recommendations of the 
internal audit function;

•	 To assist the Board and Management in instilling and sustaining the internal control system in a disciplined 
and systematic manner; and

•	 To assist the employees in better understanding, managing and communicating risk and related controls 
in an integrated approach.

The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee and undertake internal audit functions on a systematic 
and cyclic basis and on selected business processes. The Internal Auditors adopt a risk-based approach and 
prepare its audit plan based on the risk profiles of the major business segments of the Group. The internal audit 
plan is assessed annually by the Audit Committee and the Board to ensure the plan remains relevant and aligns 
with the Group’s key business risks and business strategies which may change in response to the dynamics of 
its operating environment. The Internal Auditors table the results of their review to the Audit Committee on a 
half-yearly basis. The results of the Internal Auditors’ review containing audit findings, Management’s responses 
and recommended corrective actions are presented to the Audit Committee for discussions and deliberations. 
Follow-up reviews on previous audit issues are carried out in order to ensure that the recommendations made 
by the Internal Auditors on areas of improvement identified are adopted or necessary corrective actions have 
been or are being taken by Management. 

AUDIT
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (CONT’D) 

The Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent external firm of professional internal auditors, 
PKM Partners (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“PKM”). PKM assists the Board and Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities 
by providing an independent and objective advisory service and evaluation of risks and controls in the auditable 
activities to ensure a sound system of internal controls is implemented across all business segments. PKM reports 
directly and independently to the Audit Committee on its activities based on the approved annual internal 
audit plan.

PKM’s Internal Control Review methodology is based upon the international recognised internal control framework 
i.e., Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), as recommended by Bursa 
Securities. This will also include Information System Reviews in accordance with Bursa Securities’ Information 
Technology (“IT”) Security Standards and Procedures. PKM will also benchmark IT Processes against international 
standards under Control Objectives for Information and Related Technology to ensure the adequacy of controls 
and security.
 
For the financial year under review, PKM conducted the following internal audit assignments in the discharge of 
its responsibilities:
 
(i)	 carried out the annual review of the Group’s enterprise risk assessment focusing mainly on its core business 

segment of Information & Communication Technology (“ICT”) and reviewed the operations, Standard 
Operating Procedures (“SOP”), internal control and the financial reporting functions of Infrastructure and 
Services segment;

(ii)	 carried out the review on the inventory management and inventory accounting of the ICT segment to 
ensure SOPs and system of internal controls are established for inventory accuracy and completeness and 
are properly accounted for in the Enterprise Resource Planning system; and

(iii)	 Environmental, Sustainability and Governance (“ESG”) – PKM assisted in forming of ESG Working Group 
Committee and ESG Volunteer Group; provision of training sessions to ESG Working Group Committee 
and ESG Volunteer Group; participated, adviced and led ESG Committee Meeting; monitored ESG 
implementation process; supported Management in selection, forming, monitoring and tracking of Key 
Performance Indicators; and reviewed the entire performance appraisal system.  

Based on PKM’s review, several weaknesses in internal controls were identified and addressed. However, none 
of the weaknesses noted have resulted in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties to the Group. The costs 
incurred in relation to the internal audit function of the Group for the financial year ended 30 November 2023 
was RM60,344 (For information, FY2022: RM48,917).

The associated companies have not been dealt with as part of the Group for this report. The Group’s system 
of internal controls does not apply to associated companies where the Group does not have any direct 
control over their operations. However, the Group’s interest is served through representation on the boards 
of the respective associated companies and the Board meets regularly to discuss and review the financial 
performance of these companies when necessary. The financial performance of these associated companies 
is provided regularly to the Management and Board via the Group’s monthly financial reporting framework to 
safeguard the investment of the Group.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the Group’s Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control (the “Statement”) which outlined the scope and key elements of risk management and internal 
control system of the Group for the financial year ended 30 November 2023. This Statement has been prepared 
in accordance with paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and as guided by the Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control: 
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Guidelines”). 

THE BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management 
framework as well as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of these systems to safeguard shareholders’ 
investments and the Group’s assets.

However, in view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of risk management and internal control, these 
systems are designed to manage rather than to eliminate all the risks that may impede the achievement of the 
Group’s business objectives and goals. Hence, such systems can only provide a reasonable and not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or errors.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework is outlined in its Enterprise Risk Management Policy. It is the policy 
of the Group to achieve best practices in the management of all significant risks that threatens to adversely 
impact the Group, which includes its business strategies, operation and key functional areas, employees, assets 
and its customers. The Group adopts the COSO Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) methodology to cultivate 
and promote the risk ownership and continuous monitoring of key risks identified. 

The Board through the ERM Committee (“ERMC”) will continually review risk management framework and 
ensures appropriate action is taken to remedy any significant weaknesses identified from the review. The ERMC is 
headed by the Group Chief Executive Officer and comprises Strategic Business Unit (“SBU”) heads together with 
senior management and is assisted by the internal auditors to determine and communicate policy, objectives, 
procedures and guidelines. The ERMC also directs and monitors the implementation of ERM practices and 
activities throughout the Group.

The ERM was established with the following main objectives:-
•	 To ensure the ERM is adequate, adopted and practiced throughout the Group;
•	 To ensure ERM framework is clearly communicated to all levels of employees and to promote a culture of 

participation in the risk management process;
•	 To protect the Group from significant adverse impact arising from incidents, to reduce its exposure, mitigate 

and control these losses;
•	 To ensure that the Group fulfills its mission, perform its key functions and meet its business objectives; 
•	 To ensure that the Group adopts the COSO’s principles and methodologies to determine the risk appetite; 

and
•	 To oversee the implementation of the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics (“COBE”), Anti Bribery 

and Corruption (“ABC”) Policy and ABC Manual, and to put in place effective system to counter bribery 
and corruption by setting up relevant internal control mechanism to prevent and deter any potential 
bribery and corruption related activities.

The Group’s ERM is an on-going process which involves the identifying, evaluating and managing significant 
business risks affecting the achievement of the Group’s objectives. The ERM is in place during the year under 
review and up to the date of approval of this Statement for the purpose of inclusion in the Annual Report. ERM 
will form part of the SBU heads and management team’s responsibilities. It is integrated and embedded into the 
Group’s strategic and business planning exercise, operational processes and management systems, as guided 
by the Group’s policies and procedures.
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THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT’D)

In respect of managing a special or specific risk, the responsibility may be assigned to a nominated senior officer 
of the Group, or a committee chairman, as determined by the ERMC when necessary. Consultants may be 
retained from time to time to advise and assist in the risk management process, or management of specific risks 
or categories of risk. 

Employees of the Group at every work level are recognised as having a role in the risk management awareness 
and in the process of identification of risks. To enhance the risk management process, the Group reviews regularly 
the existing risks and identifies new risks with the involvement of selected staff to encourage their participation 
in the ERM process.

The ERM policy enables the management and the Board to share a common model in the effective 
communication and evaluation of principal business risks faced by the Group. The risks associated with key 
business units are identified, assessed and categorised to highlight the root causes of risks, their impacts and 
the likelihood of occurrence. Risk profiles for the key business units are presented to the ERMC and the Board 
for deliberation and approval for adoption. Appropriate action plans are formulated to address any key risks 
identified by management depending on the magnitude of each risk. The SBU heads also prepare action plans 
to address and manage the key risks and control issues as highlighted by the internal auditors. 

The Board with the assistance of the Audit Committee, the ERMC and internal auditors will re-assess the 
adequacy and effectiveness of these systems and where appropriate updates them when there are changes 
in the Group’s business environment.

KEY ELEMENTS OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal control system are categorised as follows: -

(1)	 Control Environment and Activities

(i)	 Standard operating policies and procedures (“SOP”)

	 Various SOPs are in place which serve as a guidance for the Group’s daily operations. These SOPs 
are reviewed and adjusted as and when necessary to ensure they are operating effectively and 
continue to support the Group’s growing business activities.

	 IATF 16949:2016 Quality Management Systems has been implemented for the Group’s key operating 
subsidiary, namely Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd. where documented internal procedures and standard 
operating procedures have been put in place, guiding employees in carrying out their functions 
effectively. Internal quality audits are carried out by qualified management representative and 
annual surveillance audits are conducted by an independent certification body to warrant a high 
assurance of compliance.

(ii)	 Organisation structure and authorisation procedures

	 The Group has a defined organisational structure which clearly lay down the lines of responsibility, 
accountability, authority limits of personnel at different levels and approval procedures for the various 
divisions of the Group’s business.

(iii)	 Whistle blowing policy and procedures
	
	 A policy on whistle blowing has been established to facilitate the reporting of activities or practices 

which are in violation of the Group’s work rules and policies in a safe and confidential manner.

(iv)	 Anti-bribery and corruption policy
	 The Group has established the anti-bribery and corruption policy and manual and is committed to 

conducting the business ethically, as well as complying with all applicable laws in all jurisdiction in 
which it operates.	
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KEY ELEMENTS OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)

(1)	 Control Environment and Activities (Cont’d)

(v)	 Code of conduct (the ‘Code”) and human resource management policies and regulations (the “HR 
Policy”)

	 The Code and HR Policy covers all levels of management and employees and serves as a source for 
easy reference on all personnel matters of the Group. They are reviewed from time to time to ensure 
continuity in the business management processes and support the Group’s business objectives.

(2)	 Information and Communication

(i)	 Meetings are held at business units and divisional levels with the present of the Chief Executive Officers 
(“CEOs”) and/or Chief Operating Officer (“COO”), discuss and review operational and financial issues 
which require timely decision making and action plan.

(ii)	 Financial and key operation reports are provided to the senior management and SBU heads on 
a monthly basis for monitoring and execution of business plans. The Group also operates an ERP 
and information system that provides for transactions to be captured, compiled and reported. The 
information system, secured intranet and electronic mail system are used as a tool for communication, 
dissemination and sharing of operation data, management information and knowledge.

(3)	 Review and Monitoring Process

(i)	 There is a process for setting monthly, quarterly and/or yearly targets, which include amongst others 
sales forecast, planned projects expenses and capital expenditure for key business operations that 
require the review and approval by respective CEO and COO. 

(ii)	 Actual performance is monitored against the agreed targets and identification of significant variance 
is highlighted to senior management for prompt corrective action plan, when necessary. Senior 
management, CEO and COO involve closely of the Group’s daily operations and visits the projects 
sites on a regular basis.

(iii)	 Quarterly monitoring of the Group’s results by the Board, who plays an active role in discussing, 
deliberating and reviewing any new business ventures, strategies, significant performance and 
significant business risks faced by the Group.

(iv)	 Provision of internal and external training and development programmes to enhance employees’ 
competency and skill set. In house awareness training conducted to educate and update workforce 
about the new regulations and laws in place and the new policies or procedures the Group has in 
place and its compliance.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
[continued]



ANNUAL REPORT 
2023AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD

57

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee assists the Board in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management 
and internal control system in the Company. The Board has outsourced its internal audit functions to PKM Partners 
(M) Sdn. Bhd. (“PKM”), which reports directly and independently to the Audit Committee.

A description of the internal audit functions and activities of PKM during the financial year ended 30 November 
2023 can be found in the Audit Committee Report as set out on page 52 and 53 of this Annual Report.

Upon completion of their audit review, the Internal Auditor submits a report to the Audit Committee on their audit 
findings, such as internal control weaknesses identified as well as recommendations or corrective measures for 
the Audit Committee’s review and approval, or for future deliberation with the SBU Heads/Board.

The associated companies have not been dealt with as part of the Group for the purpose of this Statement. 
The Group’s system of internal controls does not apply to associated companies where the Group does not 
have any direct control over their operations. However, the Group’s interest is served through representation on 
the boards of the respective associated companies and the Board meets to discuss and review the financial 
performance of these companies when necessary. The financial performance of these associated companies 
is provided to the Management and Board via the Group’s monthly financial reporting framework with the 
objective of safeguarding the investment of the Group.

ASSURANCE AND CONCLUSION

The Board has received assurance from the Group Chief Executive Officer that the Group’s overall risk 
management and internal control systems have been operating adequately and effectively, in all material 
aspects based on the risk management and internal control processes adopted and have received the same 
assurance from the respective SBU heads.

Taking this assurance into consideration, the Board is of the opinion that there is an ongoing process of identifying, 
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group. The Group’s systems of risk management and 
internal control were satisfactory and adequate to safeguard the interest of the shareholders and the Group’s 
assets. There were no significant internal control deficiencies that result in material losses, contingencies or 
uncertainties requiring disclosure in the Annual Report. The Board and management are cognisant that the 
development of a sound system of internal control is an on-going process and will continually assess the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management framework and system of internal control and strengthen it in 
line with the changes and challenges in the business environment in which the Group operates in. 

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

As required by paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR of the Bursa Securities, the external auditors, Messrs. HLB Ler Lum 
Chew PLT have reviewed this Statement. Their review was performed in accordance with Audit and Assurance 
Practice Guide 3 (“AAPG3”): Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Based on the limited assurance engagement performed under AAPG3, the external auditors have reported 
to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement is not 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the 
Guidelines nor is factually inaccurate. 

This Statement was approved by the Board on 4 March 2024.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

[continued]
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DIRECTORS’  
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
IN RESPECT OF THE PREPARATION OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Paragraph 15.26(a) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad requires its 
Board of Directors (“the Directors”) make a statement explaining the Directors’ responsibility for preparing the 
annual audited financial statements.

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”) to ensure that the financial statements give 
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at the end of each financial 
year, and of their financial performance and cash flows for that financial year then ended.

The Directors are satisfied that in preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 30 November 2023, they have taken the following measures:-

• 	 adopted and reviewed the appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied;
• 	 made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
•	 ensure compliance with the application of approved accounting standards in Malaysia; and
•	 prepared it on the assumption that the Company and the Group will operate as a going concern. 

The Directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the Group and the Company maintains proper accounting 
and other records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the 
Company and in compliance with the Act. 

In addition, the Directors have also taken the necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and of the 
Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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directors’ 
REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 November 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, property investment and the provision of 
management services. 

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial Results

				    Group	C ompany
				R    M	R M

Profit for the financial year attributable to the owners of the Company		  5,619,461	 1,361,001

Dividend

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Board 
of Directors does not recommend any dividend to be paid for the financial year.

Reserves and Provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review. 

Issue of Shares and Debentures

During the financial year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company increased from 97,553,682 
ordinary shares to 98,151,432 ordinary shares by the way of the issuance of 597,750 new ordinary shares for cash 
pursuant to the exercise of warrants at an exercise price of RM0.65 per ordinary share.

Options Granted Over Unissued Shares

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year 
under review.

Warrants 

On 24 March 2021, the Company completed the issuance and listing of 48,776,330 free warrants on Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad, on the basis of one free warrant for every two existing ordinary shares, constituted 
by a Deed Poll dated 19 November 2020.

The salient terms of the free Warrants are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.
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directors’ REPORT
[continued]

Warrants (CONTINUED)

The movement in the Company's warrants during the financial year is as follows:

	 Number of warrants
		A  t 1.12.2022	A llotment	E xercised	A t 30.11.2023

Warrants		  48,776,330	 –	 (597,750)	 48,178,580

Treasury Shares 

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are repurchased and held by the Company in 
accordance with the requirement of Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

During the financial year, the Company repurchased a total of 852,900 shares from the open market at an 
average price of approximately RM0.65 per share. The total consideration paid for the repurchased shares was 
RM552,685 and it was financed by internally generated funds.

As at 30 November 2023, the Company held 2,852,900 (2022: 2,000,000) treasury shares out of its 98,151,432 
(2022: 97,553,682) issued and paid-up ordinary shares. Such treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of 
RM1,857,975 (2022: RM1,305,290).

Employee’s Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) and Share Grant Plan (“SGP”)

At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 May 2022, the Company's shareholders approved the 
establishment of a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”), which comprises the ESOS and SGP. The LTIP was 
implemented on 3 October 2022 and will continue to be in force for a period of five (5) years from the date of 
implementation and may be extended for a period of up to another 5 years provided that the tenure of the LTIP 
shall not in aggregate exceed 10 years from the date of implementation.

The salient features of the ESOS and SGP are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

No options were granted under the ESOS and no shares were granted under the SGP during the financial year.

Directors of the Company

The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year to the 
date of this report are:

YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin*
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian*
Ir. Chew Yook Boo
Koid Siang Loong*
Lim Hun Teik*
Ang Mei Ping	 (Appointed on 24 May 2023)
Siow Hock Lee*	 (Retired on 24 May 2023)

*	 Also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. 
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Directors of the Subsidiaries

The Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in office (excluding those Directors listed above) during the financial 
year and during the period commencing from the end of the financial year to the date of this report are:

Siow Hock Lee
Chin Wou Chau
Lee Chye Khern
Wong Shok Fan
Ng Shyh Kang

Directors’ Interests

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the Companies 
Act, 2016, none of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares or 
debentures in the Company or its related corporations during the financial year except as follows:

	 Number of ordinary shares
		A  t 1.12.2022	A cquired	 Disposed	A t 30.11.2023

Interest in the Company
Direct interest 
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin	 300,000	 150,000	 –	 450,000
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian		  12,429,132	 –	 –	 12,429,132
Koid Siang Loong		  3,339,599	 3,828,110	 –	 7,167,709
Lim Hun Teik		  183,000	 –	 –	 183,000

Indirect interest
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian*		  13,186,303	 3,828,110	 –	 17,014,413
Koid Siang Loong**		  7,280,250	 –	 (3,838,110)	 3,452,140

	 Number of warrants
		A  t 1.12.2022	A cquired	E xercised	A t 30.11.2023

Interest in the Company
Direct interest
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin	 150,000	 –	 (150,000)	 –
Koid Siang Loong		  1,169,799	 –	 –	 1,169,799
Lim Hun Teik		  91,500	 –	 –	 91,500

Indirect interest				  
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian*		  2,519,799	 –	 –	 2,519,799
Koid Siang Loong**		  3,211,875	 –	 –	 3,211,875

*	 This includes shares/warrants held by his spouse and/or child pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) and Section 8 of 
the Companies Act 2016; and shares/warrants held by virtue of his interest in Simfoni Kilat Sdn. Bhd. and Bai 
Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) and Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

**	 This includes shares/warrants held by his spouse pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) and Section 8 of the 
Companies Act 2016; and shares/warrants held by virtue of his interest in Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) 
Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) and Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

directors’ REPORT
[continued]
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Directors’ Interests (Continued)

By virtue of his interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 
2016 in Malaysia, YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin, Dato' Koid Hun Kian, Koid Siang Loong and Lim 
Hun Teik is deemed to have an interest in the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries to the extent that the Company 
has an interest.

Other than as stated above, none of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest 
in ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ Benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled 
to receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or 
due and receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the 
Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company 
in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement the object of 
which is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the 
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ benefits of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were as follows:

				    Group	C ompany
				R    M	R M

Directors’ remuneration:			 
- Salaries, fees and other emoluments				    1,348,015	 695,555
- Contribution to Employee Provident Fund and social security contribution		  94,372	 20,383
- Estimated monetary value of benefit-in-kind 		   	 27,975	 19,175

				    1,470,362	 735,113

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

				    Group	C ompany
				R    M	R M

HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT				    148,614	 75,000
Others				    5,000	 5,000

				    153,614	 80,000

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of subsequent event is disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements

directors’ REPORT
[continued]
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Indemnity and Insurance for Directors and Officers

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity insurance coverage and insurance premium paid 
for the Directors and officers of the Company together with its subsidiaries were RM10,000,000 and RM15,380 
respectively.

Other Statutory Information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the Directors took reasonable 
steps:

(i)	 to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of 
provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and 
that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) 	 to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business 
including the value of current assets as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company 
have been written down to an amount which the current assets might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render: 

(i)	 the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(ii)	 the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
misleading; or

(iii)	 adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company 
misleading or inappropriate; or

(iv)	 any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

	No contingent or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable, within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the 
Directors, will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i)	 any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial 
year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)	 any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial 
year. 

In the opinion of the Directors:

(i)	 the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year were not substantially 
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(ii)	 there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any 
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the 
operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial period in which this report is made.

directors’ REPORT
[continued]
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Subsidiary Companies

Details of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Auditors

The auditors, HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT (201906002362 & AF0276), have expressed their willingness to accept re-
appointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.  

___________________________________________________ 	 _____________________________________
YTM. TUNKU DATO’ SERI KAMEL BIN TUNKU RIJALUDIN	 KOID SIANG LOONG

Dated: 18 March 2024

directors’ REPORT
[continued]



ANNUAL REPORT 
2023 AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD

66

	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M
			R   estated

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment	 3	 27,306,332	 27,781,039	 25,660,305	 25,948,402
Investment in subsidiaries	 4	 –	 –	 18,016,175	 18,016,075
Investment in associates	 5	 881,455	 1,309,124	 –	 –
Intangible assets	 6	 1	 1	 –	 –
Other investments	 7	 250,000	 250,000	 –	 –
Investment properties	 8	 4,082,987	 3,366,697	 –	 –
Deferred tax assets	 9	 1,003,000	 357,000	 –	 –

		  33,523,775	 33,063,861	 43,676,480	 43,964,477

Current Assets
Inventories	 10	 5,792,817	 5,495,230	 –	 –
Other investments	 7	 10,740,329	 9,589,642	 1,532,337	 333,876
Trade receivables	 11	 7,568,778	 9,987,843	 –	 –
Other receivables, deposits 
  and prepayments	 12	 1,750,607	 3,042,163	 28,833	 161,647
Contract assets	 13	 3,848,104	 6,095,611	 –	 –
Tax recoverable		  453,357	 315,800	 –	 –
Amount owing by subsidiaries	 14	 –	 –	 5,458,188	 6,773,985
Amount owing by associates	 15	 218,027	 288,390	 215,925	 277,021
Deposits placed with licensed 
  banks	 16	 3,933,640	 6,293,135	 –	 –
Cash and bank balances		  21,436,433	 8,348,756	 3,679,619	 749,050

		  55,742,092	 49,456,570	 10,914,902	 8,295,579

TOTAL ASSETS		  89,265,867	 82,520,431	 54,591,382	 52,260,056

STATEMENTS OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2023
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2023
[continued]

	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M
			R   estated

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital	 17	 40,537,176	 40,148,639	 40,537,176	 40,148,639
Treasury shares	 20	 (1,857,975)	 (1,305,290)	 (1,857,975)	 (1,305,290)
Reserves	 18	 33,012,745	 27,447,672	 7,139,990	 5,778,989

TOTAL EQUITY		  71,691,946	 66,291,021	 45,819,191	 44,622,338

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities	 21	 166,924	 99,575	 –	 –
Deferred tax liabilities	 9	 24,003	 104,003	 –	 –

		  190,927	 203,578	 –	 –

Current Liabilities						    
		
Trade payables	 22	 8,245,849	 6,659,932	 –	 –
Other payables, deposits and accruals	 23	 5,818,029	 4,048,294	 541,702	 891,146
Amount owing to subsidiaries	 14	 –	 –	 8,230,003	 6,746,086
Amount owing to associates	 15	 319,169	 163,450	 –	 –
Contract liabilities	 13	 880,253	 3,936,189	 –	 –
Bank borrowings	 24	 869,595	 587,144	 –	 –
Lease liabilities	 21	 41,614	 65,598	 –	 –
Tax liabilities		  1,208,485	 565,225	 486	 486

		  17,382,994	 16,025,832	 8,772,191	 7,637,718

TOTAL LIABILITIES		  17,573,921	 16,229,410	 8,772,191	 7,637,718

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  89,265,867	 82,520,431	 54,591,382	 52,260,056

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Revenue	 25	 71,668,707	 60,500,144	 3,813,058	 3,394,711
Cost of sales	 26	 (56,344,874)	 (49,302,955)	 –	 –

Gross profit		  15,323,833	 11,197,189	 3,813,058	 3,394,711
Other operating income		  1,354,929	 1,236,019	 590,441	 22,579

Distribution expenses		  (488,014)	 (256,219)	 –	 –
Administrative expenses		  (6,355,738)	 (5,491,977)	 (1,833,224)	 (1,581,147)
Other operating expenses		  (2,839,028)	 (3,266,741)	 (1,209,009)	 (1,148,690)

Total operating expenses		  (9,682,780)	 (9,014,937)	 (3,042,233)	 (2,729,837)

Operating profit		  6,995,982	 3,418,271	 1,361,266	 687,453
Finance costs		  (67,644)	 (64,875)	 (265)	 (280)
Share of results of associates, 
  net of tax		  168,733	 56,179	 –	 –

Profit before taxation	 27	 7,097,071	 3,409,575	 1,361,001	 687,173
Taxation	 28	 (1,477,610)	 (1,319,763)	 –	 –

Profit for the financial year		  5,619,461	 2,089,812	 1,361,001	 687,173

Other comprehensive 
  (expense)/income:
Items that may be reclassified 
  subsequently to profit or loss
– Realisation of foreign currency 
  translation reserve upon deemed 
  disposal of foreign operation		  (54,790)	 –	 –	 –
– Foreign currency translation		  402	 13,942	 –	 –

Total comprehensive income 
  for the financial year		  5,565,073	 2,103,754	 1,361,001	 687,173

Profit for the financial year attributable 
  to owners of the Company		  5,619,461	 2,089,812	 1,361,001	 687,173

Total comprehensive income
  attributable to owners of the Company		  5,565,073	 2,103,754	 1,361,001	 687,173

Earnings per share attributable to 
  owners of the Company:
- Basic (sen)	 29	 5.91	 2.15
- Diluted (sen)	 29	 5.69	 2.10

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF  
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023
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	  Non-distributable 	 Distributable
		S  hare	T reasury	R etained	T otal
		C  apital	S hares	E arnings	E quity
Company	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

At 1 December 2021		  40,148,639	 –	 5,091,816	 45,240,455
					   
Profit/Total comprehensive 
  income for the financial year		  –	 –	 687,173	 687,173

Transactions with owners: 
- Shares repurchased held as 
  treasury shares		  –	 (1,305,290)	 –	 (1,305,290)

At 30 November 2022		  40,148,639	 (1,305,290)	 5,778,989	 44,622,338

Profit/Total comprehensive income 
  for the financial year		  –	 –	 1,361,001	 1,361,001

Transactions with owners:
– Issuance of shares pursuant 
  to exercise of warrants	 17	 388,537	 –	 –	 388,537
					   
– Shares repurchased held as 
  treasury shares	 20	 –	 (552,685)	 –	 (552,685)

At 30 November 2023		  40,537,176	 (1,857,975)	 7,139,990	 45,819,191

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023

[continued]

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation		  7,097,071	 3,409,575	 1,361,001	 687,173
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, 
  plant and equipment		  1,411,045	 1,554,926	 582,990	 432,059
Depreciation of investment
  properties		  43,820	 19,768	 –	 –
Distribution income from fixed 
  income funds		  (69,896)	 (148,357)	 (32,919)	 (13,384)
Dividend income 		  –	 –	 (1,654,000)	 (1,474,200)
Dividend income from quoted 
  equity securities		  (44,344)	 (516,163)	 –	 –
Fair value (gain)/loss on 
  other investments		  (12,219)	 537,545	 –	 –
Gain on disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment		  (14,025)	 (68,837)	 –	 –
Gain on disposal of subsidiary	 4(d)	 (54,790)	 –	 –	 –
Impairment loss on property, 
  plant and equipment		  –	 101	 –	 –
Interest expense		  67,644	 64,875	 265	 –
Interest income		  (318,425)	 (189,741)	 (1,522)	 (3,795)
Inventories written off		  149,417	 –	 –	 –
Inventories written down		  178,378	 19,904	 –	 –
Loss on partial disposal of an associate		  –	 597	 –	 –
Net provision of warranty costs		  2,166,735	 552,912	 –	 –
Net provision for employee benefits		  15,639	 32,831	 16,546	 1,060
Share of results of associates		  (168,733)	 (56,179)	 –	 –
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange		  (6,914)	 (102,620)	 –	 –
Waiver of amount owing by a subsidiary		  –	 –	 2,000	 5,400
Impairment loss on trade receivables		  230,000	 –	 –	 –

Operating cashflow before changes in
  working capital		  10,670,403	 5,111,137	 274,361	 (365,687)

Contract assets		  1,845,739	 172,340	 –	 –
Contract liabilties		  (1,739,540)	 –	 –	 –
Inventories		  (609,630)	 1,251,650	 –	 –
Trade and other receivables		  3,882,389	 (3,590,088)	 132,814	 (130,342)
Trade and other payables		  705,783	 (3,370,702)	 (365,990)	 (341,229)

		  4,084,741	 (5,536,800)	 (233,176)	 (471,571)

Cash generated from/(used in) 
  operations		  14,755,144	 (425,663)	 41,185	 (837,258)
Utilisation of provision of warranty costs		  (941,562)	 (324,727)	 –	 –
Dividend received		  –	 –	 1,654,000	 1,474,200
Interest paid		  (59,306)	 (58,242)	 (265)	 –
Interest received		  318,425	 189,741	 1,522	 3,795
Tax paid		  (1,697,907)	 (1,560,668)	 –	 –

Net cash generated from/(used in) 
  operating activities		  12,374,794	 (2,179,559)	 1,696,442	 640,737

STATEMENTS OF  
CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023
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	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from partial disposal of
  associates		  –	 5,520	 –	 –
Net repayment from/(advance to)
  associates		  226,082	 (45,696)	 61,096	 (121,002)
Net repayment from/(advance to) 
  subsidiaries		  –	 –	 2,797,714	 (19,882)
Distribution income from fixed 
  income funds		  69,896	 148,357	 32,919	 13,384
Dividend income from quoted 
  equity securities		  44,344	 516,163	 –	 –
Dividend income from an associate		  580,650	 470,400	 –	 –
Acquisition of a subsidiary	 4(c)	 –	 –	 (100)	 –
Net changes in pledges cash 
  deposits		  2,344,998	 2,182,287	 –	 –
Net (placement)/withdrawal of 
  fixed income funds		  (1,895,202)	 (1,828,980)	 (1,198,461)	 336,616
Net acquisition of quoted shares		  –	 (854,155)	 –	 –
Proceeds from disposal of property,
  plant and equipment		  14,498	 101,839	 –	 –
Purchase of property, 
  plant and equipment	 3	 (822,811)	 (2,230,649)	 (294,893)	 (1,549,716)
Proceeds from disposal of 
  other investments		  756,734	 –	 –	 –
Purchase of investment properties	 8	 (760,110)	 –	 –	 –

Net cash generated from/(used in)
  investing activities		  559,079	 (1,534,914)	 1,398,275	 (1,340,600)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of Warrants	 17	 388,537	 –	 388,537	 –
Repurchase of treasury shares		  (552,685)	 (1,305,290)	 (552,685)	 (1,305,290)
Repayments of hire purchase liabilities	 (a)	 (78,973)	 (92,293)	 –	 –

Net cash (used in)/generated 
  from financing activities		  (243,121)	 (1,397,582)	 (164,148)	 (1,305,290)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
  and cash equivalents		  12,690,752	 (5,112,056)	 2,930,569	 (2,005,153)

Effect of exchange rate changes		  99,977	 13,942	 –	 –

Cash and cash equivalents at 
  beginning of the financial year		  7,776,109	 12,874,223	 749,050	 2,754,203

Cash and cash equivalents at 
  end of the financial year		  20,566,838	 7,776,109	 3,679,619	 749,050

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023

[continued]
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2023

[continued]

	 Group	C ompany
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Cash and cash equivalents at end
   of the financial year comprises:

Cash and bank balances		  21,436,433	 8,348,756	 3,679,619	 749,050
Deposit pledged with licensed banks	 16	 3,933,640	 6,293,135	 –	 –
Bank overdrafts	 24	 (869,595)	 (587,144)	 –	 –

		  24,500,478	 14,054,747	 3,679,619	 749,050
Less: Deposit pledged with licensed 
      banks	 16	 (3,933,640)	 (6,278,638)	 –	 –

		  20,566,838	 7,776,109	 3,679,619	 749,050

(a)	 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

		  Group
				    2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

Lease liabilities
At 1 December 				    165,173	 140,833

Change from financing cash flows
Repayments of lease liabilities				    (78,973)	 (92,293)

Other changes in lease liabilities
Additions of property, plant and equipment			   114,000	 110,000
Interest expenses				    8,338	 6,633

At 30 November 2023				    208,538	 165,173

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1.	C orporate Information

	 The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, property investment and the provision 
of management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 4 to the financial 
statements.

	 There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.

	 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated in Malaysia under the Companies Act, 
1965, domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

	 The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at Level 3, Wisma Amtel, 
No.12, Jalan Pensyarah U1/28, Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor, Malaysia.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution 
of the Directors on 18 March 2024.

2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies

2.1 	B asis of preparation 

	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

	 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed 
in summary of material accounting policies.

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the reported period. It also requires Directors to exercise their 
judgment in the process of applying the Group and the Company’s accounting policies. Although 
these estimates and judgment are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and 
actions, actual results may differ.

	 The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.3 to the financial statements.

	 Amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the Group and the Company’s financial 
year beginning on or after 1 December 2022 are as follows:

•	 Amendments to MFRS 3, “Business Combinations” (Reference to the Conceptual Framework) 
•	 Amendments to MFRS 116, “Property, Plant and Equipment” (Proceeds before Intended Use)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 137, “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (Onerous 

Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract) 
•	 Annual Improvement to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020:

о	 Amendment to MFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards”
о	 Amendment to MFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
о	 Amendment to Illustrative Examples accompanying MFRS 16, “Leases”
о	 Amendment to MFRS 141, “Agriculture”

	 The above amendments to accounting standards effective during the financial year do not have any 
significant impact to the financial results and position of the Group and the Company.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1 	B asis of preparation (Continued)

	 The Group has decided to early adopt the amendments to MFRS 101, "Presentation of Financial 
Statements" (Disclosure of Accounting Policies) which require entities to disclose material accounting 
policy information rather than significant accounting policies.

	 Accounting standard and amendments to accounting standards that are applicable for the Group 
and the Company in the following periods but are not yet effective:

	 Annual periods beginning on/after 1 January 2023

•	 MFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts” 
•	 Amendments to MFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts” (Initial application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 9 - 

Comparative Information)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 101, “Presentation of Financial Statements” (Classification of Liabilities as 

Current or Non-current)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 108, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” 

(Definition of Accounting Estimates)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 112, “Income Taxes” (Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 

from a Single Transaction)

	 Annual periods beginning on/after 1 January 2024

•	 Amendments to MFRS 16, “Leases” (Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 101, “Presentation of Financial Statements” (Non-current Liabilities with 

Covenants)
•	 Amendments to MFRS 107, “Statement of Cash Flows” and MFRS 7, “Financial Instruments” 

(Supplier Finance Arrangements)

	 Annual periods beginning on/after 1 January 2025

•	 Amendments to MFRS 121, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” (Lack of 
Exchangeability)

Effective date yet to be determined by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board

•	 Amendments to MFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” and MFRS 128, “Investments 
in Associates and Joint Ventures” (Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture)

	 The adoption of the accounting standard and amendments to accounting standards are not 
expected to have any significant impact to the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

2.2	B asis of consolidation

(a)	S ubsidiary companies

	 Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Group. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. 

	 The Group considers it has de-facto power over an investee when, despite not having the 
majority of voting rights, it has the current ability in circumstances where the size of the Group’s 
voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders to direct the 
activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

	 Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2	B asis of consolidation (Continued)

(a)	S ubsidiary companies (Continued)

	 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method on the acquisition date. 
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of assets transferred, equity interest issued by 
the Group and liabilities assumed. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

	 The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 

	 Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

	 The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree 
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the total 
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest 
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a 
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

	 Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between 
group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

	 Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for 
as equity transactions. Any difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the 
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. 
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

	 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities, any 
non-controlling interests and other components of equity related to the disposed subsidiary. Any 
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with 
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying 
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, 
joint venture or financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

(b)	A ssociates

	 Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint 
control, over the financial and operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using 
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised 
at cost. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

	 The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive 
income. Dividends received or receivable from an associate are recognised as a reduction in 
the carrying amount of the investment.

	 When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

	 Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and 
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated 
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been 
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2	B asis of consolidation (Continued)

(b)	A ssociates (Continued)

	 If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, the 
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate. Dilution gains or losses arising from investments in 
associates are recognised in profit or loss.

	 The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 
the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount 
of impairment if the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount of the associate and 
recognises the difference as impairment losses in profit or loss.

2.3	 Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

	 Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the 
financial statements. They affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies, reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an 
on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation or uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i)	 Provision for warranty costs

	 The Group assesses the best estimate in measuring the estimated obligation arising from its 
products under warranty at the reporting date. Management evaluates the estimate based 
on the Group’s historical experience and other inputs or assumptions and current and future 
changes in warranty claim patterns which may affect the outcome of the estimated obligation 
under the circumstances. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the 
provision amount.

(ii)	R evenue from contracts

	 The Group recognises contract revenue and costs by reference to the progress towards 
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation at the reporting date. This is measured 
based on direct measurements of the value transferred by the Group to the customer and the 
Group’s efforts or budgeted inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation.

	 Significant judgement is required in determining:

•	  the completeness and accuracy of the budgets;
•	  the extent of the costs incurred.

	 Substantial changes in cost estimates can in future periods have, a significant effect on the 
Group’s revenue recognised. In making the above judgement, the Group relies on past 
experience and work of specialists.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3	 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(iii)	 Measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets

	 The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
loss rates. The Group and the Company use judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s and the Company’s past history, 
existing market conditions as well as forwardlooking estimate at the end of reporting period.

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies

(a)	I nvestment in subsidiaries and associates

	 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for 
sale or distribution. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates, the difference between 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investment are recognised in profit or loss.

(b)	 Property, plant and equipment

(i)	 Recognition and measurement

	 Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. Property, plant and equipment are 
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost 
of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price 
and any cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are 
recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

	 When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in net in the profit or loss.

(ii)	 Depreciation and impairment

	 Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
on the straight-line method to allocate the cost to their residual values over their estimated 
useful lives as follows:

•	 Buildings	 50 years
•	 Plant, machinery and tools	 2 to 10 years
•	 Renovation, furniture, fixture, fittings, office	
	 and computer equipment and electrical installation	 2 to 10 years
•	 Motor vehicles	 5 years

	 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of each 
reporting period, and adjusted as appropriate.

	 At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If such indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying 
amount of the asset is fully recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount 
exceeds the recoverable amount.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(c)	I nvestment properties

	 Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or 
both rather than for use in the production or supply of goods and services or for administrative 
purposes, or sale in the ordinary course of business. 

 
	 Investment property is measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, investment property 

is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold land and 
investment properties under construction are not depreciated. Other investment properties 
are depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives as follows:

•	 Leasehold Land					     99 years
•	 Building					     50 years

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed 
when incurred.

	 Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its 
disposal.

 
	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with the 

carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.

(d)	I ntangible assets - Research and development costs
  

	 Research costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

	 An intangible asset arising from development is recognised when the following criteria are met:

•	 It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use 
or sale;

•	 Management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
•	 There is an ability to use or sell the asset;
•	 It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits;
•	 Adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset 

are available; and
•	 The expenditures attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably 

measured.

	 Other development costs that do not meet these criteria are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an 
intangible asset in a subsequent period.

	 Capitalised development costs are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Capitalised development costs are amortised over its estimated 
useful lives of 3 to 5 years. 

	 The policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with 
Note 2.4(i) to the financial statements.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(e)	 Financial assets

(i)	 Classification

	 The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

•	 Amortised cost; and
•	 Fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”); and
•	 Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

	 The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets 
as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.

	 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when 
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

	 The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.

(ii)	 Recognition and initial measurement

	 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date 
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

	 At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case 
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(iii)	 Subsequent measurement

	 Debt instruments

	 Debt instruments mainly comprise of trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and 
prepayments, deposits placed with licensed banks and cash and bank balances.

	 There are three subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Group’s business 
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset:

•	 Amortised cost

	 Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those 
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at 
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss 
when the asset derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(e)	 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)	 Subsequent measurement (Continued)

	 Debt instruments (Continued)

•	 FVOCI

	 Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sale, and 
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
classified as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income (“OCI”) and accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the recognition of 
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, 
which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit 
or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is recognised using the effective 
interest rate method in profit or loss.

•	 FVTPL

	 Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet the criteria for 
classification as amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVTPL. Movement in fair values 
and interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the financial period in which it arises.

	 Equity instruments

	 The Group subsequently measures all its equity investments at fair value. Equity investments are 
classified as FVTPL with movements in their fair values recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which the changes arise, except for those equity securities which are not held for trading. The 
Group has elected to recognise changes in fair value of equity securities not held for trading 
in OCI as these are strategic investments and the Group considers this to be more relevant. 
Movements in fair values of investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Dividends 
from equity investments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s and the Company’s 
right to receive payments is established.

(iv)	 Impairment 

	 The Group and the Company assess expected credit losses associated with its debt 
instruments carried at amortised cost and at FVOCI on a forward-looking basis. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 
Expected credit losses represent a probability-weighted estimate of the difference between 
present value of cash flows according to contract and present value of cash flows the Group 
and the Company expect to receive, over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

	 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the simplified approach, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

	 While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of MFRS 9, 
the identified impairment loss was immaterial. 

	 In measuring expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets are grouped based 
on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled 
work in progress, which have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables 
for the same type of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates 
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(e)	 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)	 Impairment (continued)

	 In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for 
each category of customers and adjusts to reflect current and forward-looking factors 
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

	 The Group and the Company define a financial instrument as default, which is aligned 
with the definition of credit-impaired, when the debtor meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, 
which indicates the debtor is in significant financial difficulty. The Group and the Company 
consider the following instances:

•	 The debtor is in breach of financial covenants
•	 Concessions have been made by the Group and the Company related to the 

debtor’s financial difficulty
•	 It is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial 

reorganisation 
•	 The debtor is insolvent

	 Financial assets that are credit-impaired are assessed for impairment on an individual basis.

	 The Group and the Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has 
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is 
based on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future 
cash flows to repay the amount. The Group and the Company may write off financial 
assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.

(f)	 Financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial 
liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in 
profit or loss.

	 Fair value though profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are derivatives (except 
for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective hedging instrument) 
or financial liabilities that are specifically designated into this category upon initial recognition.

	 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

	 Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured 
at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(g)	 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

	 Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership.

	 Financial liabilities are derecognised when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. A substantial modification in the terms of an 
existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability 
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Any difference between the carrying amount 
of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the considerable paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.  

(h)	 Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill or intangible assets not ready for use, 
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject 
to amortisation and depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or cash-generating units.

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its 
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

	 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating 
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

	 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation in 
which it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are 
assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial period in 
which the reversals are recognised.

(j)	 Foreign currencies

(i)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured 
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the 
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), 
which is the Group’s and the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(j)	 Functional and presentation currency (Continued)

(ii)	 Translation and balances

	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences 
arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments or a financial instrument 
designated as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges, which 
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

	 Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated 
using the spot exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange 
differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included 
in profit or loss, except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in 
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iii)	 Foreign operations 

	 The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency 
different from the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements are 
translated into the presentation currency as follows: 

•	 assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate prevailing 
at the reporting date; 

•	 income and expenses for each statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income presented are translated at average exchange rates for the year, which 
approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and  

•	 all resulting exchange differences are taken directly to other comprehensive income 
through the foreign translation reserve.

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisitions of a foreign operation are 
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and are translated at the closing 
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

	 On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange 
differences relating to that foreign operation, recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the separate component of equity are reclassified to profit or loss.  

	 In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary 
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange 
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. 
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest in associates 
or joint ventures that do not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control) the 
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss. 

 
	 In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable 

from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, 
foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form 
part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive 
income through the foreign translation reserve. 
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)	I nventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after adequate allowance 
has been made for all deteriorated, damaged, obsolete or slow-moving inventories. Cost is 
determined on the first-in-first out basis.

	 The cost of raw material consists of the purchase cost and incidental cost of purchase. The cost 
of finished goods and work in progress consists of the raw materials, direct labour, other direct 
costs and related production overheads.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(l)	C ash and cash equivalents 

	 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and deposits with banks and highly 
liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities 
of three month or less, and are used by the Group and the Company in the management of 
their short-term commitments. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.

(m)	E quity instruments

(i)	 Share capital

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in 
equity in the period in which they are declared.

	 The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from 
equity, net of tax. Equity transaction costs comprise only those incremental external costs 
directly attributable to the equity transaction which would otherwise have been avoided.

(ii)	 Treasury shares

	 Where the Company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the 
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental external costs, net of 
tax, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders as treasury shares 
until they are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently 
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental 
transaction costs and the related tax effects, are included in equity attributable to the 
Company’s equity holders.

(n)	 Employee benefits

(i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid 
annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed 
as the related service is provided.

	 A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus 
or profits sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)
 
(n)	 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)	 Defined contribution plans

	 As required by law, the Group and the Company contribute to the Employees Provident 
Fund ("EPF"), the national defined contribution plan. Such contributions are recognised as 
an expense in the profit or loss in the period in which the employees render their services.

(o)	 Provisions 

	 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

	 When the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed (for example, under an insurance 
contract), the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement 
is virtually certain.

(p)	R evenue income recognition

(i)	 Revenue from contracts with customers

	 Revenue is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation promised 
in the contract with customer when or as the Group transfers the control of the goods or 
services promised in a contract and the customer obtains control of the goods or services. 
Depending on the substance of the respective contract with customer, the control of the 
promised goods or services may transfer over time or at a point in time.

 
	 A contract with customer exists when the contract has commercial substance, the Group and 

its customer has approved the contract and intend to perform their respective obligations, 
the Group’s and the customer’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred 
and the payment terms can be identified, and it is probable that the Group will collect the 
consideration to which it will be entitled to in exchange of those goods or services.

	 Sale of goods

	 Revenue from the sale of goods are recognised at a point in time when controls of the 
products has been transferred, being when the customer accepts the delivery of the goods.

	 Sales are made with a credit term ranging from 30 days to 90 days which is consistent with 
market practice, therefore, no element of financing is deemed present. A receivable is 
recognised when the customer accepts the delivery of the goods as the consideration is 
unconditional other than the passage of time before the payment is due.

	 Revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of any discounts.

	 Certain products sold are provided with a warranty of up to 3 years to the customers.

	 Contract revenue

	 Contract revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to the 
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, 
control of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is 
transferred over time if the Company’s performance creates and enhances an asset that 
the customer controls as the Company performs.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(p)	R evenue income recognition (Continued)

(i)	 Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

	 Contract revenue (Continued)

	 If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the 
contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance 
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains 
control of the asset.

	 The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured 
based on the Group’s effort or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation 
(e.g. by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as 
a percentage of total estimated costs for complete satisfaction of the contract) that best 
depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

	 Incremental costs of obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract assets and 
are subsequently amortised consistently with the pattern of revenue for the related contract.

	 Management fee

	 Management fee income is recognised upon performance of services satisfied over time.

(ii)	 Revenue from other sources

	 Interest income

	 Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

	 Dividend income

	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

	 Rental income

	 Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tenure of the lease.

(q)	B orrowing cost

	 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company 
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(r)	C urrent and deferred tax

	 The tax expense for the financial period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised 
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, respectively.

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
financial period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial years.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(r)	C urrent and deferred tax (Continued)

	 Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between 
the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying amounts in the 
financial statements.

	 However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 

	 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 
is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax 
credits can be utilised.

	 Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and 
liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or 
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(s)	E arnings per share

	 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, 
adjusted for own shares held.

	 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for 
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(t)	O perating segments

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting and are 
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker. The Group Chief Executive Officer, 
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, 
has been identified as the chief operating officer that makes strategic decisions.

(u)	 Fair value measurement

	 Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, is 
determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the 
principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

 
	 For a non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant's 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.	B asis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4	S ummary of material accounting policies (Continued)

(u)	 Fair value measurement (Continued)

	 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data 
as far as possible. Fair value is categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on 
the input used in the valuation technique as follows:

 
Level 1: 	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
		  the Group can access at the measurement date.
Level 2: 	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
		  the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3:	 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 
	 The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the 

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers.

(v)	L eases - Accounting by lessee

	 Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability at the commencement 
date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Group and the Company.

	 In determining the lease term, the Group and the Company consider all facts and circumstances 
that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a 
termination option. Extension or termination options are taken into consideration in determining 
the lease term if it is reasonably certain that the lease will be extended or terminated.

	 Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost comprising the following:

•	 The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
•	 Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive 

received;
•	 Any initial direct costs; and
•	 Decommissioning or restoration costs.

	 Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment loss. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful 
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group and the Company are reasonably 
certain that they will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the 
underlying asset’s useful life.

	 Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Lease 
payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to 
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

	 Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Payments associated with 
short-term leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in 
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

3.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

					    Furniture, fixture,
					     fittings, office
					     and computer
					     equipment
			   Freehold		  and electrical
			   land	B uildings	 installation	T otal

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Company
2023
Cost
At 1 December 2022		  11,800,588	 14,018,670	 1,296,304	 27,115,562
Additions		  –	 282,920	 11,973	 294,893

At 30 November 2023		  11,800,588	 14,301,590	 1,308,277	 27,410,455

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 December 2022		  –	 566,241	 593,870	 1,160,111
Charge for the financial year		  –	 284,846	 298,144	 582,990

At 30 November 2023		  –	 851,087	 892,014	 1,743,101

Accumulated impairment
At 1 December 2022/30 November 2023	 –	 –	 7,049	 7,049

Carrying amount				  
At 30 November 2023		  11,800,588	 13,450,503	 409,214	 25,660,305

2022
Cost
At 1 December 2021		  11,800,588	 12,956,233	 809,025	 25,565,846
Additions		  –	 1,062,437	 487,279	 1,549,716

At 30 November 2022		  11,800,588	 14,018,670	 1,296,304	 27,115,562

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 December 2021		  –	 301,672	 426,380	 728,052
Charge for the financial year		  –	 264,569	 167,490	 432,059

At 30 November 2022		  –	 566,241	 593,870	 1,160,111

Accumulated impairment
At 1 December 2021/30 November 2022	 –	 –	 7,049	 7,049

Carrying amount
At 30 November 2022		  11,800,588	 13,452,429	 695,385	 25,948,402
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

3.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

During the financial year, the property, plant and equipment acquired were satisfied as follows:

		  Group	C ompany 
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Hire purchase financing		  114,000	 110,000	 –	 –
Cash payments		  822,811	 2,230,649	 294,893	 1,549,716

			   936,811	 2,340,649	 294,893	 1,549,716

Assets pledged as security

	 Freehold land and building of the Group and Company with a carrying amount of RM25,251,091 (2022: 
RM25,253,017) has been pledged as security to secure bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 24 to the 
financial statements.

	 Motor vehicles of the Group with a carrying amount of RM256,107 (2022: RM200,519) have been pledged 
as security for hire purchase arrangements as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements. 

4.	I nvestment in Subsidiaries

(a)	I nvestment in subsidiaries

			   Company
					     2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

At cost
Unquoted shares in Malaysia				    19,772,762	 19,772,662
Less: Accumulated impairment losses			   (1,756,587)	 (1,756,587)

					     18,016,175	 18,016,075

	 Movement on the impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries is as follows: 

			   Company
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

At the beginning/end of the financial year			   1,756,587	 1,756,587
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4.	I nvestment in Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)	T he subsidiaries and shareholding therein are as follows:

Name of company

Country of 
incorporation 
and principal 

place of 
business

Effective 
ownership 
and voting 

interest Principal activities
2023 2022

% %

Direct holding:
Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd.
  (“AMCSB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Research and development of hardware, 
software applications and its related services. 
Manufacturing, assembling, installation 
and sale of telematics and navigation 
products, electronics,   automotive and 
telecommunication related products and its 
related services.

Amtel Communications 
  Sdn. Bhd. (“ACSB”)

Malaysia 100  100 Dormant.

Metrarama Sdn. Bhd.
  (“MTSB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Property investment, investment holding and 
trading business.

Amtel Resources Sdn. 
Bhd. 
  (“ARSB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Contractors for installation, jointing and testing 
of utilities, telecommunication and fibre optic 
cables and associated civil works: and provision 
of landscaping,  cleaning, maintenance work 
and related services.

Amtel Digital Sdn. Bhd. *
  (“ADSB”)

Malaysia 100 – Dormant.

Indirect holding:

Subsidiaries of Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd.

Amnavi Sdn. Bhd. 
  (“AMSB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Geographical Information System (GIS) and 
related products. Integration, implementation, 
maintenance and provision of technical 
services relating to the products.

Amtel Pte. Ltd. (“APL”)* Singapore – 100 Developing and maintaining of map data 
source for navigation and web based portal 
application.

Amtel Intelligence 
  Sdn. Bhd. (“AISB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Trading and distribution of telematics and 
navigation products, electronics, automotive, 
telecommunication  related products, parts, 
accessories and its related services.

*	 Not audited by HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]
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4.	I nvestment in Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)	A cquisition of ADSB

	 On 1 September 2023, the Company has acquired 100 ordinary shares representing 100% equity 
interest in ADSB for a total consideration of RM100. The acquisition of ADSB has no significant impact 
to the Group and the Company.

(d)	 Deemed disposal of APL

	 On 31 December 2022, APL was struck off and was deemed disposed. The impact from the deemed 
disposal of APL to the Group is as follows:

					     	 Group
					R     M
	

2023
Net liabilities
Less : Realisation of foreign currency translation reserve upon deemed disposal		  (54,790)
Add : Gain on disposal of APL					     54,790

Net proceeds from disposal					     –

5.	I nvestment in Associates

(a)	I nvestment in associates

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Unquoted shares in Malaysia, at cost			   247,510	 247,510
Share of post-acquisition reserves				    633,945	 1,061,614

					     881,455	 1,309,124

(b)	T he associates and shareholding therein are as follows:

Name of company

Country of 
incorporation 
and principal 

place of 
business

Effective 
ownership 
and voting 

interest Principal activities
2023 2022

% %

Indirect holding:
Associate of Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd.
Milan Utama Sdn. Bhd. 
  (“MUSB”)

Malaysia 35 35 Trading and distribution of telecommunication, 
telematics and information & communication: 
technology products, installation & distribution of 
vehicle products and project implementation.

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]
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5.	I nvestment in Associates (Continued)

(b)	T he associates and shareholding therein are as follows: (Continued)

Name of company

Country of 
incorporation 
and principal 

place of 
business

Effective 
ownership 
and voting 

interest Principal activities
2023 2022

% %

Indirect holding:
Associate of Amtel Resources Sdn. Bhd.
WAMM Bersekutu 
  Sdn. Bhd. 
  (“WAMM”)

Malaysia 30 30 Contractors for installation, jointing and 
testing of utilities, telecommunication and 
fibre optic cables and associated civil work, 
trading and distribution of telematics and 
information and communication technology 
products and services.

(c)	 The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows:

			   	 MUSB	 WAMM	T otal
			R   M	R M	R M

Group
2023	
Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets			   370,372	 52,470	 422,842
Current assets			   4,230,056	 592,406	 4,822,462
Non-current liabilities			   (539,204)	 (12,300)	 (551,504)
Current liabilities			   (1,818,489)	 (310,913)	 (2,129,402)

Net assets			   2,242,735	 321,663	 2,564,398

Results
Revenue			   3,956,578	 521,525	 4,478,103
Profit/Total comprehensive income 
  for the financial year			   425,206	 66,369	 446,569

Cashflows
Cash flows generated from/(used in) 
  operating activities			   1,283,642	 (30,225)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from 
  investing activities			   (27,249)	 59,470
Cash flows used in financing activities		  (1,001,618)	 –

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		  254,775	 29,245

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued] 
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5.	I nvestment in Associates (Continued)

(c)	 The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows: (Continued)

				    MUSB	 WAMM	T otal
			R   M	R M	R M

Group
2022	
Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets			   432,952	 133,327	 566,279
Current assets			   4,692,044	 365,456	 5,057,500
Non-current liabilities			   (827,520)	 (12,300)	 (839,820)
Current liabilities			   (775,945)	 (231,190)	 (1,007,135)

Net assets			   3,521,531	 255,293	 3,776,824

Results
Revenue			   2,885,784	 477,900	 3,363,684
Profit/(Loss)/Total comprehensive income/
  (expense) for the financial year			   223,207	 (50,547)	 172,660

Cashflows
Cash flows generated from operating activities		  403,504	 129,942
Cash flows used in investing activities		  (212,312)	 (248,397)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from 
  financing activities			   (1,446,566)	 49,120

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		  (1,255,374)	 (69,335)

(d)	T he reconciliation of net assets of the associates to the carrying amount of the investment in associates 
is as follows:

				    MUSB	 WAMM	T otal
			R   M	R M	R M

Group
2023
The Group’s share of net assets			   784,956	 96,499	 881,455

The Group’s share of total comprehensive 
  income during the financial year		  148,822	 19,911	 168,733

Dividend received by the Group			   580,650	 –	 580,650

2022
The Group’s share of net assets			   1,232,536	 76,588	 1,309,124

The Group’s share of total comprehensive 
  income during the financial year		  78,122	 (21,943)	 56,179

Dividend received by the Group			   470,400	 –	 470,400

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]
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6.	I ntangible Assets
			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Development cost
Cost
At 1 December/30 November				    2,155,184	 2,155,184

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 December/30 November				    2,155,183	 2,155,183

Carrying amount
At 1 December/30 November				    1	 1

7.	O ther Investments

		  Group	C ompany 
		  2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Non-current
At fair value
- Transferable club membership		  250,000	 250,000	 –	 –

Current
At fair value
- Fixed income funds		  9,551,861	 7,656,659	 1,532,337	 333,876
- Quoted equity securities		  1,188,468	 1,932,983	 –	 –

			   10,740,329	 9,589,642	 1,532,337	 333,876

The transferable club membership of the Group is held in trust by a Director of the Company. 

Investment in fixed income funds are redeemable with a one day notice (2022: one day notice).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]
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8.	I nvestment Properties

	 Freehold		U  nder	R ight-of-use
	 land	B uildings	 construction	  asset	T otal
	R M	R M	R M	R M	R M

Group
2023
Cost
At 1 December 2022	 168,717	 722,957	 2,025,000	 498,875	 3,415,549
Additions	 –	 –	 760,110	 –	 760,110
Transfers	 981,174	 1,803,936	 (2,785,110)	 –	 –

At 30 November 2023	 1,149,891	 2,526,893	 –	 498,875	 4,175,659

Accumulated depreciation					   
At 1 December 2022	 –	 35,732	 –	 13,120	 48,852
Charge for the financial year	 –	 38,511	 –	 5,309	 43,820

At 30 November 2023	 –	 74,243	 –	 18,429	 92,672

Carrying Amount	 1,149,891	 2,452,650	 –	 480,446	 4,082,987

Fair value 	 1,540,811	 2,905,599	 –	 523,001

2022
Cost
At 1 December 2021/
  30 November 2022	 168,717	 722,957	 2,025,000	 498,875	 3,415,549

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 December 2021	 –	 21,273	 –	 7,811	 29,084
Charge for the financial year	 –	 14,459	 –	 5,309	 19,768

At 30 November 2022	 –	 35,732	 –	 13,120	 48,852

Carrying Amount	 168,717	 687,225	 2,025,000	 485,755	 3,366,697

Fair value 	 398,275	 860,401	 *	 593,717

*	 Investment properties under construction consist of three-storey terrace houses. The Company 
determines that the fair value of investment properties under construction could not be reliably 
measured due to the lack of comparable property transactions. Therefore, the fair value of investment 
properties under construction is not presented.

	 During the financial year, the direct operating expenses arising from investment properties amounted to 
RM45,840 (2022: RM20,054).

	 Fair value of the investment properties are categorised as level 2 fair value. The fair value of the investment 
properties was derived based on recent transaction prices of comparable properties. The most significant 
input used in the valuation was the price per square foot.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

8.	I nvestment Properties (Continued)

	 Right-of-use asset

	 Information about lease for which the Group is a lessee is as follows:
 
				    	L easehold 
					     land
					R     M

Group
Carrying amount
At 1 December 2021					     491,064
Depreciation					     (5,309)

At 30 November 2022/1 December 2022				    485,755
Depreciation					     (5,309)

At 30 November 2023					     480,446

The leasehold land has a remaining lease term of 90 years (2022: 91 years).

9.	 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

The analysis of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Deferred tax assets				    1,003,000 	 357,000
Deferred tax liabilities				    (24,003)	 (104,003)

					     978,997	 252,997

Movement of net deferred tax assets as follows:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

At beginning of the financial year				    252,997	 203,087
Recognised in profit or loss:
- property, plant and equipment				    18,130	 (10,439)
- provisions				    707,870	 60,349

					     726,000	 49,910

At end of the financial year				    978,997	 252,997
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

9.	 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Continued)

	 The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year prior to offsetting are as follow:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Deferred tax assets (before offsetting)
- provisions				    1,128,621	 420,751
Offsetting				    (125,621)	 (63,751)

Deferred tax assets (after offsetting)				    1,003,000	 357,000

Deferred tax liabilities (before offsetting)
- property, plant and equipment				    149,624	 167,754
Offsetting				    (125,621)	 (63,751)

Deferred tax liabilities (after offsetting)				    24,003	 104,003

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the following items: 

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Provisions		  302,660	 78,388	 269,839	 41,726
Property, plant and equipment		  (2,819,626)	 (885,779)	 (2,801,043)	 (890,440)
Unutilised tax losses		  7,370,698	 6,959,830	 4,647,619	 4,147,159
Unabsorbed capital allowances		  973,116	 2,251,817	 953,763	 1,987,224

			   5,826,848	 8,404,256	 3,070,178	 5,285,669

Deferred tax assets not recognised 
  at 24% (2022: 24%)		  1,398,444	 2,017,021	 736,843	 1,268,561

	 Pursuant to an amendment to Section 44(5F) of the Income Tax Act 1967, the time limit to utilise business 
losses has been extended to a maximum of 10 consecutive years. This amendment is deemed to have 
effect from the year of assessment 2019.

 
	 Accordingly, unutilised business losses brought forward from year of assessment 2018 can be carried 

forward for another 10 consecutive years of assessment (i.e. from year of assessment 2019 to 2028).
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9.	 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Continued)

	 The unutilised tax losses which are available for offset against future taxable profits of the Group and of the 
Company will expire in the following financial years:

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

2028			  4,754,926 	 4,755,787	 2,703,660 	 2,616,054
2029			  795,171	 795,171	 685,672	 685,672
2030			  468,195	 498,110	 390,279	 390,279
2031			  524,247	 524,247	 455,154	 455,154
2032			  721,096 	 386,515	 412,854	 –
2033			  107,063 	 –	 –	 –

			   7,370,698	 6,959,830	 4,647,619	 4,147,159

10.	I nventories

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Manufactured goods and parts				    5,792,817	 5,495,230

	 During the financial year, inventories of the Group recognised as cost of sales amounted to RM41,644,181 
(2022: RM37,531,152).
 

	 During the financial year, the Group recognised an amount of RM178,378  and RM149,417(2022: RM19,904 
and RM Nil) in respect of write down of inventories to net realisable value and write off of inventories 
respectively in cost of sales.

11.	T rade Receivables

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

			   	R M	R M
					R     estated

Trade receivables				    7,835,428	 10,024,493
Less: Allowance for impairment loss				    (266,650)	 (36,650)

					     7,568,778	 9,987,843

Movement in allowance for impairment loss of trade receivables are as follow:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M
			 
At beginning of the financial year				    36,650	 36,650
Charged for the financial year				    230,000	 –

At end of the financial year				    266,650	 36,650

The Company’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days).
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12.	O ther Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M
						    
Other receivables		  449,957	 574,895	 1,733	 134,803
Less: Allowance for impairment loss		  –	 (6,180)	 –	 (6,180)

			   449,957	 568,715	 1,733	 128,623
Deposits		  286,361	 295,341	 9,050	 20,010
Prepayments		  1,014,289	 2,178,107	 18,050	 13,014

			   1,750,607	 3,042,163	 28,833	 161,647

Movement in allowance for impairment loss of other receivables are as follow:

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

At beginning of the financial year		  6,180	 26,939	 6,180	 6,180
Written off		  (6,180)	 (20,759)	 (6,180)	 –

At end of the financial year		  –	 6,180	 –	 6,180

	 Included in other receivables of the Group is an amount of RM352,800 (2022: RM Nil) relating to dividend 
receivable from an associate.

	 Included in prepayments of the Group are amounts of RM877,649 (2022: RM2,055,467) paid to suppliers for 
the purchase of inventories and equipment.

13.	C ontract Assets/(Liabilities)

The analysis of contract assets and contract liabilities are as follows: 
 
	 		  Group
					     2023	 2022
				    	R M	R M

					R     estated

			 
At beginning of the financial year 				    2,159,422	 3,246,295
Revenue recognised during the financial year 			   12,260,794	 8,022,699
Less: Billing during the financial year 				    (11,452,365)	 (9,109,572)

At end of the financial year 				    2,967,851	 2,159,422
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13.	C ontract Assets/(Liabilities) (Continued)

		  	 Group
					     2023	 2022
				    	R M	R M

					R     estated

Represented by:			 
Contract assets - amount due from contract customers			   3,848,104	 6,095,611
Contract liabilities - amount due to contract customers			   (880,253)	 (3,936,189)

					     2,967,851	 2,159,422

	 The Group applied the practical expedient in MFRS 15 and is not required to disclose information about 
remaining unsatisfied performance obligation for contracts that have original expected duration of one 
year or less.

14.	Am ount Owing by/(to) Subsidiaries

These amounts are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

15.	Am ount Owing by/(to) Associates

These amounts are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

16.	 Deposits Placed with Licensed Banks

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Fixed deposits with licensed banks				    3,933,640	 6,293,135

	 The effective interest rate and maturity of the fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group ranges from 
1.33% to 3.10% (2022: 1.70% to 2.60%) per annum and maturity of deposits ranges from 30 days to 365 days 
(2022: 30 days to 365 days).

	 Included in the deposits of the Group is an amount of RM3,933,640 (2022: RM6,278,638) pledged as security 
for banking facilities granted to subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.
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17.	S hare Capital

		  Group/Company
		N  umber of Ordinary Shares	A mount
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		U  nits	U nits	R M	R M

Issued and fully paid
At 1 December		  97,553,682	 97,553,682	 40,148,639	 40,148,639
Issued during the financial year		  597,750	 –	 388,537	 –

At 30 November		  98,151,432	 97,553,682	 40,537,176	 40,148,639

	 During the financial year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company increased from 97,553,682 
ordinary shares to 98,151,432 ordinary shares by the way of the issuance of 597,750 new ordinary shares for 
cash pursuant to the exercise of warrants at an exercise price of RM0.65 per ordinary share.

18.	R eserves

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Fair value reserve	 (a)	 159,000	 159,000	 –	 –
Foreign exchange reserve	 (b)	 –	 54,388	 –	 –
Retained earnings		  32,853,745	 27,234,284	 7,139,990	 5,778,989

			   33,012,745	 27,447,672	 7,139,990	 5,778,989

(a)	 Fair value reserve

	 Fair value reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes in the fair value of financial assets 
through other comprehensive income until they are disposed.

(b)	 Foreign exchange reserve

	 The exchange reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of foreign operation whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s 
presentation currency.
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19.	 Warrants

	 On 24 March 2021, the Company completed the issuance and listing of 48,776,330 free warrants on 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, on the basis of one free warrant for every two existing ordinary shares, 
constituted by a Deed Poll dated 19 November 2020. The warrants will expire on 18 March 2024.

	 The salient terms of the warrants are as follows:

(i)	 Holders is entitled to subscribe for one new share of the Company at the exercise price during the 
exercise period;

(ii)	 The exercise price of the warrants is RM0.65 per warrant subject to adjustments in accordance with 
the provisions of the deed poll executed;

(iii)	 The warrants may be exercised at any time for a period of three years commencing on and inclusive 
of the date of issue;

(iv)	 The holder will not be entitled to any voting right in any general meeting or to participate in any form 
of distribution and/or offer of securities unless the warrants are exercise into new shares;

(v)	 The warrants will only be transferable in accordance with the provision of the Deed Poll subject to 
the provision of Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 and the rules of Bursa Malaysia 
Depository Sdn. Bhd.; and

(vi)	 In the event of winding-up, reconstruction or amalgamation with one or more companies: 

•	 the terms of winding-up, compromise or arrangement shall be binding on all the holders; and

•	 every holder shall be entitled (upon and subject to conditions) to exercise rights at any time 
within six weeks after such winding-up or from the granting of the court order approving the 
compromise or arrangement.

The movement in the Group’s and the Company’s warrants during the year is as follows:

			N   umber of warrants
					     2023	 2022

				U    nits	U nits

Group/Company
At beginning of the financial year				    48,776,330	 48,776,330
Exercised during the financial year				    (597,750)	 –

At end of the financial year				    48,178,580	 48,776,330

20.	T reasury Shares

	 During the financial year, the Company repurchased a total of 852,900 shares from the open market at an 
average price of approximately RM0.65 per share. The total consideration paid for the repurchased shares 
was RM552,685 and it was financed by internally generated funds.

	 As at 30 November 2023, the Company held 2,852,900 (2022: 2,000,000) treasury shares out of its 98,151,432 
(2022: 97,553,682) issued and paid-up ordinary shares. Such treasury shares are held at a carrying amount 
of RM1,857,975 (2022: RM1,305,290).
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21.	L ease Liabilities

		  	 Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Analysed as:
Non-current				    166,924	 99,575
Current				    41,614	 65,598

					     208,538	 165,173

Minimum lease liabilities
Within one year				    50,618	 72,183
Between one and five years				    183,934	 112,770

					     234,552	 184,953
Less: Future finance charges				    (26,014)	 (19,780)

					     208,538	 165,173

	 The lease liabilities of the Group have an effective interest rate range from 4.72% to 5.40% (2022: 4.74% to 
5.55%) per annum and are secured by the Group’s motor vehicles under hire purchase arrangements as 
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements. 

22.	T rade Payables

	 The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days).

	 Included in trade payables of the Group is an amount owing to an associate of RM1,248,000 (2022: 
RM1,404,000) which is on normal trade credit terms.

23.	O ther Payables, Deposits and Accruals

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

	N ote	R M	R M	R M	R M

Other payables		  245,436	 120,246	 9,315	 –
Deposits		  294,659	 133,801	 137,444	 131,701
SST payable		  –	 24,153	 –	 –
Accruals		  2,238,299	 1,971,271	 341,203	 722,251

			   2,778,394	 2,249,471	 487,962	 853,952
Provision for short–term 
  accumulated compensated 
  absences for unutilised leaves		  164,304	 148,665	 53,740	 37,194
Provision for warranty costs	 (a)	 2,875,331	 1,650,158	 –	 –

			   3,039,635	 1,798,823	 53,740	 37,194

			   5,818,029	 4,048,294	 541,702	 891,146
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23.	O ther Payables, Deposits and Accruals (Continued)

(a)	 Movement in provision for warranty costs are as follows:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

At beginning of the financial year				    1,650,158	 1,421,973
Net provision during the financial year			   2,166,735	 552,912
Utilisation during the financial year				   (941,562)	 (324,727)

At end of the financial year				    2,875,331	 1,650,158

	 Provision for warranty costs is in respect of products sold under warranty by a subsidiary. Provision is 
recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold based on past experience and Directors’ 
best estimate. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on the sales 
made and best estimate by the Directors of the Group.

24.	B ank Borrowings

	 		  Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Current
Bank overdrafts				    869,595	 587,114

	 The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand, bear interest at rates ranging from 7.45% to 9.15% (2022: 
6.95% to 8.90%) per annum and secured and supported by the following:

(a)	 fixed deposits pledged with licensed banks of certain subsidiaries;

(b)	 corporate guarantees by the Company; and

(c)	 first legal charge over freehold land and building of the Company as disclosed in Note 3 to the 
financial statements.
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25.	R evenue

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Revenue from contract with customers:	
Sale of goods or services		  59,232,574	 52,289,112	 –	 –
Contract revenue		  12,260,794	 8,022,699	 –	 –
Management fees		  –	 –	 1,204,300	 1,140,000

			   71,493,368	 60,311,811	 1,204,300	 1,140,000
Revenue from other sources:
Dividend income from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 1,654,000	 1,474,200
Rental income		  175,339	 188,333	 954,758	 780,511

			   175,339	 188,333	 2,608,758	 2,254,711

			   71,668,707	 60,500,144	 3,813,058	 3,394,711

Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point in time		  59,232,574	 52,289,112	 –	 –
Over time		  12,260,794	 8,022,699	 1,204,300	 1,140,000

			   71,493,368	 60,311,811	 1,204,300	 1,140,000

26.	C ost of Sales

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Cost of sales of goods or services				    47,124,939	 43,312,756
Cost of infrastructure project contracts				    9,219,935	 5,990,199

					     56,344,874	 49,302,955

27.	 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is derived after charging/(crediting):

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Auditors’ remuneration:
- statutory audit		  148,614	 159,250	 75,000	 71,000
- other services		  5,000	 6,000	 5,000	 6,000
Depreciation of property, 
  plant and equipment		  1,411,045	 1,554,926	 582,990	 432,059
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27.	 Profit Before Taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is derived after charging/(crediting): (Continued)

	 	 Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Depreciation of investment properties		  43,820	 19,768	 –	 –
Distribution income from fixed income fund	 (69,896)	 (148,357)	 (32,919)	 (13,384)
Dividend income from quoted 
  equity securities		  (44,344)	 (516,163)	 –	 –
Expenses relating to short term lease		  39,129	 41,440	 –	 –
Fair value (gain)/loss on other investments	 (12,219)	 537,545	 –	 –
Gain on disposal of subsidiary		  (54,790)	 –	 –	 –
Gain on disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment		  (14,025)	 (68,837)	 –	 –
Impairment loss on:
- property, plant and equipment		  –	 101	 –	 –
- trade receivables		  230,000	 –	 –	 –
Interest expense:
- hire purchase		  8,338	 6,632	 –	 –
- bank overdrafts		  45,308	 37,875	 –	 –
- others		  13,998	 20,368	 265	 280
Interest income		  (318,425)	 (189,741)	 (1,522)	 (3,795)
Inventories written down		  178,378	 19,904	 –	 –
Inventories written off		  149,417	 –	 –	 –
Loss on partial disposal of an associate		  –	 597	 –	 –
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange:
- realised		  (185,363)	 137,471	 –	 –
- unrealised		  (6,914)	 (102,620)	 –	 –
Management fee		  480,000	 477,900	 –	 –
Net provision of warranty costs		  2,166,735	 552,912	 –	 –
Net provision for employee benefits		  15,639	 32,831	 16,546	 1,060
Personnel expenses (including key 
  management personnel):
– contribution to Employee Provident 
  Fund and social security contribution		  691,541	 558,210	 82,342	 73,432
– salaries and others		  6,206,813	 5,145,150	 1,052,988	 902,451
Rental income		  (178,839)	 (196,733)	 (954,759)	 (780,512)
Share of results of associates		  (168,733)	 (56,179)	 –	 –
Waiver of amount owing by a subsidiary	 –	 –	 2,000	 5,400
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27.	 Profit Before Taxation (Continued)

	 Included in personnel expenses are amounts of remuneration received and receivable by the Directors of 
the Company during the financial year as follows:

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Executive Directors
- Salaries and other emoluments		  1,094,260	 1,121,158	 497,000	 512,000
- Contribution to Employee Provident 
  Fund and social security contribution		  94,372	 85,082	 20,383	 20,870
- Estimated monetary value of 
  benefit-in-kind		  27,975	 47,025	 19,175	 31,150

			   1,216,607	 1,253,265	 536,558	 564,020

Non-executive Directors
- fees		  247,755	 206,400	 192,555	 177,600
- other emoluments		  6,000	 6,000	 6,000	 6,000

			   253,755	 212,400	 198,555	 183,600

Total Directors’ remuneration		  1,470,362	 1,465,665	 735,111	 747,620

28.	T axation 

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Current taxation:
- Current year		  2,318,000	 1,338,000	 –	 –
- (Over)/Under provision in prior
  financial year		  (114,390)	 31,673	 –	 –

			   2,203,610	 1,369,673	 –	 –
Deferred taxation:
- Reversal of temporary differences		  (460,000)	 (90,418)	 –	 –
- (Over)/Under provision in prior 
  financial year		  (266,000)	 40,508	 –	 –

			   (726,000)	 (49,910)	 –	 –

Taxation for the financial year		  1,477,610	 1,319,763	 –	 –

	 Income tax is calculated at the statutory rate of 24% (2022: 24%) on the estimated assessable profit for the 
financial year. 
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28.	T axation (Continued)

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax 
rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as 
follows:

	 	 Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Profit before taxation		  7,097,071	 3,409,575	 1,361,001	 687,173

Taxation at statutory tax rates 
  of 24% (2022: 24%)		  1,703,297	 818,298	 326,640	 164,922
Effect of different tax rates in other countries	 –	 26,109	 –	 –
Income not subject to tax		  (175,370)	 (252,127)	 (405,226)	 (421,144)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	 948,650	 401,075	 610,304	 241,199
Changes in unrecognised deferred tax
  assets		  (618,577)	 254,227	 (531,718)	 15,023
(Over)/under provision in prior 
  financial year:
- current tax expense		  (114,390)	 31,673	 –	 –
- deferred tax expense		  (266,000)	 40,508	 –	 –

Taxation for the financial year		  1,477,610	 1,319,763	 –	 –

29.	E arnings Per Share

(a)	B asic earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit attributable to 
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue 
during the financial year.

	 		  Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Profit for the financial year attributable to the
  owners of the Company 				    5,619,461	 2,089,812

Weighted average number of ordinary shares issued (unit)		  95,093,209	 97,011,216

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)			   5.91	 2.15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29.	E arnings Per Share (Continued)

(b)	 Diluted earnings per share

	 For the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, consolidated profit attributable to owners 
of the Company is divided by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial 
year, adjusted for the dilutive effects of all potential ordinary shares.

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Profit for the financial year attributable to 
  the owners of the Company (RM)			   5,619,461	 2,089,812

Weighted average number of ordinary shares issued (unit)		  95,093,209	 97,011,216
Adjustments in respect of:
- Warrants				    3,626,959	 2,604,561

					     98,720,168	 99,615,777

Diluted earnings per share (sen)				    5.69	 2.10

30.	Emp loyee’s Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) and Share Grant Plan (“SGP”)

	 At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 May 2022, the Company’s shareholders approved the 
establishment of a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”), which comprises the ESOS and SGP. The LTIP was 
implemented on 3 October 2022 and will continue to be in force for a period of five (5) years from the date 
of implementation and may be extended for a period of up to another 5 years provided that the tenure of 
the LTIP shall not in aggregate exceed 10 years from the date of implementation.

	 The salient features of the LTIP are as follows:

(a)	 Eligible persons are Directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (excluding dormant 
subsidiaries) who are confirmed employees (in the case of employees) and have attained the age of 
eighteen (18) years.

(b)	 The maximum number of shares which may be made available under the LTIP shall not in aggregate 
exceed 15 percent (15%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding treasury 
shares, if any) at any point of time during the tenure of the LTIP and out of which not more than seventy 
five percent (75%) shall be allocated to the Directors and senior management of the Group. In addition, 
not more than ten percent (10%) of the maximum shares available under the LTIP shall be allocated to 
any individual eligible person or employee who, either singly or collectively through persons connected 
with him/her, hold twenty percent (20%) or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company.

(c)	 The shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of SOS Options and/or vesting of the SGP Awards, shall 
upon allotment and issuance, rank equally in all respects with the existing shares of the Company, save 
and except that the new shares will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or any other 
forms of distributions where the entitlement date of such dividends, rights, allotments and/or an other 
forms of distributions precedes the relevant date of allotment and issuance of the new shares.
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30.	Emp loyee’s Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) and Share Grant Plan (“SGP”) (cONTINUED)

(d)	 The exercise price which will be payable by the SOS Participants upon the exercise of the ESOS Option 
and the reference value for the SP Awards to be granted shall be based on a discount (as determined 
by the LTIP Committee) of not more than 10% of the 5-day VWAP of the Shares transacted on the 
Bursa Securities immediately preceding the date of the ESOS Award or the SGP Award (or such basis 
as the relevant authorities may permit).

(e)	 In the event of any alternation in the share capital of the Company during the LTIP Period (whether 
by way of rights issue, bonus issue or other capitalisation issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares or 
reduction or any variation of capital), the Board of Directors may, at its discretion, determine:

(i)	 in respect of the ESOS, the Exercise Price and/or the number of unexercised ESOS Options; and

(ii)	 in respect of the SGP, the number of Shares comprised in unvested SGP Awards, shall be adjusted 
and, if so, the manner in which such adjustments should be made.

	 No options were granted under the ESOS and no shares were granted under the SGP during the 
financial year. 

31.	R elated Party Transactions

	 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the 
Group or the Company has the ability to directly or indirectly control the party or exercise significant 
influence over the party in making financial and operating decision, or vice versa, or where the Group 
or the Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related 
parties may be individuals or other entities.

(a)	 The significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are as follows:

					     2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

Company
Subsidiaries
- Dividend received/receivable 				    (1,654,000)	 (1,474,200)
- Management fee received/receivable			   (1,204,300)	 (1,140,000)
- Rental income received/receivable			   (779,419)	 (592,178)
- Waiver of amount owing by a subsidiary			   2,000	 5,400

Associates
- Rental income received/receivable			   (123,077)	 (130,626)

Group
Associates
- Dividend received/receivable 				    (580,650)	 (470,400)
- Purchases				    3,432,000	 2,808,000
- Management fee paid/payable				   480,000	 477,900
- Rental income received/receivable 			   (123,077)	 (130,626)

(b)	 Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at the end of 
the reporting period are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements.
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31.	R elated Party Transactions (cONTINUED)

(c)	 Compensation of key management personnel

	 Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key 
management personnel include all the Directors of the Group and of the Company.

	 Information regarding the compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M
	

Fee 			   247,755	 206,400	 192,555	 177,600
Short term employee benefit		  1,452,853	 1,373,967	 618,800	 624,722
Post-employment benefit		  126,227	 121,015	 35,319	 34,692
Estimated monetary value of 
  benefit-in-kind		  40,025	 52,783	 19,175	 31,150

			   1,866,860	 1,754,165	 865,849	 868,164

32.	 Financial Guarantees

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Secured
In respect of financial guarantees given by 
  the Company to financial institutions for 
  banking and credit facilities granted to:
  - Associates		  590,978	 783,327	 590,978	 783,327
  - Subsidiary 		  –	 –	 869,595	 587,144

			   590,975	 783,327	 1,460,573	 1,370,471
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33.	S egment Information

	 For management purposes, the Group is  organized into operating segments based on their products and 
services. The Group Chief Executive Officer regularly reviews the information of each operating segment 
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance. As such, the Group’s 
reportable segment in accordance with MFRS 8 Operating Segments is as follows:

Information and Communication Technology Inclusive of research and development of hardware, 
software applications and its related services, 
manufacturing, assembling, installation  and sale 
of telematics and navigation products, electronics, 
automotive and telecommunication related 
products, Geographical Information System (GIS) 
and related products and services.

Telecommunications, Infrastructure and Services Inclusive of installation, jointing and testing of utilities, 
telecommunication and fibre optic cables and 
associated civil works and provision of landscaping, 
cleaning, maintenance work and related services.

Others Mainly comprise investment holding, property 
investment and provision of management services 
which are incidental to the activities of the Group, 
and trading business.

	 Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as 
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest-earning 
assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans and expenses and tax assets, liabilities and expense.

	 Segment revenue and results

	 Segment results represent profit or loss before taxation of the segment. Inter-segment transactions are 
entered in the ordinary course of business based on terms mutually agreed upon by the parties concerned.
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33.	S egment Information (Continued)

(a)	O perating segment (Continued)

(i)	 Other material non-cash items consist of the following items as presented in the respective notes:

			   Group
				    	 2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Depreciation of investment properties			   (43,820)	 (19,768)
Fair value gain/(loss) on other investments			   12,219	 (537,545)
Gain on foreign exchange - unrealised			   6,914	 102,620
Gain on disposal of subsidiary			   54,790	 –
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		  14,025	 68,837
Impairment loss on:
- property, plant and equipment			   –	 (101)
- trade receivables				    (230,000)	 –
Inventories written off				    (149,417)	 –
Inventories written down				    (178,378)	 (19,904)
Net provision for employee benefits			   (15,639)	 (32,831)
Distribution income from fixed income funds			   69,896	 148,357

					     (459,410) 	 (290,335) 

(ii)	 Additions to non-current assets consists of:

			   Group
				    	 2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Property, plant and equipment			   936,811	 2,340,649
Investment properties				    760,110	 –

					     1,696,921	 2,340,649

(b)	 Geographical segment

	 The Group operates predominantly in Malaysia and hence, no geographical segment is presented.

(c)	 Information about major customers

	 Revenue from 2 (2022: 3) major customers of the Group amounted to RM43,629,580 (2022: 
RM44,706,815), all of which are from the Information and Communication Technology segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

34.	 Financial Instruments

	 The following table analyses the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company 
by the classes and categories of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the 
measurement basis:

				    Financial assets
		  Financial	 Financial	 at fair value
		  assets and	 assets at fair	 through other
		  liabilities at	 value through	 comprehensive
		  amortised cost	 profit or loss	 income	 Total
		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Group
2023
Financial assets
Other investments		  –	 10,740,329	 250,000	 10,990,329
Trade receivables		  7,568,778	 –	 –	 7,568,778
Other receivables and deposits		  736,318	 –	 –	 736,318
Amount owing by associates		  218,027	 –	 –	 218,027
Deposits placed with licensed banks		  3,933,640	 –	 –	 3,933,640
Cash and bank balances		  21,436,433	 –	 –	 21,436,433

			   33,893,196	 10,740,329	 250,000	 44,883,525

Financial liabilities
Trade payables		  8,245,849	 –	 –	 8,245,849
Other payables, deposits and accruals 		 2,778,394	 –	 –	 2,778,394
Amount owing to associates		  319,169	 –	 –	 319,169
Bank borrowings		  869,595	 –	 –	 869,595
Lease liabilities		  208,538	 –	 –	 208,538

			   12,421,545	 –	 –	 12,421,545
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

34.	 Financial Instruments (cONTINUED)

	 The following table analyses the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company 
by the classes and categories of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the 
measurement basis: (Continued)

				    Financial assets
		  Financial	 Financial	 at fair value
		  assets and	 assets at fair	 through other
		  liabilities at	 value through	 comprehensive
		  amortised cost	 profit or loss	 income	 Total
		R  M	R M	R M	R M
		R  estated			R   estated

Group
2022
Financial assets
Other investments		  –	 9,589,642	 250,000	 9,839,642
Trade receivables		  9,987,843	 –	 –	 9,987,843
Other receivables and deposits		  864,056	 –	 –	 864,056
Amount owing by associates		  288,390	 –	 –	 288,390
Deposits placed with licensed banks		  6,293,135	 –	 –	 6,293,135
Cash and bank balances		  8,348,756	 –	 –	 8,348,756

			   25,782,180	 9,589,642	 250,000	 35,621,822

Financial liabilities
Trade payables		  6,659,932	 –	 –	 6,659,932
Other payables, deposits and accruals 		 2,249,471	 –	 –	 2,249,471
Amount owing to associates		  163,450	 –	 –	 163,450
Bank borrowings		  587,144	 –	 –	 587,144
Lease liabilities		  165,173	 –	 –	 165,173

			   9,825,170	 –	 –	 9,825,170
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34.	 Financial Instruments (cONTINUED)

	 The following table analyses the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company 
by the classes and categories of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the 
measurement basis: (Continued)

			   Financial	 Financial
			   assets and	 assets at fair
			   liabilities at	 value through
			   amortised cost	 profit or loss	 Total
			R   M	R M	R M

Company
2023
Financial assets
Other investments			   –	 1,532,337	  1,532,337
Other receivables and deposits			   10,783	 –	 10,783
Amount owing by subsidiaries			   5,458,188	 –	 5,458,188
Amount owing by associates			   215,925	 –	 215,925
Cash and bank balances			   3,679,619	 –	 3,679,619

			   9,364,515	 1,532,337	 10,896,852

Financial liabilities
Other payables, deposits and accruals			   487,962	 –	 487,962
Amount owing to subsidiaries			   8,230,003	 –	 8,230,003

				    8,717,965	 –	 8,717,965

2022
Financial assets					   
Other investments			   –	 333,876	  333,876
Other receivables and deposits			   148,633	 –	 148,633
Amount owing by subsidiaries			   6,773,985	 –	 6,773,985
Amount owing by associates			   277,021	 –	 277,021
Cash and bank balances			   749,050	 –	 749,050

				    7,948,689	 333,876	 8,282,565

Financial liabilities					   
Other payables, deposits and accruals			   853,952	 –	 853,952
Amount owing to subsidiaries			   6,746,086	 –	 6,746,086

				    7,600,038	 –	 7,600,038
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34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management

	 The Group’s and the Company’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial 
resources are available for the development of the Group’s and of the Company’s operations whilst 
managing its financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company operates within 
clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Company’s policy is not to engage in 
speculative transactions.

	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a counterparty of a financial asset fails to meet 
its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises mainly from trade receivables and 
contract assets whilst the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from amount owing by subsidiaries.

	 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing 
basis through the review of trade receivables ageing. The Group monitors the results of the related parties 
regularly to safeguard credit risk on balance from intercompany receivables.

	 The maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group is the carrying amount of the financial assets shown in 
the statements of financial position.

	 The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables are as follows:

			 
			   	 Gross
				    carrying	L oss
				    amount	 allowance	T otal

			R   M	R M	R M

Group
2023
Trade receivables
Neither past due nor individually impaired		  1,588,616	 –	 1,588,616

1 to 30 days past due but not individually impaired		  3,758,346	 –	 3,758,346
31 to 60 days past due but not individually impaired		  1,251,713	 –	 1,251,713
61 to 90 days past due but not individually impaired		  169,099	 –	 169,099
91 to 120 days past due but not individually impaired		  1,031,004	 (230,000)	 801,004

				    6,210,162	 (230,000)	 5,980,162
Individually impaired			   36,650	 (36,650)	 –

				    7,835,428	 (266,650)	 7,568,778
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34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

	 Credit risk (Continued)

	 The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables are as follows: (Continued)

			   	 Gross
				    carrying	L oss
				    amount	 allowance	T otal
				R    M	R M	R M

			R   estated		R  estated

Group 
2022	
Trade receivables
Neither past due nor individually impaired		  7,668,069	 –	 7,668,069

1 to 30 days past due but not individually impaired		  591,880	 –	 591,880
31 to 60 days past due but not individually impaired		  1,461,797	 –	 1,461,797
61 to 90 days past due but not individually impaired		  163,205	 –	 163,205
91 to 120 days past due but not individually impaired		  17,191	 –	 17,191
More than 120 days past but not individually impaired		  85,701	 –	 85,701

				    2,319,774	 –	 2,319,774
Individually impaired  			   36,650	 (36,650)	 –

				    10,024,493	 (36,650) 	 9,987,843

	 The Group’s trade receivables of RM6,210,152 (2022: RM2,319,774) was past due but not individually 
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers with no recent history of default in payments.

	 The Group’s trade receivables of RM36,650 (2022: RM36,650) were individually impaired. The individually 
impaired receivables mainly relate to trade receivables, which are facing difficulties in cash flows. As at the 
end of the reporting date, the impairment loss for these receivables is RM36,650 (2022: RM36,650).

Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from trade and other payables, 
intercompany payables, lease liabilities and bank borrowings.

	 Cash flow forecasting is performed by monitoring the Group’s and the Company’s liquidity requirements to 
ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet operational, financing repayments and other liabilities as they 
fall due. 
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34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

	 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial liabilities as 
at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments:

				T    otal 
		C  arrying	C ontractual	 contractual	O n demand or	
		  amount	 interest rate	 cash flows	 within 1 year	 2 - 5 years

	R M	 %	R M	R M	R M

Group
2023
Financial liabilities
Trade payables	 8,245,849	 –	 8,245,849	 8,245,849	 –
Other payables, deposits 
  and accruals	 2,778,394	 –	 2,778,394	 2,778,394	 –
Amount owing to 
  associates	 319,169	 –	 319,169	 319,169	 –
Bank overdrafts  	 869,595	 7.45% – 9.15%	 869,595	 869,595	  –
Lease liabilities	 208,538	 4.72% – 5.40%	 234,552	 50,618	 183,934
Financial guarantees	 –	 –	 590,978	 590,978	 –

		  12,421,545		  13,038,537	 12,854,603	 183,934

Company
Financial liabilities
Other payables, deposits 
  and accruals	 487,962	 –	 487,962	 487,962	 –
Amount owing to 
  subsidiaries	 8,230,003	 –	 8,230,003	 8,230,003	 –
Financial guarantees	 –	 –	 1,460,573	 1,460,573	 –

		  8,717,965		  10,178,538	 10,178,538	 –
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34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

	 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial liabilities as 
at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments:

				T    otal 
		C  arrying	C ontractual	 contractual	O n demand or	
		  amount	 interest rate	 cash flows	 within 1 year	 2 - 5 years

	R M	 %	R M	R M	R M

Group
2022
Financial liabilities
Trade payables	 6,659,932	 –	 6,659,932	 6,659,932	 –
Other payables, deposits 
  and accruals	 2,249,471	 –	 2,249,471	 2,249,471	 –
Amount owing to 
  associates	 163,450	 –	 163,450	 163,450	 –
Bank overdrafts	 587,144	 6.95% – 8.90%	 587,144	 587,144	 –
Lease liabilities	 165,173	 4.74% – 5.55%	 184,953	 72,183	 112,770
Financial guarantees	 –	 –	 783,327	 783,327	 –

		  9,825,170		  10,628,277	 10,515,507	 112,770

Company 
Financial liabilities
Other payables, deposits 
  and accruals	 853,952	 –	 853,952	 853,952	 –
Amount owing to 
  subsidiaries	 6,746,086	 –	 6,746,086	 6,746,086	 –
Financial guarantees	 –	 –	 1,370,471	 1,370,471	 –

		  7,600,038		  8,970,509	 8,970,509	 –

	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and cash 
flow and fair value interest rate risk that may affect the financial position and cash flows.

(a)	I nterest rate risk

	 The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market 
interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from the Group’s fixed deposits with licensed banks, bank 
borrowings and lease liablities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]

34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

	 Market risk (Continued)

(a)	I nterest rate risk (Continued)

	 Exposure to interest rate risk

	 The interest rate profile of Group’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments, based on carrying 
amounts as at the end of the financial year are as follows:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

Fixed rate instruments			 
Deposits placed with licensed banks			   3,933,640	 6,293,135
Lease liabilities				    (208,538)	 (165,173)

Floating rate instruments
Bank overdrafts				    (869,595)	 (587,144)

	 Interest rate sensitivity

	 Since the Group’s fixed rate financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost, possible 
changes in interest rates are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s profit or loss.

	 As at the end of the financial year, if interest rates of floating rate instruments had been lower by 50 
basis points (“bp”) with all other variables held constant, this will result in post tax increases of RM3,304 
(2022: RM2,231) in profit or loss.

(b)	 Foreign currency exchange risk 

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a 
currency other than Ringgit Malaysia. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States Dollar 
(“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”). The Group monitors the foreign currency 
risks on an ongoing basis.

	 The net financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in their 
functional currencies are as follows:

		  Financial Assets Held in Non-Functional Currency
			U   nited States		S  ingapore

	 Functional Currency		  Dollar	R enminbi	 Dollar	T otal
		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Group
2023				 
Cash and bank balances		  3,612,234	 871,542	 6,255	 4,490,031
Trade payables		  –	 (4,008)	 –	 (4,008)

			   3,612,234	 867,534	 6,255	 4,486,023
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34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

	 Market risk (Continued)

(b)	 Foreign currency exchange risk (Continued)

		  Financial Assets Held in Non-Functional Currency
			U   nited States		S  ingapore

	 Functional Currency		  Dollar	R enminbi	 Dollar	T otal
		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Group
2022
Cash and bank balances		  753,600	 799,361	 5,810	 1,558,771
Trade payables		  (859,478)	 (461,997)	 –	 (1,321,475)

			   (105,878)	 337,364	 5,810	 237,296

	 Currency risk sensitivity analysis

	 The following shows the sensitivity of the Group’s profit after tax to a reasonably possible change in 
USD, RMB and SGD exchange rate against the Group’s functional currency (“RM”), with all other 
variables remain constant:

			   Group
			I   ncrease/(Decrease)  
			   in profit after tax

					     2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

USD/RM - strengthening 5%				    137,265 	 (4,023)
RMB/RM - strengthening 5%				    32,966 	 12,820
SGD/RM - strengthening 5%				    238 	 221

(c)	 Price risk 

	 The Group is exposed to quoted equity securities price risk arising from the quoted investments held 
by the Group which are classified either as financial assets, at FVTPL. These securities are listed in 
Malaysia. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its 
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

	 If prices for quoted equity securities listed in Malaysia had changed by 5% (2022: 5%) respectively with all 
other variables including tax rate being held constant, the effects on profit after tax would have been:

			   Group
			I   ncrease/(Decrease)  
			   in profit after tax

				    	 2023	 2022
				R    M	R M

Quoted equity securities
-	  increase 5%				    59,423	 96,649
-	  decrease 5%				    (59,423)	 (96,649)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]



ANNUAL REPORT 
2023AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD

129

34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

	 Fair value information

	 The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short-term receivables and payables and short-
term borrowings reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term nature of these 
financial instruments.

	 The carrying amount of fixed income fund is determined by reference to the redemption price at the 
reporting date.

	 The fair value of quoted equity securities is determined by their quoted closing market price at the end of 
the reporting date.

	 The fair value of the transferable club membership is determined by reference to comparable market 
value of similar investment.

	 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: 	 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
		  or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: 	 Inputs for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data.

	 The following table analyses the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments carried at fair value in the 
statement of financial position:

				    Level 1	L evel 2	T otal
			R   M	R M	

Group
2023
Financial assets
Fixed income funds			   9,551,861	 –	 9,551,861
Quoted equity securities			   1,188,468	 –	 1,188,468
Transferable club membership			   –	 250,000	 250,000

2022	
Financial assets
Fixed income funds			   7,656,659	 –	 7,656,659
Quoted equity securities			   1,932,983	 –	 1,932,983
Transferable club membership			   –	 250,000	 250,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[continued]



ANNUAL REPORT 
2023 AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD

130

34.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

	 Financial risk management (Continued)

	 Fair value information (Continued)

	 The following table analyses the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments carried at fair value in the 
statement of financial position: (Continued)

						      Level 1
					R     M

Company 
2023
Financial assets
Fixed income funds					     1,532,337

2022	
Financial assets
Fixed income funds					     333,876

		  Carrying amount	L evel 3
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022
		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Group
Financial liability
Lease liabilities		  208,538	 165,173	 208,538	 160,283

35.	C apital Commitments

	 The Group and the Company have made commitments for the following:

		  Group	C ompany
			   2023	 2022	 2023	 2022

		R  M	R M	R M	R M

Approved and contracted for:
Acquisition and development of 
  software applications		  3,200,000	 –	 –	 –
Acquisition of investment properties		  –	 675,000	 –	 –

			   3,200,000	 675,000	 –	 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36.	C apital Management

	 The Group’s primary objective in managing its capital is to maximise the Group’s value by optimising its 
capital structure and enhancing capital efficiency while maintaining a sufficient level of liquidity. The 
Group targets a capital structure of an optimal mix of debt and equity in order to achieve an efficient cost 
of capital vis-à-vis maintaining financial flexibility for its business requirement and investing for future growth. 
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure in accordance to the changes in economic 
conditions, its business plan and foreseeable future.

	 The Group uses the debt-to-equity ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total equity as the key 
measurement for its capital structure management as follows:

			   Group
					     2023	 2022

				R    M	R M

Total interest-bearing borrowings				    1,078,133	 752,317
Less: Cash at banks, in hand and cash deposits with licensed banks		  (25,370,073)	 (14,641,891)

					     (24,291,940)	 (13,889,574)

Total equity				    71,691,946	 66,291,021

Debt to equity ratio (%)				    *	 *

*	 Not meaningful as the Group is in a net cash position.

37.	C omparative Figures

	 The following comparative figures of the Group have been reclassified to conform with current year 
presentation. The details of the reclassification are as follows:

				A    s previously 		A  s
				    stated	 Reclassification	 restated

			R   M	R M	R M

Group
30 November 2022
Statements of financial position
Trade receivables			   10,389,611	 (401,768)	 9,987,843
Contract assets			   5,693,843	 401,768	 6,095,611
Trade payables			   (7,976,328)	 1,316,396	 (6,659,932)
Contract liabilities			   (2,619,793)	 (1,316,396)	 (3,936,189)

	 The statements of financial position as at 1 December 2021 is not presented as there is no other impact 
other than the reclassification between trade receivables, trade payables, contract assets and contract 
liabilities. The reclassification does not have any impact to retained earnings, profit or loss and statements 
of cash flows for the comparative information.

38.	SUBSE QUENT EVENT

	 On 17 January 2024, Amtel Cellular Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100 
ordinary shares resenting 100% equity interest in AIT Tech Sdn. Bhd. for a total cash consideration of RM100.
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STATEMENT 
BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

STATUTORY  
DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

We, YTM. TUNKU DATO’ SERI KAMEL BIN TUNKU RIJALUDIN and KOID SIANG LOONG, being two of the Directors of 
AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out 
on pages 66 to 131 are drawn up in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 November 2023 and of its financial performance 
and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

_____________________________________________________	 ______________________________________
YTM. TUNKU DATO’ SERI KAMEL BIN TUNKU RIJALUDIN	 KOID SIANG LOONG

I, DATO’ KOID HUN KIAN, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of AMTEL 
HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 66 to 
131 are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously 
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the 	 )
abovenamed DATO’ KOID HUN KIAN	 )
at  Puchong in the state of Selangor Darul Ehsan	 )
on this date of 18 March 2024	 )__________________________________________________
		  DATO’ KOID HUN KIAN

Before me,

NG SAY JIN (B195)
COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD, which comprise the statements of 
financial position as at 30 November 2023 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the 
Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material 
accounting policy information, as set out on pages 66 to 131.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Group and of the Company as at 30 November 2023, and of their financial performance and their cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional 
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. We have determined that 
there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report in the financial statements of the Company. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Provision for Warranty Costs (Refer to Note 2.3(i), Note 2.4(o) and Note 23(a) to the financial statements)
The Group recognised provision for warranty costs 
amounting to RM2,875,331 as at 30 November 
2023. 
 
We focused in this area because of the inherent 
subjectivity and uncertainty in respect of 
determining the reasonableness of the provision 
for warranty costs. 

We performed the following audit procedures:
• 	Performed an understanding on the basis and assumptions 

used by management in arriving the Group’s warranty 
provisioning policy;

•	 Discussed with management on any existing and future 
changes in warranty claim patterns which may affect the 
appropriateness of the current assumptions used;

•	 Assessed the reasonableness of assumptions used by 
management based on historical warranty claims for the 
products sold; and

•	 Tested the mathematical accuracy of the underlying 
calculations and verified the utilisation of the provision 
account based on actual warranty claims incurred.

INDEPENDENT  
AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Contract revenue recognition (Refer to Note 2.3 (ii), Note 2.4(p)(i) and Note 25 to the financial statements)
The Group recognised its contract revenue by 
reference to the progress towards complete 
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the 
reporting date. 

We focused on this area because significant 
judgement by the Group is required in the 
estimation of total contract revenue and costs 
and the extent of the cost incurred which is 
affected by a variety of uncertainties that 
depend on the outcome of future events.

We performed the following audit procedures:
•	 Obtained an understanding and tested the Group’s 

internal controls over contract approvals and recognition 
process;

•	 Performed enquiries on the project nature and status with 
the project team to obtain understanding of the basis on 
which the estimates are made;

•	 Verified the budgeted revenue by examining the contract 
projects’ approved letter of award and purchase order;

•	 Verified the approval of variation orders (“VO”) and 
assess potential exposures for liquidated and ascertained 
damages (“LAD”) arising from potential late completion 
of the contract revenue;

•	 Inspected the costs incurred to date and compared 
against sub-contractor claim certificates and suppliers’ 
invoices to corroborate the projects’ progress towards 
satisfaction of the performance obligations and 
reasonableness of the estimated project budget; and

•	 Performed re-computations on the calculation of the 
stage of completion in accordance with MFRS 15.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The 
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing 
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate 
the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
 
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of 
the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express and opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of 
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Other Matters

1.	 This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of 
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any 
other person for the content of this report.

2.	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 November 2022 
were audited by another firm of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on these 
financial statements in their report dated 20 March 2023.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT	 CHEW LOONG JIN
201906002362 & AF 0276	 03279/03/2025 J
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountant

Dated: 18 March 2024
Kuala Lumpur
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LIST OF  
PROPERTIES
AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2023

Location/Address
Description and

Existing Use Tenure

Lease
Expiry
Date

Land Area/
Built-up 

Area
(sq. feet)

Date of 
Acquisition/
Completion

Approximate
Age of
Building
(Years)

Net Book 
Value/

Carrying 
amount

RM
Lot No. 61862
Bandar Glenmarie
Geran 215243
District of Petaling
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Address:
No 12, Jalan Pensyarah 
  U1/28 
Hicom Glenmarie 
  Industrial Park
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

4 Storey office/
Factory building

Head office
Tenanted

Freehold – 50,831 1.4.2020 23 25,251,091 

Lot No. TH A85-1
Mukim Kajang 
Daerah Hulu Langat
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Address:
19-G, Jalan Kajang 
  Perdana
43000 Kajang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

3 Storey town house
(Ground floor)

Corner lot
Vacant

Freehold – 1,078 31.3.2002 21  113,149 

Plot No. 31, Phase 1B
Kesuma Lakes
C.T. 12115, Lot No. 771
Mukim of Beranang
District of Ulu Langat
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Bungalow land
Vacant

Freehold – 10,552 19.11.2002  Not 
Applicable

 168,717 

Lot No. 20170
Geran Mukim 1455
Mukim 11
District of Barat Daya
Pulau Pinang

Address:
No. 22, Lorong Sungai 
  Batu 3A
11920 Bayan Lepas
Sungai Batu
Pulau Pinang

3 Storey terrace house
Intermediate lot

Investment properties
Tenanted

Freehold – 2,578 14.8.2019 1  920,352 
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Location/Address
Description and

Existing Use Tenure

Lease
Expiry
Date

Land Area/
Built-up 

Area
(sq. feet)

Date of 
Acquisition/
Completion

Approximate
Age of
Building
(Years)

Net Book 
Value/

Carrying 
amount

RM
Lot No. 20171
Geran Mukim 1456
Mukim 11
District of Barat Daya
Pulau Pinang

Address:
No. 22A, Lorong Sungai 
  Batu 3A
Sungai Batu
11920 Bayan Lepas
Pulau Pinang

3 Storey terrace house
Intermediate lot

Vacant
Investment properties

For rental

Freehold – 2,578 14.8.2019 1  920,352 

Lot No. 20172
Geran Mukim 1457
Mukim 11
District of Barat Daya
Pulau Pinang

Address:
No. 26, Lorong Sungai 
  Batu 3A
Sungai Batu
11920 Bayan Lepas
Pulau Pinang

3 Storey terrace house
Corner lot
Vacant

Investment properties
For rental

Freehold – 2,522 14.8.2019 1 920,352 

H.S.(M) No. 11460
P.T. No. 35535
Bukit Lancong
Mukim of Damansara
District of Petaling
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Address:
No 5, Jalan Ikan Keli
Laman Sutera
47150 Subang Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

3 Storey 
Semi-detached house

Intermediate lot
Vacant

Investment properties
For rental

Leasehold 13.5.2114 3,998 28.11.2019 6 1,153,214 

TOTAL 29,447,227 

LIST OF PROPERTIES
AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2023
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Issued Share Capital	 :	 RM40,601,850.85 comprising 98,250,931 ordinary shares
		  (including 2,852,900 shares held as treasury shares)
Class of Shares	 :	 Ordinary shares
Voting Rights	 :	 1 vote per ordinary share (on a poll)

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

			N   o. of 	T otal
Size of Shareholdings			S   hareholders	H oldings 	 % 
			 
1 - 99			   495	 25,310	 0.03
100 - 1,000			   225	 124,357	 0.13
1,001 - 10,000			   1,632	 6,948,242	 7.28
10,001 - 100,000			   611	 19,412,419	 20.35
100,001 - less than 5% of issued shares			   104	 43,301,157	 45.39
5% and above of issued shares			   3	 25,586,546	 26.82

Total			   3,070	 95,398,031	 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 
AS PER THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
	 Direct Interest 	 Deemed Interest
Name		N  o. of shares 	 %	N o. of shares 	 %
				  
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian  		  12,429,132	 13.03	 17,014,413*	 17.84
Simfoni Kilat Sdn. Bhd.		  5,989,705	 6.28	 –	 –
Koid Siang Loong		  7,167,709	 7.51	 2,700,000**	 2.83

Note:

*	 Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by spouse and child pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the 
Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”) and shares held by virtue of his interest in Simfoni Kilat Sdn Bhd and Bai 
Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act.

**	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 
8(4) of the Act.

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS
	 Direct Interest 	 Deemed Interest
Name		N  o. of shares 	 %	N o. of shares 	 %
				  
Dato’ Koid Hun Kian		  12,429,132	 13.03	 17,014,413*	 17.84
Koid Siang Loong		  7,167,709	 7.51	 3,452,140**	 3.62
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin		  450,000	 0.47	 –	 –
Lim Hun Teik		  183,000	 0.19	 –	 –
Ang Mei Ping		  –	 –	 –	 –
Ir. Chew Yook Boo		  –	 –	 –	 –

Note:

*	 Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by spouse and child pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Act 
and shares held by virtue of his interest in Simfoni Kilat Sdn Bhd and Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn Bhd 
pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act.

**	 Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by spouse pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Act and shares 
held by virtue of his interest in Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act. 

ANALYSIS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 4 MARCH 2024 
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TOP THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS 
AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS
No.	N ame of Shareholder	N o. of shares	 %

1.	 DATO’ KOID HUN KIAN	 12,429,132	 13.03
2.	 KOID SIANG LOONG 	 7,167,709	 7.51
3.	 SIMFONI KILAT SDN BHD	 5,989,705	 6.28
4.	 BEST INTERLINK SDN BHD	 2,925,000	 3.07
5.	 BAI YUN MOUNTAIN TRADING (M) SDN. BHD.	 2,700,000	 2.83
6.	 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SIN YONG LEAN	 2,347,950	 2.46
7.	 TEH TZUN TZIN	 1,912,400	 2.00
8.	 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SOH SIEW KENG (E-TMI/BMC)	 1,588,600	 1.67
9.	 TAN SUN LAI	 1,500,000	 1.57
10.	 CHEN BEE YOKE	 1,171,500	 1.23
11.	 TAN SEOW ENG	 1,156,999	 1.21
12.	 TAN SUN LAI	 1,100,000	 1.15
13.	 RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ANDREW LEONG	 1,060,000	 1.11
14.	 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YAP CHIN HOCK (7003122)	 1,010,900	 1.06
15.	 ONG YEAN PHENG	 913,650	 0.96
16.	 CHUM SHU CHENG	 753,855	 0.79
17.	 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 CHUA ENG HO WA'A @ CHUA ENG WAH	 746,900	 0.78
18.	 LOKATECH ENGINEERING SDN BHD	 746,900	 0.78
19.	 CHOW TENG TING	 739,390	 0.78
20.	 CGS INTERNATIONAL NOMINEES MALAYSIA (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ANDREW LEONG (MY3516)	 700,000	 0.73
21.	 RONDY YUNANDA YONG	 700,000	 0.73
22.	 LOW KIM AIK	 656,300	 0.69
23.	 AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE CHYE KHERN (M09)	 641,866	 0.67
24.	 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ANG TUNE HOE (E-BPJ)	 602,250	 0.63
25.	 CHAN YOKE FUNG	 600,000	 0.63
26.	 TAN GEOK SWEE @ TAN CHIN HUAT	 500,000	 0.52
27.	 WONG SEW SONG	 488,100	 0.51
28.	 ENG WAI LING	 460,600	 0.48
29.	 YTM. TUNKU DATO‘ SERI KAMEL BIN TUNKU RIJALUDIN	 450,000	 0.47
30.	 WONG SIU CHUNG	 448,300	 0.47

	 Total	 54,207,506	 56.82   

Note: 	The analysis of shareholdings is based on the total number of issued shares of the Company after deducting 
2,852,900 ordinary shares brought back by the Company and held as treasury shares as at 4 March 2024.

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 4 MARCH 2024

[continued]
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Class of Securities	 :	 Warrants A 
No. of Warrants	 :	 48,079,081
Exercise Price of Warrants	 :	 RM0.65
Exercise Period of Warrants	 :	 2021/2024

ANALYSIS OF WARRANTS A HOLDINGS

	 		N  o. of 	N o. of
			   Warrants A	 Warrants A
Size of Warrants A Holdings			H   olders	H eld	 % 
			 
1 - 99			   588	 21,101	 0.04
100 - 1,000			   647	 535,113	 1.11
1,001 - 10,000			   495	 1,893,627	 3.94
10,001 - 100,000			   186	 7,131,566	 14.83
100,001 - less than 5% of issued Warrants A			   73	 30,919,574	 64.31
5%  and above of the issued Warrants A			   2	 7,578,100	 15.76

Total			   1,991	 48,079,081	 100.00

DIRECTORS' WARRANTS A HOLDINGS 

	 Direct Interest	 Deemed Interest
		N  o. of		N  o. of
Name		  Warrants A	 %	 Warrants A 	 %

Dato’ Koid Hun Kian		  –	 –	 2,519,799*	 5.24
Koid Siang Loong		  1,169,799	 2.43	 3,211,875 **	 6.68
YTM. Tunku Dato’ Seri Kamel Bin Tunku Rijaludin		  –	 –	 –	 –
Lim Hun Teik		  91,500	 0.19	 –	 –
Ir. Chew Yook Boo		  –	 –	 –	 –
Ang Mei Ping 		  –	 –	 –	 –

Note:

*	 Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by child pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act 
2016 (“the Act”) and shares held by virtue of his interest in Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant 
to Section 8(4) of the Act.

**	 Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by spouse pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Act and shares 
held by virtue of his interest in Bai Yun Mountain Trading (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act.   

ANALYSIS OF  
WARRANTS A HOLDINGS

AS AT 4 MARCH 2024 
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TOP THIRTY LARGEST WARRANTS A HOLDERS 
AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS
No	  Name of Warrants A Holder	N o. of Warrants A Held	 %

1.	 AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE CHYE KHERN (M09)	 4,475,700	 9.31
2.	 LOO KIM HUAT	 3,102,400	 6.45
3.	 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
	 RAKUTEN TRADE SDN BHD FOR ANG PEI SAN	 1,775,000	 3.69
4.	 AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KAH KONG BOO	 1,450,400	 3.02
5.	 LOW CHEE ONN	 1,404,300	 2.92
6.	 BAI YUN MOUNTAIN TRADING (M) SDN. BHD.	 1,350,000	 2.81
7.	 CHOW TENG TING	 1,339,125	 2.79
8.	 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 CHUA ENG HO WA'A @ CHUA ENG WAH	 1,203,700	 2.50
9.	 KOID SIANG LOONG	 1,169,799	 2.43
10.	 GAN SIN SENG	 1,145,300	 2.38
11.	 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI YEE SENG (E-PTS/JAI)	 891,000	 1.85
12.	 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SIN YONG LEAN	 839,125	 1.75
13.	 WONG KUM CHEONG	 825,000	 1.72
14.	 TEH TZUN TZIN	 750,500	 1.56
15.	 LEE SWEE NGOR	 700,000	 1.46
16.	 TAN CHEE MING	 700,000	 1.46
17.	 LOKATECH ENGINEERING SDN BHD	 600,000	 1.25
18.	 CHEN BEE YOKE	 585,750	 1.22
19.	 PHILLIP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR GOH KIM CHOON	 500,700	 1.04
20.	 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHOW CHEE FAI (7003968)	 500,000	 1.04
21.	 CHEAH WEI KHENG	 500,000	 1.04
22.	 MOHD ZAKWAN BIN MD KHANAPIAH	 500,000	 1.04
23.	 NG KOI YIN	 500,000	 1.04
24.	 YOW PENG SENG	 500,000	 1.04
25.	 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 RAKUTEN TRADE SDN BHD FOR CHOW TENG TING	 496,875	 1.03
26.	 ONG YEAN PHENG	 480,825	 1.00
27.	 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
	 RAKUTEN TRADE SDN BHD FOR TERENCE FOO YONG REN	 421,400	 0.88
28.	 LOH YUET MUI	 400,000	 0.83
29.	 HLIB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
	 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SAW JUN-YU (CCTS)	 394,900	 0.82
30.	 BEST INTERLINK SDN BHD	 380,000	 0.79

	 Total	 29,881,799	 62.15

ANALYSIS OF WARRANTS A HOLDINGS
AS AT 4 MARCH 2024

[continued]
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AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD
[Registration No. 199601037096 (409449-A)]

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

PROXY FORM 					   
TWENTY-SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“27th AGM”)
(Before completing this form, please refer to the notes)

*I/We (full name)............................................................................................................................................................................................

*NRIC No./Passport No./Registration No. ............................................................ Contact No.................................................................

Email address ......................................................................  of (Full Address)...............................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
being a member of AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD (“ AMTEL or “the Company”) hereby appoint

Name Email Address Contact No. NRIC/Passport No. Address

*and/or failing him/her (delete as appropriate)

or failing *him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy(ies) to participate, speak and vote for *me/us and on *my/ 
our behalf at the 27th AGM of the Company, which will be conducted virtually through live streaming from the broadcast 
venue at AMTEL Office, Board Room, Level 3, Wisma Amtel, No. 12, Jalan Pensyarah U1/28, Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park, 
40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 23 May 2024 at 11:00 a.m., or at any adjournment thereof.

*My/our proxy(ies) is/are to vote as indicated below:

No. Resolutions For Against
1. Approval on the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 30 November 2024.
2. Approval on the payment of Directors’ benefits and other claimable benefits incurred from 

24 May 2024 until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting.  
3. Re-election of Koid Siang Loong as Director. 
4. Re-election of Lim Hun Teik as Director.
5. Re-election of Ang Mei Ping as Director. 
6. To re-appoint HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT as External Auditors of the Company until the conclusion of 

the Company’s next AGM and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
7. Authority to Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies 

Act 2016 and waiver of pre-emptive rights.
8. Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back.
9. Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate.
10. Proposed Amendments to the Constitution of the Company.

For appointment of more than one (1) proxy, the percentage of shareholdings to be represented by the proxies is as follows:

Percentage
Proxy 1

Proxy 2

%

%

Total 100%
  

….………………………………….….….….
Signature/Common Seal of Member	 Dated this ………… day of …………………… 2024

CDS Account No.

No. of Shares held



The Poll Administrator of

AMTEL HOLDINGS BERHAD
[Registration No.: 199601037096 (409449-A)]
c/o SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd.
Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela 
Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan

Fold This Flap For Sealing

1st Fold Here

2nd Fold Here

AFFIX
STAMP

Notes:

1.	 A member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at this Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to participate and vote in his /her stead. 
Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy to attend, participate, speak and vote at the same AGM of the Company, the appointments shall 
be invalid unless the proportion of the shareholdings to be represented by each proxy is specified. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification 
of the proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the member to attend, participate, 
speak and vote at the Meeting.

2.	 The broadcast venue, which is the main venue of the AGM of the Company is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Act 
which requires the Chairman of the Meeting to be present at the main venue of the AGM of the Company. Members, proxies and/or corporate 
representatives will not be allowed to be physically present at the broadcast venue on the day of the Meeting.

	 As guided by the Securities Commission Malaysia’s Guidance Note and Frequently Asked Questions on the Conduct of General Meetings for Listed 
Issuers and its subsequent amendments, the right to speak is not limited to verbal communication only but includes other modes of expression. 
Therefore, all members, proxies and/or corporate representatives shall communicate with the main venue of the AGM of the Company via real-time 
submission of typed texts through a text box within Securities Services e-Portal’s platform during the live streaming of the AGM of the Company as the 
primary mode of communication. In the event of any technical glitch in this primary mode of communication, members, proxies and/or corporate 
representatives may email their questions to eservices@sshsb.com.my during the AGM of the Company. The questions and/or remarks submitted 
by the members, proxies and/or corporate representatives will be broadcasted and responded to by the Chairman, Board of Directors and/or 
Management during the AGM of the Company. In the event of any unattended questions and/or remarks submitted, the Company will respond to 
the said unattended questions and/or remarks after the AGM of the Company via email.

3.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 16 May 2024 shall be entitled to participate and 
vote at this Meeting.

4.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one 
(1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect 
of each omnibus account it holds.

5.	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the member or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the member 
is a corporation, shall either be executed under the corporation’s common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. The 
instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the office of SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd. at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar 
Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or submit the Proxy Form electronically via Securities Services e-Portal 
at https://sshsb.net.my/ not later than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the AGM of the Company or any adjournment thereof. 
The lodging of the Proxy Form does not preclude any shareholder from participating and voting remotely at the AGM  of the Company should any 
shareholder subsequently wishes to do so, provided a Notice of Termination of Authority to act as Proxy is given to the Company and deposited at the 
office of SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd. at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, 
Wilayah Persekutuan not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the time stipulated for holding the AGM of the Company or any adjournment thereof. 
All resolutions set out in this notice of meeting are to be voted by poll.

6.	 Should you wish to personally participate in the Meeting remotely, please register electronically via Securities Services e-Portal at https://www.sshsb.
net.my/ by the registration cut-off date and time. 

	 Please refer to the Administrative Guide for the 27th AGM for further details. The Administrative Guide for the 27th AGM is available for download at 
https://amtel.com.my/annual-report or download from the announcement on the 27th AGM from the website of Bursa Securities.
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